
 

 
 
 

 
      19 September 2016 
 
 
TO: COUNCILLORS 
 

BULLOCK, PRYCE-ROBERTS,  ALDRIDGE,  BLANE, COOPER, 
COTTERILL, CURRIE, GORDON,  HUDSON,  MEE, 
PENDLETON, AND  POPE   

 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
A meeting of the AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE will be held in the 
CABINET/COMMITTEE ROOM - 52 DERBY STREET, ORMSKIRK L39 2DF on 
TUESDAY, 27 SEPTEMBER 2016 at 6.30 PM at which your attendance is requested. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 
Kim Webber 
Chief Executive 
 

AGENDA 
(Open to the Public) 

 
 
1.   APOLOGIES   

 
 

2.   MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE  
 
To be apprised of any changes to the membership of the Committee in 
accordance with Council Procedure rule 4. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
If a member requires advice on Declarations of Interest, he/she is 

59 - 60 

Kim Webber B.Sc. M.Sc. 
Chief Executive 
 

52 Derby Street 
Ormskirk 
West Lancashire 
L39 2DF 
 



 

advised to contact the Borough Solicitor in advance of the meeting.  
(For the assistance of members a checklist for use in considering their 
position on any particular item is included at the end of this agenda 
sheet).  
 

4.   PUBLIC SPEAKING  
 
Residents of West Lancashire on giving notice, may address the 
meeting to make representations on any item on the agenda except 
where the public and press are to be excluded during consideration of 
the item.  The deadline for submission is 5.00pm on Thursday 22 
September 2016. 
 

61 - 64 

5.   MINUTES  
 
To receive as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting of the 
Committee held on 28 June 2016. 
 

65 - 68 

6.   GRANT THORNTON - AUDIT PLAN FINDINGS REPORT  
 
To consider the report of the Borough Treasurer 
 

69 - 70 

7.   APPROVAL OF STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS  
 
To consider the report of the Borough Treasurer 
 

71 - 76 

8.   INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY - QUARTERLY UPDATE  
 
To consider the report of the Borough Treasurer 
 

77 - 84 

9.   REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS (RIPA) ACT - 
ANNUAL SETTING OF THE POLICY AND REVIEW OF USE OF 
POWERS  
 
To consider the report of the Borough Solicitor 
 

85 - 114 

10.   WORK PROGRAMME   
 

115 - 
116 

 
We can provide this document, upon request, on audiotape, in large print, in Braille 
and in other languages.   
 
 
 
 
FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE: Please see attached sheet. 
MOBILE PHONES: These should be switched off or to ‘silent’ at all meetings. 
 
For further information, please contact:- 
Sue Griffiths on 01695 585097 
Or email susan.griffiths@westlancs.gov.uk 



 

FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE FOR: 
COUNCIL MEETINGS WHERE OFFICERS ARE PRESENT  

(52 DERBY STREET, ORMSKIRK) 
 

PERSON IN CHARGE:  Most Senior Officer Present 
ZONE WARDEN:   Member Services Officer / Lawyer 
DOOR WARDEN(S)  Usher / Caretaker 

 
IF YOU DISCOVER A FIRE 

 
1.  Operate the nearest FIRE CALL POINT by breaking the glass. 
2.  Attack the fire with the extinguishers provided only if you have been trained and it is 

safe to do so. Do not take risks. 
 

ON HEARING THE FIRE ALARM 
 

1.  Leave the building via the NEAREST SAFE EXIT. Do not stop to collect personal 
belongings. 

2.  Proceed to the ASSEMBLY POINT on the car park and report your presence to the 
PERSON IN CHARGE. 

3.  Do NOT return to the premises until authorised to do so by the PERSON IN 
CHARGE. 

 
NOTES: 
Officers are required to direct all visitors regarding these procedures i.e. exit routes and 
place of assembly. 
The only persons not required to report to the Assembly Point are the Door Wardens. 
 

CHECKLIST FOR PERSON IN CHARGE 
 

1.  Advise other interested parties present that you are the person in charge in the event 
of an evacuation. 

2. Make yourself familiar with the location of the fire escape routes and informed any 
interested parties of the escape routes. 

3.  Make yourself familiar with the location of the assembly point and informed any 
interested parties of that location. 

4.  Make yourself familiar with the location of the fire alarm and detection control panel. 
5.  Ensure that the zone warden and door wardens are aware of their roles and 

responsibilities. 
6.  Arrange for a register of attendance to be completed (if considered appropriate / 

practicable). 
 

IN THE EVENT OF A FIRE, OR THE FIRE ALARM BEING SOUNDED 
 

1.  Ensure that the room in which the meeting is being held is cleared of all persons. 
2.  Evacuate via the nearest safe Fire Exit and proceed to the ASSEMBLY POINT in the 

car park. 
3.  Delegate a person at the ASSEMBLY POINT who will proceed to HOME CARE LINK 

in order to ensure that a back-up call is made to the FIRE BRIGADE. 
4.  Delegate another person to ensure that DOOR WARDENS have been posted outside 

the relevant Fire Exit Doors. 



 

5.  Ensure that the ZONE WARDEN has reported to you on the results of his checks, i.e. 
that the rooms in use have been cleared of all persons. 

6.  If an Attendance Register has been taken, take a ROLL CALL. 
7.  Report the results of these checks to the Fire and Rescue Service on arrival and 

inform them of the location of the FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL. 
8.  Authorise return to the building only when it is cleared to do so by the FIRE AND 

RESCUE SERVICE OFFICER IN CHARGE. Inform the DOOR WARDENS to allow 
re-entry to the building. 

 
NOTE: 
The Fire Alarm system will automatically call the Fire Brigade. The purpose of the 999 
back-up call is to meet a requirement of the Fire Precautions Act to supplement the 
automatic call. 
 

CHECKLIST FOR ZONE WARDEN 
 

1.  Carry out a physical check of the rooms being used for the meeting, including 
adjacent toilets, kitchen. 

2.  Ensure that ALL PERSONS, both officers and members of the public are made 
aware of the FIRE ALERT. 

3.  Ensure that ALL PERSONS evacuate IMMEDIATELY, in accordance with the FIRE 
EVACUATION PROCEDURE. 

4.  Proceed to the ASSEMBLY POINT and report to the PERSON IN CHARGE that the 
rooms within your control have been cleared. 

5.  Assist the PERSON IN CHARGE to discharge their duties. 
 
It is desirable that the ZONE WARDEN should be an OFFICER who is normally based in 
this building and is familiar with the layout of the rooms to be checked. 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR DOOR WARDENS 
 

1.  Stand outside the FIRE EXIT DOOR(S) 
2.  Keep the FIRE EXIT DOOR SHUT. 
3.  Ensure that NO PERSON, whether staff or public enters the building until YOU are 

told by the PERSON IN CHARGE that it is safe to do so. 
4.  If anyone attempts to enter the premises, report this to the PERSON IN CHARGE. 
5.  Do not leave the door UNATTENDED. 
 
 



MEMBERS INTERESTS 2012 

A Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter considered at a meeting must disclose the interest to 
the meeting at which they are present, except where it has been entered on the Register. 
A Member with a non pecuniary or pecuniary interest in any business of the Council must disclose the existence and 
nature of that interest at commencement of consideration or when the interest becomes apparent. 
Where sensitive information relating to an interest is not registered in the register, you must indicate that you have an 
interest, but need not disclose the sensitive information. 

Please tick relevant boxes         Notes 

 General    

1. I have a disclosable pecuniary interest.  You cannot speak or vote and must 
withdraw unless you have also 
ticked 5 below 

2. I have a non-pecuniary interest.  You may speak and vote 

3. I have a pecuniary interest because 

it affects my financial position or the financial position of a 
connected person or, a body described in 10.1(1)(i) and (ii) 
and the interest is one which a member of the public with 
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as 
so significant that it is likely to prejudice my judgement of the 
public interest 

or 

it relates to the determining of any approval consent, 
licence, permission or registration in relation to me or a 
connected person or, a body described in 10.1(1)(i) and (ii) 
and the interest is one which a member of the public with 
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as 
so significant that it is likely to prejudice my judgement of the 
public interest 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

You cannot speak or vote and must 
withdraw unless you have also 
ticked 5 or 6 below 

 

 

 

You cannot speak or vote and must 
withdraw unless you have also 
ticked 5 or 6 below 

4. 

 

I have a disclosable pecuniary interest (Dispensation 
16/7/12) or a pecuniary interest but it relates to the functions 
of my Council in respect of: 

  

(i) Housing where I am a tenant of the Council, and those 
functions do not relate particularly to my tenancy or lease. 

 You may speak and vote 

(ii) school meals, or school transport and travelling expenses 
where I am a parent or guardian of a child in full time 
education, or are a parent governor of a school, and it does 
not relate particularly to the school which the child attends. 

 

 

 

You may speak and vote 

(iii) Statutory sick pay where I am in receipt or entitled to receipt 
of such pay.  

 You may speak and vote 

(iv) An allowance, payment or indemnity given to Members  You may speak and vote 

(v) Any ceremonial honour given to Members  You may speak and vote 

(vi) Setting Council tax or a precept under the LGFA 1992  You may speak and vote 

5. A Standards Committee dispensation applies (relevant lines 
in the budget – Dispensation 20/2/13 – 19/2/17) 

 See the terms of the dispensation 

6. I have a pecuniary interest in the business but I can attend 
to make representations, answer questions or give evidence 
as the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the 
same purpose 

 You may speak but must leave the 
room once you have finished and 
cannot vote 

‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ (DPI) means an interest of a description specified below which is your 
interest, your spouse’s or civil partner’s or the interest of somebody who you are living with as a husband 
or wife, or as if you were civil partners and you are aware that that other person has the interest. 

Interest Prescribed description 

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the relevant 
authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expenses 
incurred by M in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the election expenses of 
M. Page 59

Agenda Item 3



 This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning 
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority— 

 (a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and 

 (b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant authority. 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the relevant 
authority for a month or longer. 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to M's knowledge)— 

 (a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

 (b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where— 

 (a) that body (to M's knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the 
relevant authority; and 

 (b) either— 

 (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or 

 (ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of 
the shares of any one class in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest 
exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in which the relevant person is a partner or a body 

corporate of which the relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest; 

“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society; 

“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for the relevant 

person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income; “M” means a member of a relevant authority; 

“member” includes a co-opted member; “relevant authority” means the authority of which M is a member; 

“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M gives notice to the Monitoring Officer of a DPI; 

“relevant person” means M or M’s spouse or civil partner, a person with whom M is living as husband or wife or a person with 

whom M is living as if they were civil partners;  

 “securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the 

meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited 

with a building society. 

‘non pecuniary interest’ means interests falling within the following descriptions: 
10.1(1)(i) Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and 

to which you are appointed or nominated by your authority; 
 (ii) Any body (a) exercising functions of a public nature; (b) directed to charitable purposes; or (c) 

one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 
(including any political party or trade union), of which you are a member or in a position of 
general control or management; 

 (iii) Any easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right 
for you (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income. 

10.2(2) A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting your well-
being or financial position or the well-being or financial position of a connected person to a 
greater extent than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the 
ward, as the case may be, affected by the decision. 

‘a connected person’ means  
(a) a member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association, or 
(b) any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are a 

partner, or any company of which they are directors; 
(c) any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities 

exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 
(d) any body of a type described in sub-paragraph 10.1(1)(i) or (ii). 
‘body exercising functions of a public nature’ means 
Regional and local development agencies, other government agencies, other Councils, public health 
bodies, council-owned companies exercising public functions, arms length management organisations 
carrying out housing functions on behalf of your authority, school governing bodies. 
A Member with a personal interest who has made an executive decision in relation to that matter must 
ensure any written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of that interest. 
NB  Section 21(13) of the LGA 2000 overrides any Code provisions to oblige an executive member to 
attend an overview and scrutiny meeting to answer questions. 

Page 60



PUBLIC SPEAKING – PROTOCOL 

(For meetings of Cabinet, Overview & Scrutiny Committees, Audit & 

Governance Committee and Standards Committee) 

1.0 Public Speaking 

1.1 Residents of West Lancashire may, on giving notice, address any of the 
above meetings to make representations on any item on the agenda for those 
meetings, except where the public and press are to be excluded from the 
meeting during consideration of the item. 

 
1.2 The form attached as an Appendix to this Protocol should be used for 

submitting requests. 

2.0 Deadline for submission 

2.1 The prescribed form should be received by Member Services by 5.00 pm on 
the Thursday of the week preceding the meeting.  This can be submitted by 
e-mail to member.services@westlancs.gov.uk or by sending to: 

Member Services 
West Lancashire Borough Council 
52 Derby Street 
Ormskirk 
West Lancashire  
L39 2DF  

 

2.2 Completed forms will be collated by Member Services and circulated via e-
mail to relevant Members and officers and published on the Council website 
via the Council’s Information System (CoInS).  Only the name of the resident 
and details of the issue to be raised will be published. 

 
2.3 Groups of persons with similar views should elect a spokesperson to speak 

on their behalf to avoid undue repetition of similar points.  Spokespersons 
should identify in writing on whose behalf they are speaking. 

 

3.0 Scope 

3.1 Any matters raised must be relevant to an item on the agenda for the meeting. 
 
3.2 The Borough Solicitor may reject a submission if it: 

(i)  is defamatory, frivolous or offensive; 
(ii)  is substantially the same as representations which have already been 

submitted at a previous meeting; or 
(iii)  discloses or requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt 

information. 
 

 

Page 61

Agenda Item 4

mailto:member.services@westlancs.gov.uk


 

4.0 Number of items 

 

4.1 A maximum of one form per resident will be accepted for each Agenda Item. 
 
4.2 There will be a maximum of 10 speakers per meeting. Where there are more 

than 10 forms submitted by residents, the Borough Solicitor will prioritise the 
list of those allowed to speak.  This will be dependent on: 

 
a. The order in which forms were received. 
b. If one resident has asked to speak on a number of items, priority will be 

given to other residents who also wish to speak 
c. If a request has been submitted in relation to the same issue. 

 
4.3 All submissions will be circulated to relevant Members and officers for 

information, although no amendments will be made to the list of speakers 
once it has been agreed (regardless of withdrawal of a request to speak).  

 

5.0 At the Meeting 

 

5.1 Speakers will be shown to their seats.  An item ‘Public Speaking’ will be 
included on the agenda to enable local residents to make their 
representations within a period of up to 30 minutes at the start of the meeting.  
Residents will have up to 3 minutes to address the meeting when introduced 
by the Chairman for that meeting.  The address must reflect the issue 
included on the prescribed form submitted in advance.   

 
5.2 Members may discuss what the speaker has said along with all other 

information, when the item is being considered later on the agenda and will 
make a decision then.  Speakers should not circulate any supporting 
documentation at the meeting and should not enter into a debate with 
Councillors.   

 
5.4 If residents feel nervous or uncomfortable speaking in public, then they can 

ask someone else to do it for them.  They can also bring an interpreter if 
they need one.  They should be aware there may be others speaking as 
well. 

 
5.5 Speakers may leave the meeting at any time, taking care not to disturb the 

meeting. 

 
 

Page 62



 

 

REQUEST FOR PUBLIC SPEAKING AT MEETINGS 

 

 

MEETING & DATE ………………………………………………………………… 

 

NAME   …………………………………………………………………………. 

ADDRESS …………………………………………………………………………. 

  …………………………………………………………………………. 

  Post Code …………………………………………. 

PHONE ……………………………………………………… 

Email  ……………………………………………………… 

 

 

Please indicate if you will be in attendance at the  
meeting 
     

   
 

Note:  This page will not be published. 

 

                                                  (P.T.O.) 

 
 
 
 

YES/NO* 

*delete as applicable 

Page 63



PLEASE PROVIDE DETAILS OF THE MATTER YOU WISH TO RAISE 
 
Agenda Item  Number …………………. 
    

Title …………………………………………………….. 
 
Details   ……………………………………………………………. 
 
………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
…………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Name …………………………………            Dated ……………………… 
 
 
Completed forms to be submitted by 5.00pm on the Thursday of the 
week preceding the meeting to:- 
 
Member Services, West Lancashire Borough Council, 52 Derby Street, 
Ormskirk, Lancashire, L39 2DF or 
Email: member.services@westlancs.gov.uk 
 
If you require any assistance regarding your attendance at a meeting or 
if you have any queries regarding your submission please contact 
Member Services on 01695 585065 or 01695 585097 
 
Note:  This page will be published. 

Page 64

mailto:member.services@westlancs.gov.uk


 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

HELD: Tuesday, 28 June 2016 
 

 Start: 6.30 pm 
 Finish: 7.35 pm 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor: J Bullock (Chairman)  
 
Councillors: T Aldridge T Blane 
 Currie N Delaney 
 Gordon P Hudson 
 J Mee Mills 
 R Pendleton E Pope 
 Pritchard  
  

 
Officers: 
 
 
 
 
In Attendance: 

Borough Treasurer (Mr M Taylor) 
Borough Solicitor (Mr T Broderick) 
Audit Manager (Mr M Coysh) 
Principal Member Services Officer (Mrs S Griffiths) 
 
Karen Murray of Grant Thornton (External Auditors) 
 

  
 
1   APOLOGIES  

 
 There were no apologies for absence. 

 
2   MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE  

 
 In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 4, the Committee noted the termination of 

membership of Councillors Cooper, Cotterill, Pryce-Roberts and Bailey and the appointment 
of Councillors Pritchard, Delaney, Mills and Gordon respectively for this meeting only, giving 
effect to the wishes of the Political Groups. 

 
3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 There were no declarations of interest. 

 
4   PUBLIC SPEAKING  

 
 There were no items under this heading. 

 
5   MINUTES  

 
 RESOLVED That the minutes of the last meeting of the Committee held on 22 

March 2016 be approved as a correct record and signed by the 
Chairman. 

 
 
 
 

Page 65

Agenda Item 5



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE HELD: Tuesday, 28 June 2016 
 

 

6   GRANT THORNTON REPORTS  
 

 Consideration was given to the report of the Borough Treasurer as circulated and contained 
on pages 11 – 30 of the Book of Reports the purpose of which was to receive a Progress 
and Update report and the Planned Audit Fee letter from Grant Thornton (External Auditors). 
 
The Chairman invited Karen Murray from Grant Thornton to present the Progress and 
Update report and Planned Audit Fee letter.   
 
Comments and questions were raised in respect of the following issues:- 
 

 Value For Money – financial pressures identified within the key risk register 

 Policy Options 

 Potential future borrowing 

 Highways network Asset (Audit Fee letter) 
 
The Borough Treasurer reported that the Policy Options report would be considered at the 
Council meeting on 20 July 2016. 
 
 
RESOLVED That the Progress and Update report and the Planned Audit Fee letter 

be noted. 
 
 

 
7   GRANT THORNTON ASSURANCE LETTER  

 
  

Consideration was given to the report of the Borough Treasurer as contained on pages 59 –  
64 of the Book of Reports which provided a proposed response to a letter from the External 
Auditors requesting information on how the Committee gains assurance over management 
processes and arrangements.   
 
The Chairman raised questions regarding assurances in relation to cash handling and staff 
undertaking journal transactions.  The Borough Treasurer provided a response to the 
Committee to these items.   
 
 
RESOLVED That the proposed response to the letter as set out in Appendix 2 to 

the report be approved. 
 
 

 
8   INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY - QUARTERLY UPDATE  

 
 Consideration was given to the report of the Borough Treasurer as circulated and contained 

on pages 31 – 38 of the Book of Reports which advised of progress against the 2016/17 
Internal Audit Plan. 
 
The Internal Audit Manager informed Members that the shortfall in resources arising from 
the vacancy referred to in the report had been addressed through an agency placement to 
secure progress against the current plan. 
 

Page 66



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE HELD: Tuesday, 28 June 2016 
 

 

Comments and questions were raised in respect of the following issue:- 
 

 Universal Credit – Council tax/housing benefit suspension and effect of associated 
arrears on Council revenue/alternative payment arrangements. 

 
 
RESOLVED  That progress in the year to date be noted. 
 
 

 
9   INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY - ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16  

 
 The Borough Treasurer presented the 2015-16 Internal Audit Annual Report as circulated 

and contained on pages 39 – 44 of the Book of Reports. 
 
Questions and comments were raised in relation to the following issues:- 
 

 Future external assessments of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 
(QAIP) 

 Work streams within the current Internal Audit Plan to be completed 
 
The Internal Audit Manager indicated that the 2015/16 work streams contained in the table 
in the report would be completed in due course. 
 
RESOLVED  That the Internal Audit Annual Report for 2015-16 be noted. 
 
 

 
10   ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

 
 Consideration was given to the Council’s Annual Governance Statement for 2015/16 as 

circulated and contained on pages 45 – 54 of the Book of Reports. 
 
RESOLVED That the Annual Governance Statement 2015/2016 as set out in 

Appendix 1 to the report, be approved and commended to the Leader 
and Chief Executive for signature. 

 
 

 
11   STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS  

 
 The Borough Treasurer provided details on the preparation of the Statement of Accounts for 

the year ended 31 March 2016 as circulated and contained on pages 55 & 56 of the Book of 
Reports. 
 
RESOLVED A. That the report be noted. 
 

B. That a further report to approve the audited statement of accounts be 
submitted to the next meeting of the Committee. 

 
 
 
 

Page 67



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE HELD: Tuesday, 28 June 2016 
 

 

 
12   REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT QUARTERLY MONITORING 

OF USE OF POWERS  
 

 In relation to the quarterly monitoring of activity under the Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) the Borough Solicitor reported that there was no relevant activity to 
bring to the attention of the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED  That the update be noted. 

 
13   WORK PROGRAMME  

 
 Consideration was given to the Committee’s Work Programme as set out at page 57 of the 

Book of Reports. 
 
 
RESOLVED A. That the Work Programme be noted. 
 

B. That Members consider items for future training sessions for 
consideration at the next meeting of the Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

……….……………………….. 
Chairman 

 

Page 68



 

 
 

 
 
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE: 
 
27 September 2016 

 
 

 
Report of: Borough Treasurer 
 
Contact for further information:  Marc Taylor (Extn. 5092)  
               (E-mail: marc.taylor@westlancs.gov.uk) 
 

 
SUBJECT: GRANT THORNTON - AUDIT PLAN FINDINGS REPORT 
 

 
Wards affected: Borough wide 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1  To receive a report from our External Auditors setting out their findings on the 

audit of the accounts and value for money. 
 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the report be noted. 
 

 
3.0 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 A report on the Statement of Accounts for 2015-16 was considered by this 

Committee at its meeting in June. The unaudited accounts were published on the 
Council’s website at this time and an advert issued making Members of the 
Public aware of their rights to inspect the accounts. 

 
3.2 During the Summer months a team of auditors from Grant Thornton has spent 

several weeks auditing the accounts and reviewing the Statement. The External 
Auditors are now required to present their findings from this audit in a report to 
Members.  

 
 
4.0 AUDIT FINDINGS 
 
4.1 At the time of writing this report the external auditors had almost completed their 

audit on the accounts, and the results of this work are set out in the Appendix. 
This shows that it is expected that the Council will receive an unqualified opinion 
on its accounts and provides a positive conclusion on value for money.  

 

Page 69

Agenda Item 6



4.2 Representatives of Grant Thornton will attend the Committee meeting to present 
their findings and answer any questions that Members may have on the audit of 
the accounts. 

 
 
5.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS/COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
 
5.1 There are no significant sustainability impacts associated with this report and, in 

particular, no significant impact on crime and disorder. The report has no 
significant links with the Sustainable Community Strategy. 

 
 
6.0 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
6.1 The audit of the Statement of Accounts is part of the overall control framework 

that is designed to ensure that the Council properly accounts for the use of its 
assets and resources. 

 
 

 
 
 
Background Documents 
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local 
Government Act 1972) to this Report. 
 
 
Equality Impact Assessment 
The decision does not have any direct impact on members of the public, employees, 
elected members and / or stakeholders.  Therefore no Equality Impact Assessment is 
required. 
 
 

Appendices 
Appendix – Grant Thornton Audit Findings Report (to follow) 
 

 

  
 

Page 70



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  

The Audit Findings 

for  West Lancashire Borough Council 

 

Year ended 31 March 2016 

Karen Murray 

Engagement Lead  

T 0161 234 6364 

E  karen.l.murray@uk.gt.com 

Georgia Jones 

Engagement Manager 

T 0161 215 6383 

E  georgia.s.jones@uk.gt.com 

Stuart Basnett 

In Charge Auditor 

T 0151 224 7232 

E  stuart.h.basnett@uk.gt.com 

September 2016 

Cover page 

P
age 71



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  | Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council |  2015/16  2 

Chartered Accountants 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.  

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and 

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details.. 

This Audit Findings report highlights the key findings arising from the audit for the benefit of those charged with governance (in the case of West Lancashire Borough 

Council, the Audit and Governance Committee), as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260, the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and 

the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice. Its contents have been discussed with officers.  

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.  

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed primarily for the 

purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and giving a value for money conclusion. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all 

areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify any control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be 

relied upon to disclose defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might 

identify. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this 

report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose. 

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Karen Murray 

Engagement Lead 

Grant Thornton UK LLP  

4 Hardman Square, 

Spinningfields , 

Manchester  

M3 3EB 

T +44 (0) 161 953 6900 

www.grant-thornton.co.uk  

19 September 2016 

Dear Members of the Audit and Governance Committee 

Audit Findings for West Lancashire Borough Council for the year ending 31 March 2016 

West Lancashire Borough Council 

52 Derby Street 

Ormskirk 

L39 2DF 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

 

The disclaimer paragraph 

should not be edited or 

removed as this is there for 

the auditor’s protection and 

its absence could possibly 

weaken our defence if a 

complaint or claim is made. 

 

 

 

Letter 

P
age 72



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  3 

Contents 

Section Page 

1. Executive summary 4 

2. Audit findings 8 

3. Value for Money  25 

4. Fees, non-audit services and independence 30 

5. Communication of audit matters 32 

Appendices 

A  Action plan 

B  Audit opinion 

Contents 

P
age 73



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  

Section 1: Executive summary 

01. Executive summary 

02. Audit findings 

03. Value for Money 

04.  Fees, non audit services and independence 

 

05. Communication of audit matters 

 

P
age 74



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  5 

Executive summary 

Overall review of 

financial 

statements 

Purpose of this report 

This report highlights the key issues affecting the results of West Lancashire 

Borough Council ('the Council') and the preparation of the Council's financial 

statements for the year ended 31 March 2016. It is also used to report our audit 

findings to management and those charged with governance in accordance with 

the requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260,  and 

the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 ('the Act').   

 

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we 

are required to report whether, in our opinion, the Council's financial statements 

give  a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council and its income 

and expenditure for the year and whether they have been properly prepared in 

accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. .  

 

We are also required consider other information published together with the 

audited financial statements, whether it is consistent with the financial statements 

and in line with required guidance. 

 

We are required to carry out sufficient work to satisfy ourselves on whether the 

Council has made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources ('the value for money (VFM) conclusion').  

 

Auditor Guidance Note 7 (AGN07) clarifies our reporting requirements in the 

Code and the Act. We are required to provide a conclusion whether in all 

significant respects, the Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure 

value for money through economic, efficient and effective use of its resources for 

the relevant period. 

 

The Act also details the following additional powers and duties for  local 

government auditors, which we are required to report to you if applied: 

• a public interest report if we identify any matter that comes to our attention in 

the course of the audit that in our opinion should be considered by the Council 

or brought to the public's attention (section 24 of the Act);  

• written recommendations which should be considered by the Council and 

responded to publicly (section 24 of the Act); 

• application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary 

to law (section 28 of the Act);   

• issue of an advisory notice (section 29 of the Act); and 

• application for judicial review (section 31 of the Act)   

 

We are also required to give electors the opportunity to raise questions about 

the accounts and consider and decide upon objections received in relation to 

the accounts under sections 26 and 27 of the Act.  

 

Introduction 

In the conduct of our audit we have not had to alter or change our audit 

approach, which we communicated to you in our Audit Plan dated 22 March 

2016.  

 

Our audit is substantially complete although we are finalising our procedures in 

the following areas:  

• review of the final version of the financial statements 

• obtaining and reviewing the management letter of representation 

• updating our post balance sheet events review, to the date of signing the 

opinion 

  

We received draft financial statements and accompanying working papers at the 

commencement of our work, in accordance with the agreed timetable. 

 

 

P
age 75



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  6 

Executive summary 

Overall review of 

financial 

statements 

Key audit and financial reporting issues 

Financial statements opinion 

We did not identify any adjustments affecting the Council's reported financial 

position (details of our findings are recorded in section two of this report).  The 

draft financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 recorded Cost of 

Services net expenditure of £13,002k; there has been no change to this and the 

audited financial statements show Cost of Services  net expenditure of £13,002k.  

 

We recommended a number of adjustments to improve the presentation of the 

financial statements. 

 

The accounts presented for audit were of good quality and were supported by 

detailed working papers in line with our agreed requirements. 

 

Further details are set out in section two of this report. 

 

We anticipate providing a unqualified audit opinion in respect of the financial 

statements (see Appendix B). 

 

Other financial statement responsibilities 

As well as an opinion on the financial statements, we are required to give an 

opinion on whether other information published together with the audited 

financial statements is consistent with the financial statements. This includes: 

 if the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure 

requirements set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is misleading or 

inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. 

 

Controls 

Roles and responsibilities 

The Council's management is responsible for the identification, assessment, 

management and monitoring of risk, and for developing, operating and 

monitoring the system of internal control. 

 

Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of 

control weakness.  However, where, as part of our testing, we identify any 

control weaknesses, we report these to the Council.  

 

Findings 

Our work has not identified any control weaknesses which we wish to highlight 

for your attention.    

  

Further details are provided within section two of this report. 

P
age 76



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  7 

Executive summary 

Overall review of 

financial 

statements 

Value for Money 

Based on our review, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, the Council 

had proper arrangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness 

in its use of resources. 

 

Further detail of our work on Value for Money are set out in section three of this 

report. 

 

Other statutory powers and duties 

We have not identified any issues that have required us to apply our statutory 

powers and duties under the Act 

 

Grant certification 

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code, we are required to certify the 

Council's Housing Benefit subsidy claim on behalf of the Department for Work 

and Pensions. At present our work on this claim is in progress and is not due to be 

finalised until 30 November 2016. We will report the outcome of this certification 

work through a separate report to the Audit and Governance Committee. 

 

The way forward 

Matters arising from the financial statements audit and our review of the Council's 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources have been discussed with the Borough Treasurer. 

 

We have made a number of recommendations, which are set out in the action plan 

at Appendix A. Recommendations have been discussed and agreed with the 

Borough Treasurer and the finance team. 

 

 

 

Acknowledgement 

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the 

assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit. 
 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

September 2016 

P
age 77



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  

Section 2: Audit findings 

01. Executive summary 

02. Audit findings 

03. Value for Money 

04.  Fees, non audit services and independence 

05.  Communication of audit matters 

P
age 78



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  9 

Audit findings 

In performing our audit, we apply the concept of materiality, following the requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 320: Materiality in 

planning and performing an audit. The standard states that 'misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements'.  

As we reported in our audit plan, we determined overall materiality to be £1,726k (being 2% of the gross expenditure budget). This figure was determined at the planning 

stage using budget figures for 2015/16. We have considered whether this level remained appropriate during the course of the audit and revised our materiality to £1,579k on 

receipt of the draft accounts (this being 2% of actual gross revenue expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

We also set an amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial and would not need to be accumulated or reported to those charged with governance because we 

would not expect that the accumulated effect of such amounts would have a material impact on the financial statements. We have defined the amount below which 

misstatements would be clearly trivial to be £79k.  

As we reported in our audit plan, we identified the following items where we decided that separate materiality levels were appropriate. These remain the same as reported in 

our audit plan. 

Balance/transaction/disclosure Explanation Materiality level 

Disclosures of officers' remuneration, salary 

bandings and exit packages in notes to the 

statements 

Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for 

them to be made.  

We will ensure these disclosures are correctly 

disclosed subject to rounding and banding 

classification 

Disclosure of auditors' remuneration in notes to the 

statements 

Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for 

them to be disclosed 

We will ensure this is correctly stated, subject to 

rounding.  

Related Party Transactions Due to public interest in these disclosures. We will determine materiality taking account of the 

size of the third party. 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

Materiality 

P
age 79



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  10 

Audit findings against significant risks 

  Risks identified in our audit plan Work completed Assurance gained and issues arising 

1.  The revenue cycle includes fraudulent 

transactions 

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a presumed risk that 

revenue may be misstated due to the improper 

recognition of revenue. 

  

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor 

concludes that there is no risk of material misstatement 

due to fraud relating to revenue recognition. 

 

For this Council, we have concluded that the greatest 

risk of material misstatement relates to the occurrence/ 

existence of expenditure and payables. 

 

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the 

nature of the revenue streams at West Lancashire Borough 

Council, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising 

from revenue recognition for income and receivables can be 

rebutted, because: 

 

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition 

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very 

limited 

• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, 

including West Lancashire Borough Council, mean that all 

forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable. 

 

We consider the risk for revenue recognition relates to 

occurrence/existence of expenditure and payables. 

 

Work completed: 

• Identification and documentation of the processes and 

controls in place around expenditure at the Council 

• Testing of journal entries, control environment review and 

walkthrough 

• Testing of non pay expenditure within 'Operating 

Expenses'  

• Review of unusual significant transactions 

 

Our audit work has not identified any issues in 

respect of revenue recognition. 

Audit findings 

Significant findings 

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, either due to size 

or nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement 

uncertainty" (ISA (UK&I) 315).  

In this section we detail our response to the significant risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.  As we noted in our plan, there are two 

presumed significant risks which are applicable to all audits under auditing standards. 

P
age 80



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  11 

Audit findings against significant risks 

  Risks identified in our audit plan Work completed Assurance gained and issues arising 

2.  Management over-ride of controls 

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 it is presumed  that the risk of  

management  over-ride of controls is present in all 

entities. 

 

 Review of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions 

made by management 

 Testing of journal entries 

 Review of unusual significant transactions 

Our audit work has not identified any evidence of 

management over-ride of controls. In particular 

the findings of our review of journal controls and 

testing of journal entries has not identified any 

significant issues.  

We set out later in this section of the report our 

work and findings on key accounting estimates 

and judgements.  

3. Valuation of property, plant and equipment 

 

The Council revalues its assets on a rolling basis over a 

five year period. The Code requires that the Council 

ensures that  the carrying value at the balance sheet 

date is not materially different from current value. This 

represents a significant estimate by management in the 

financial statements. 

 

The Council is carrying out a valuation of its housing 

stock during 2015/16. This represents a significant 

estimate by management in the financial statements. 

 Review of management's processes and assumptions for 

the calculation of the estimate. 

 Review of the competence, expertise and objectivity of 

any management experts used. 

 Review of the instructions issued to valuation experts and 

the scope of their work 

 Discussions with the valuer about the basis on which the 

valuation is carried out and challenge of the key 

assumptions. 

 Review and challenge of the information used by the 

valuer to ensure it is robust and consistent with our 

understanding. 

 Testing of revaluations made during the year to ensure 

they are input correctly into the Council's asset register. 

 Evaluation of the assumptions made by management for 

those assets not revalued during the year and how 

management has satisfied themselves that these are not 

materially different to current value 

Our audit work did not identify any issue sin 

relation to the valuation of property, plant and 

equipment. 

Audit findings 

Significant findings 

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, either due to size 

or nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement 

uncertainty" (ISA (UK&I) 315).  

In this section we detail our response to the significant risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.  As we noted in our plan, there are two 

presumed significant risks which are applicable to all audits under auditing standards. 

P
age 81



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  12 

Audit findings against significant risks continued 
  Risks identified in our audit plan Work completed Assurance gained and issues arising 

4. Valuation of pension fund net liability 

The Council's pension fund asset and liability as 

reflected in its balance sheet represent significant 

estimates in the financial statements. 

 

 Identification of the controls put in place by management to 

ensure the pension fund liability is not materially misstated.  

 Assessed whether these controls were implemented as 

expected and whether they are sufficient to mitigate the risk of 

material misstatement. 

 Reviewed the competence, expertise and objectivity of the 

actuary who carried out your pension fund valuation.  

 Gained an understanding of the basis on which the valuation is 

carried out. 

 Undertook procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the 

actuarial assumptions made.  

 reviewed the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability 

and disclosures in notes to the financial statements with the 

actuarial report from your actuary. 

Our audit work did not identify any issue sin 

relation to the valuation of the pension fund net 

liability. 

Audit findings 

Significant findings 

P
age 82



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  13 

Audit findings against other risks 

Transaction cycle Description of risk Work completed Assurance gained & issues arising 

Operating expenses Creditors understated or not 

recorded in the correct period 

(Operating expenses 

understated) 

 Identification and documentation of the processes 

and controls in place around operating expenditure 

at the Council 

 Walkthrough of a sample item to confirm our 

understanding 

 Substantive testing of a sample of non-pay 

expenditure  

 Reconciliation of accounts payable systems to 

general ledger and financial statements 

 Review of accruals process and substantive testing 

of a sample of manual accruals and creditor 

balances 

 Sample testing of payments around the year-end 

 Review and testing of other items of expenditure 

and disclosures including MRP and members' 

allowances 

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in 

relation to the risk identified. 

Audit findings 

Significant findings 

(continued) 

In this section we detail our response to the other risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.   

P
age 83



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  14 

Audit findings against other risks 

Transaction cycle Description of risk Work completed Assurance gained & issues arising 

Employee remuneration Employee remuneration 

accruals understated 

(Remuneration expenses not 

correct) 

 Identification and documentation of the processes 

and controls in place around employee 

remuneration at the Council 

 Walkthrough of a sample item to confirm our 

understanding 

 Substantive testing of a sample of payroll 

transactions 

 Reconciliation of payroll data to general ledger and 

financial statements 

 Substantive analytical review of payroll costs for the 

year 

 Substantive testing of senior officer remuneration 

disclosures 

 Review and testing of other pay disclosures 

including exit packages notes. 

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in 

relation to the risk identified. 

Welfare expenditure 

 

Welfare benefit expenditure 

improperly computed 

• Identification and documentation of the processes 

and controls in place around welfare benefit 

payments at the Council 

• Walkthrough of a sample item to confirm our 

understanding 

• Substantive testing of claimant eligibility for a 

sample of welfare benefit payments  

• Reconciliation between Northgate welfare benefits 

system, the general ledger and the financial 

statements and supporting notes 

• Additional substantive testing on selected welfare 

benefit sample 

• Testing of Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim using the 

Audit Commission HB COUNT approach. 

Our identification and documentation of the processes 

and controls and our walkthrough of the system 

confirmed that controls were operating as expected. At 

this point we downgraded our risk assessment of the 

system and carried out the substantive testing set out 

aside.  

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in 

relation to the risk identified. 

 

Audit findings 

Significant findings 

(continued) 

In this section we detail our response to the other risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.   

P
age 84



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  15 

Accounting policies, estimates and judgements 

Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment 

Revenue recognition The Council's accounting policy for income is 

as follows: 

 

Revenue due from customers is recognised as 

income at the date the goods or services are 

provided and where it is probable that the 

income will be received. 
 

Where income and expenditure have been 

recognised but cash has not been received or 

paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant 

amount is recorded in the balance sheet. 

Where debts may not be settled, the balance of 

debtors is written down and a charge made to 

revenue for the income that might not be 

collected. 

The Council's accounting policy is in line with the requirements of 

the CIPFA code and is adequately disclosed in the accounts. 

 

Our testing of income, grants income and debtors confirmed that 

the Council is recognising income in line with its accounting 

policy. 

Green 

 

Judgements and estimates Key estimates and judgements include: 

• Useful life of PPE 

• Revaluations 

• Valuation of pension fund net liability 

• Impairments 

• Accruals 

• Provision for NDR appeals 

 

 

 

 

We have:  

• reviewed the estimates and judgements made in the accounts as 

part of our work with no matters arising.  

• sample tested valuations undertaken in the year to confirm they 

are appropriately included in the statement of accounts.  

• reviewed the calculation of your provision for business rate 

appeals. We identified there was no amount included for 

unlodged appeals. This together with confirmation from the 

Valuation Office Agency of the settlement of one case means 

that overall the provision is overstated by £184k. Further detail is 

given about this issue on page 20. 

• reviewed assumptions and information in relation to the pension 

fund liability to assess reasonableness and check the liability 

figures are accurately reflected in the accounts. 

 

Amber 

Audit findings 

Significant findings 

– accounting 

policies# 

In this section we report on our consideration of accounting policies, in particular revenue recognition policies,  and key estimates and judgements made and included 

with the Council's financial statements.   

P
age 85



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  16 

Accounting policies, estimates and judgements continued 

Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment 

Going concern The Borough Treasurer s151 officer has a 

reasonable expectation that the services 

provided by the Council will continue for the 

foreseeable future.  Members concur with this 

view. For this reason, the Council  continue to 

adopt the going concern basis in preparing 

the financial statements. 

We have reviewed the Council's assessment and are satisfied with 

management's assessment that the going concern basis is 

appropriate for the 2015/16 financial statements.  

Green 

Other accounting policies We have reviewed the Council's policies against the requirements of 

the CIPFA Code of Practice.  

We identified that there was no accounting policy in relation to fair 

value. This is a new requirement for 2015/16 and the accounts have 

now been amended to include this.  

The Council's remaining accounting policies are appropriate and 

consistent with previous years. 

 

Amber 

 

Assessment 

Red  Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators 

Amber  Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure  

Green  Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient 

Audit findings 

Significant findings 

– accounting 

policies# 

.   

P
age 86



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  17 

Other communication requirements 

  Issue Commentary 

1. Matters in relation to fraud  We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit and Governance Committee.  

 We have not been made aware of any incidents in the period. 

 No other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures. 

2. Matters in relation to related 

parties 

 From the work we carried out, we have not identified any related party transactions which have not been disclosed. 

3. Matters in relation to laws and 

regulations 

 You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations.  

 We have not identified any incidences from our audit work. 

4. Written representations  A standard letter of representation has been requested from the Council. 

5. Confirmation requests from 

third parties  

 We have previously requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to  your bank and those bodies with 

which you hold investments. 

 We received your bank letter and external confirmation for all but one of your investments.  

 For the one investment where requests were not received we undertook alternative procedures, including agreeing the amounts to 

records held by the Council. 

6. Disclosures  Page 24 sets out the disclosure issues we have identified.  

Audit findings 

Other 

communication 

requirements# 

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance. 

P
age 87



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  18 

Other communication requirements continued 

  Issue Commentary 

7. Matters on which we report by 

exception 

We have not identified any issues where we would be required to report by exception in the following areas: 

 

•  If the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is 

misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. 

 

• The information in the Narrative Report is materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements or our 

knowledge of the Council acquired in the course of performing our audit, or otherwise misleading. 

8. Specified procedures for 

Whole of Government 

Accounts  

We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation 

pack under WGA group audit instructions. The NAO sets a threshold above which detailed procedures are required. We are not required to 
undertake any work as the Council does not exceed the threshold. 

Audit findings 

Other 

communication 

requirements# 

P
age 88



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  19 

Internal controls 

The purpose of an audit is to express an opinion on the financial statements. 

Our audit included consideration of internal controls relevant to the preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. We considered and walked through the internal controls 

for Employee Remuneration, Operating Expenses, Property Plant and Equipment and Welfare Benefits as set out above.  

The matters that we identified during the course of our audit  are set out in the table below. These and other recommendations, together with management responses, 

are included in the action plan attached at Appendix A. 

  Assessment Issue and risk Recommendations 

2. Amber  The Borough Treasurer has access rights to raise journals. 

We have tested a sample of these journals raised by the 

Borough Treasurer and have not identified any issues. 

However, allowing senior management to raise journals 

means there is a possible risk of manipulation of the 

Council's financial position. We understand the Borough 

Treasurer will review his access rights. 

 Consider the risks presented by allowing the Borough Treasurer to have access right 

to post journals. 

Audit findings 

Assessment  

Red Significant deficiency – risk of significant misstatement 

Amber Deficiency – risk of inconsequential misstatement 

Internal controls 
 

Guidance note 

Issue and risk must include a 

description of the deficiency and 

an explanation of its potential 

effect. In explaining the potential 

effect it is not necessary to 

quantify. 

 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

 

The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during the course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient 

importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing standards. 

P
age 89



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  20 

Adjusted misstatements 

Audit findings 

 

Guidance note 

The table is available in the 

‘Audit Findings template’ on the 

Mercury tab in Excel. 

Tab: Adjusted misstatements 

Adjusted 

misstatements 

Detail Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure 

Statement 

£'000 

Balance Sheet 

£'000 

Impact on total net 

expenditure 

£000 

1 We identified that the report used to calculate Housing 

Benefit overpayments had used incorrect parameters and the 

figure for overpayments and the bad debt provision for these 

overpayments were overstated by £119k. Therefore, the 

debtors figure within Note 18 incorrect. Note 18 has been 

adjusted to correct this. This has no overall effect on the 

primary financial statements. 

Nil Nil Nil 

Overall impact Nil Nil Nil 

A number of adjustments to the draft accounts have been identified during the audit process. We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged 

with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management. The table below summarises the adjustments arising from the audit which have 

been processed by management. 
 

Impact of adjusted misstatements 

All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net expenditure for the year.   

P
age 90



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  21 

Unadjusted misstatements 

Audit findings 

 

Guidance note 

The table is available in the 

‘Audit Findings template’ on the 

Mercury tab in Excel. 

Tab: Adjusted misstatements 

Adjusted 

misstatements 

Detail Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 

Statement 

£'000 

Balance Sheet 

£'000 

Reason for not adjusting 

1 The accounts include a provision for the potential cost of 

NNDR appeals. Our review of the provision identified that 

it did not include an amount for unlodged appeals - that is 

an estimate of the potential cost of any appeals not yet 

received.  Officers have now calculated this as £229k and 

the provision is understated by this amount. 

Since the drafting of the accounts, officers have received 

confirmation from the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) of 

the outcome of one of the significant appeals. Officers 

have applied this result to the current estimated provision 

and as a result the provision is overstated by £413k. 

Taking these two items together, the total provision is 

overstated by £184k. (The Council's share of this in terms 

of it impacting on the CIES would be 40% i.e. £73.6k). 

74 (74) This items has not been adjusted 

in the accounts because the 

provision is overstated rather than 

understated so results in a more 

prudent position for the council. 

The table below provides details of adjustments identified during the audit which have not been made within the final set of financial statements.  The Audit and 

Governance Committee  is required to approve management's proposed treatment of all items recorded within the table below: 

P
age 91



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  22 

Unadjusted misstatements 

Audit findings 

 

Guidance note 

The table is available in the 

‘Audit Findings template’ on the 

Mercury tab in Excel. 

Tab: Adjusted misstatements 

Adjusted 

misstatements 

Detail Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 

Statement 

£'000 

Balance Sheet 

£'000 

Reason for not adjusting 

2 Accounting issue carried forward from 14-15 

The Council has not charged depreciation on its 

Infrastructure Assets. We estimate the omitted charge to be 

understated by approximately £30,475 (if for example 

Infrastructure assets had a Useful Estimated Life (UEL) of 

40 years). This is a trivial amount.  

If we apply a sensitivity analysis of the UEL being different 

for individual assets and the average UEL being 10 years 

this gives depreciation understatement of £40,633, and a 

UEL of 50 years of £24,380. Both amounts are also trivial. 

30 (30) The Council’s policy is not to 

depreciate infrastructure assets 

as the amounts involved would 

be classified as trivial. However we 

would recommend the policy be 

reviewed. 

 

The table below provides details of adjustments identified during the audit which have not been made within the final set of financial statements.  The Audit and 

Governance Committee  is required to approve management's proposed treatment of all items recorded within the table below: 

P
age 92



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council |  2015/16  23 

Impact of  uncorrected items in the prior year 
  

Audit findings 

Impact of 

uncorrected 

misstatements in 

the prior year 

Detail Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure 

Statement 

£'000 

Balance Sheet 

£'000 

Reason for not adjusting 

1 Disclosure of Depreciation in PPE Note 11a is inconsistent 

with Codes model financial statements and disclosures as no 

separate annual depreciation charge is stated. The lines 

'Depreciation written out to surplus/deficit on provision of 

services' and 'Depreciation written out to the revaluation 

reserve' have been used to document the depreciation 

charge. Our audit testing in the year confirmed that 

underlying accounting entries are correct. 

Nil Nil A detailed examination of this 

position will take place as part 

of the process for producing 

the current year’s accounts 

2 Note 16 Financial Instruments. Although the note references 

to various items and other notes in the accounts. Better 

clarity of presentation for the reader could be achieved if 

figures were collated within the note as per the model 

financial statements set out in the Code. 

Nil Nil The Council has a relatively 

straightforward set of financial 

instruments and consequently 

believe that the disclosures 

included in the statement 

enable the reader to obtain a 

clear understanding of this 

position while avoiding 

unnecessary complexity. 

3 The Council has not charged depreciation on its 

Infrastructure Assets. Based on discussions with officers we 

estimate the omitted charge to approximately £30k. 

30 (30) The Council’s policy is not to 

depreciate infrastructure assets 

as the amounts involved would 

be classified as trivial 

P
age 93



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  24 

Misclassifications and disclosure changes 

Audit findings 

 

Guidance note 

The table is available in the 

‘Audit Findings template’ on the 

Mercury tab in Excel. 

Tab: Adjusted misstatements 

Adjusted 

misstatements 

Adjustment type Value 

£'000 

Account balance Impact on the financial statements 

1 Disclosure New requirements around fair value disclosures are required this year 

with the implementation of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. We 

identified there was scope to improve the disclosures in relation to fair 

value within the financial statements to ensure the accounts are fully 

compliant with requirements. The accounts have been amended to 

incorporate key disclosures and further review will be undertaken for 

the 2016/17 accounts. 

2 Disclosure Accounting issue carried forward from 14-15 

The disclosure of Depreciation in PPE Note 11a is inconsistent with 

the model financial statements and disclosures as set out in the Code 

because no separate annual depreciation charge is stated. The lines 

'Depreciation written out to surplus/deficit on provision of services' 

and 'Depreciation written out to the revaluation reserve' have been 

used to document the depreciation charge. Our audit testing in the year 

confirmed that underlying accounting entries are correct. 

3 Disclosure A small number of other disclosure amendments have been identified 

and made to the accounts to ensure they fully comply with the 

requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting. 

4 Other We identified a small number of trivial errors which we have discussed 

with management to ensure they are aware of these and can address 

them going forward. 

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.  

 

P
age 94



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  

Section 3: Value for Money 

01. Executive summary 

02. Audit findings 

03. Value for Money 

05.  Communication of audit matters 

04.  Fees, non-audit services and independence 

P
age 95



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  26 

Value for Money 

Overall review of 

financial 

statements 

 

 

 

The Council has historically managed its finances well and has consistently achieved savings 
targets. The Council achieved a balanced budget for 2015/16. 

The Council did initially have budget gaps in the 2016/17 GRA of £1.571m and the 
2016/17 HRA of around £1.4m to fund. Savings have been identified to address these 
gaps, however, the Council has identified budget gaps in the later years of the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy of £1.437m in 2017/18, £1.562m in 2018/19, £0.473m in 
2019/20. 

Addressing this shortfall is dependent on a number of factors and there are still significant 
savings to be identified in order to be able to meet forecast expenditure levels. 

We identified risks in respect of specific areas of proper arrangements using the 
guidance contained in AGN03. 

We have continued our review of relevant documents up to the date of giving 
our report, and have not identified any further significant risks where we need 
to perform further work. 

We carried out further work only in respect of the significant risks we identified 
from our initial and ongoing risk assessment. Where our consideration of the 
significant risks determined that arrangements were not operating effectively, we 
have used the examples of proper arrangements from AGN 03 to explain the 
gaps in proper arrangements that we have reported in our VFM conclusion. 

Background 

We are required by section 21 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
('the Act') and the NAO Code of Audit Practice ('the Code') to satisfy 
ourselves that the Council has put in place proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as 
the Value for Money (VFM) conclusion.  

We are required to carry out sufficient work to satisfy ourselves that proper 
arrangements are in place at the Council. The Act and NAO guidance state 
that for local government bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion on 
whether the Council has put proper arrangements in place.  

In carrying out this work, we are required to follow the NAO's Auditor 
Guidance Note 3 (AGN 03) issued in November 2015. AGN 03 identifies 
one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:  

In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took 
properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable 
outcomes for taxpayers and local people.  

AGN03 provides examples of proper arrangements against three sub-criteria 
but specifically states that these are not separate criteria for assessment 
purposes and that auditors are not required to reach a distinct judgement 
against each of these.  

Risk assessment  

We carried out an initial risk assessment in April 2016 and identified the 
following significant risks, which we communicated to you in our Audit and 
Governance Committee Progress and Update Report at the June committee:  

 

 

P
age 96



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  27 

Significant qualitative aspects 

AGN 03 requires us to disclose our views on significant qualitative aspects of the 

Council's arrangements for delivering economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

We have focused our work on the significant risks that we identified in the Council's 

arrangements.. Our main considerations were: 

• a review of the budget outturn for 2015-16 and the consideration of any issue 

which may impact on council finances in the near future 

• a review of the partnerships the council has and is developing in order to 

continue to deliver services in a tightening financial position 

• a review of key documents and discussion of issues with key officers.  

We have set out more detail on the risks we identified, the results of the work we 

performed and the conclusions we drew from this work later in this section. 

Overall conclusion 

Based on the work we performed to address the significant risks, we concluded that: 

• the Council had proper arrangements in all significant respects to ensure it 

delivered value for money in its use of resources. The text of our report, which 

confirms this can be found at Appendix B. 

 

Value for Money 

P
age 97



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  28 

Key findings 

We set out below our key findings against the significant risks we identified through our initial risk assessment and further risks identified through our ongoing review of 

documents.  

 
Significant risk Work to address Findings and conclusions 

Financial Resilience 

 

The Council has historically managed its 

finances well and has consistently achieved 

savings targets. The Council achieved a 

balanced budget for 2015/16. 

 

The Council did initially have budget gaps in 

the 2016/17 GRA of £1.571m and the 

2016/17 HRA of around £1.4m to fund. 

Savings have been identified to address 

these gaps, however, the Council has 

identified budget gaps in the later years of 

the Medium Term Financial Strategy of 

£1.437m in 2017/18, £1.562m in 2018/19, 

£0.473m in 2019/20. 

 

Addressing this shortfall is dependent on a 

number of factors and there are still 

significant savings to be identified in order 

to be able to meet forecast expenditure 

levels. 

Review of the budget setting process for 2015-

16 and how the outturn was monitored through 

the year. 

 

Review of the medium term financial plan 

through discussion with key officers. 

 

Review of the council's partnerships through 

discussion with key officers. 

The Council has managed its finances carefully through 2015-16 in order to produce 

a positive year end outturn. it has continued this approach into 2016-17 so that the  

savings required to deliver a balanced budget are being monitored as the year 

progresses. This will need to continue through the remainder of he year in order to 

ensure that planned savings are being delivered or that appropriate action is taken 

to address any slippage, in order to achieve the budgeted outturn in 2016-17. 

 

The Council continues to forecast that it will face significant financial challenges in 

the period to 2019/20. The latest update to the Medium Term Financial Strategy 

continues to predicts a gap of £3..472m in total over the next three years. The 

Council is now working to identify further savings and efficiencies to address the 

gaps.  

 

As in recent years, policy options to meet the savings gap are identified for review 

and approval by the Council. Where policy option do not impact on front line 

services these have been considered and approved by the Council. Where 

proposed options may impact on services the Council consults with the local 

community. 

 

As part of it's financial planning, the Council has looked to find innovative solutions 

to the financial issues faced. An example of this is the project to fit solar panels to 

council houses. The Council has also sought to identify and put in place a range of 

partnerships across the local area in order to foster closer working relationships for 

the benefit of the community. These partnerships include strategic partnerships for 

example with Lancashire County Council, Liverpool City Region and community 

partnerships for example Active West Lancashire set up to improve healthy 

lifestyles and Ageing Well Partnership set up to try and provide greater co-

ordination of services for older people. The Council is demonstrating a willingness to 

explore new and creative ways of working in partnership in order to deliver services 

in times of increasing financial pressure. 

 

On that basis we concluded that the risk was sufficiently mitigated and the Council 

has proper arrangements in place. 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

Value for Money 

P
age 98



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  29 

Value for money 

Significant difficulties in undertaking our work 

We did not identify any significant difficulties in undertaking our work on your 

arrangements which we wish to draw to your attention. 

 

Significant matters discussed with management 

There were no matters where no other evidence was available or matters of such 

significance to our conclusion or that we required written representation from 

management or those charged with governance.  

 

Any other matters 

There were no other matters from our work which were significant to our 

consideration of your arrangements to secure value for money in your use of 

resources. 

  

 

 

 

P
age 99



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  

Section 4: Fees, non-audit services and independence 

01. Executive summary 

02. Audit findings 

03. Value for Money 

04. Fees, non audit services and independence 

05. Communication of audit matters 

P
age 100



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  31 

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit. 

Independence and ethics 

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence 

as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with 

the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards and therefore we confirm that we are 

independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements 

of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards. 

 

Fees for other services 

Service Fees £ 

Audit related services: 

Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts 

 

TBC 

 

Guidance note 

'Fees for other services' is to be 

used where we need to 

communicate agreed fees in 

advance of the audit.  At the 

time of preparation of the Audit 

Plan it is unlikely that full 

information as to all fees 

charged by GTI network firms 

will be available. Disclosure of 

these fees, threats to 

independence and safeguards 

will therefore be included in the 

Audit Findings report. 

 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Fees, non audit services and independence 

Fees 

Proposed fee  

£ 

Final fee   

£ 

Council audit 43,746 43,746 

Grant certification  11,195 TBC 

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 54,941 TBC 

Grant certification 

Our fees for grant certification cover only housing benefit subsidy 

certification, which falls under the remit of Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited. Fees in respect of other grant work, such as 

reasonable assurance reports, are shown under 'Fees for other 

services'. 

The proposed fees for the year were in line with the scale fee set by 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA)  

P
age 101



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  

Section 5: Communication of  audit matters 

01. Executive summary 

02. Audit findings 

03. Value for Money 

05. Communication of audit matters 

04. Other statutory powers and duties 

P
age 102



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  33 

Communication to those charged with governance 

Our communication plan 

Audit 

Plan 

Audit 

Findings 

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged 

with governance 

 

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 

and expected general content of communications 

 

Views about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 

financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising 

during the audit and written representations that have been sought 

 

Confirmation of independence and objectivity   

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence,  relationships and other matters which might  

be thought to bear on independence.  

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 

network firms, together with  fees charged  

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence 

 

 

 

Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit  

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or others 

which results in material misstatement of the financial statements 

 

Non compliance with laws and regulations  

Expected modifications to auditor's report   

Uncorrected misstatements  

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties  

Significant matters in relation to going concern  

International Standards on Auditing ISA (UK&I) 260, as well as other ISAs, prescribe 

matters which we are required to communicate with those charged with governance, 

and which we set out in the table opposite.   

The Audit Plan outlined our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, while this 

Audit Findings report presents the key issues and other matters arising from the 

audit, together with an explanation as to how these have been resolved. 

Respective responsibilities 

The Audit Findings Report has been prepared in the context of the Statement of 

Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited (http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-

appointment/) 

We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditors by the Audit 

Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public 

bodies in England at the time of our appointment. As external auditors, we have a 

broad remit covering finance and governance matters.  

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice 

('the Code') issued by the NAO (https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-

code/). Our work considers the Council's key risks when reaching our conclusions 

under the Code.  

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place 

for the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 

accounted for.  We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these 

responsibilities. 

 

 

 

 

Communication of audit matters 

P
age 103

http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/


© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  34 

Appendices 

Appendices 

P
age 104



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  35 

Appendix A: Action plan 

Priority 
High - Significant effect on control system 
Medium - Effect on control system 
Low - Best practice 

Rec 

No. Recommendation Priority Management response 

Implementation date & 

responsibility 

1 Consider the risks presented by allowing 

the Borough Treasurer to have access 

right to post journals. 

Medium Agreed September 2016 

2 The Council has not charged depreciation 

on its Infrastructure Assets. The Council’s 

policy is not to depreciate infrastructure 

assets as the amounts involved would 

be classified as trivial. However we would 

recommend the policy be reviewed. 

Low This policy will be reviewed for the 2016/17 accounts March 2017 

Appendices 

P
age 105



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  36 

Appendix B: Audit opinion 

We anticipate we will provide the Council with an unmodified audit report 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

 

Please choose option 1, 2 or 3 

and delete the slides that are 

not required. 

 

Audit opinion – 

option 1  

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WEST 

LANCASHIRE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

  

  

We have audited the financial statements of West Lancashire Borough Council (the "Authority") 

for the year ended 31 March 2016 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 

"Act"). The financial statements comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow 

Statement, the Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement 

on the Housing Revenue Account Statement, the Collection Fund and the related notes. The 

financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the 

CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 

2015/16. 

  

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 

of the Act and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and 

Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has 

been undertaken so that we might state to the members those matters we are required to state to 

them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we 

do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's 

members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

 

Respective responsibilities of the Borough Treasurer and auditor 

  

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Borough Treasurer Responsibilities, the Borough 

Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the 

financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC 

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16, which give a 

true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial 

statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and 

Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical 

Standards for Auditors 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 

  

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from 

material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of whether 

the accounting policies are appropriate to the Authority’s circumstances and have been 

consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting 

estimates made by the Borough Treasurer; and the overall presentation of the financial 

statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative 

Report and the Annual Governance Statement to identify material inconsistencies with the 

audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect 

based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of 

performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or 

inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. 

 

Opinion on financial statements 

  

In our opinion the financial statements: 

• present a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2016 and 

of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and 

• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 

Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 and applicable law. 

  

Opinion on other matters 

  

In our opinion, the other information published together with the audited financial statements in 

the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance Statement is consistent with the audited 

financial statements. 

  

Appendices 

P
age 106



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  37 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

 

Please choose option 1, 2 or 3 

and delete the slides that are 

not required. 

 

Audit opinion – 

option 1  

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

  

We are required to report to you if: 

• in our opinion the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the guidance 

included in ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: a Framework’ published by 

CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007; or 

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Act; or 

• we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Act; or 

• we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under the Act. 

  

We have nothing to report in these respects. 

 

Conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements to secure value for money through 

economic, efficient and effective use of its resources 

  

Respective responsibilities of the Authority and auditor 

  

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, 

and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 

  

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Act to be satisfied that the Authority has made 

proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are 

operating effectively. 

 

Scope of the review of the Authority's arrangements to secure value for money through 

economic, efficient and effective use of its resources 

  

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice prepared by the 

Comptroller and Auditor General as required by the Act (the "Code"), having regard to the 

guidance on the specified criteria issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 

2015, as to whether the Authority had proper  arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 

decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and 

local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined these criteria as those necessary 

for us to consider under the Code in satisfying ourselves whether the Authority put in place 

proper arrangements to secure value for money through the economic, efficient and effective use 

of its resources for the year ended 31 March 2016. 

  

We planned our work in accordance with the Code. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook 

such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether in all significant respects the 

Authority has put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money through economic, 

efficient and effective use of its resources. 

 

Conclusion  

  

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria issued by the 

Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2015, we are satisfied that in all significant 

respects the Authority has put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money through 

economic, efficient and effective use of its resources for the year ended 31 March 2016. 

  

Certificate 

  

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of the Authority in accordance with 

the requirements of the Act and the Code. 

 

Karen Murray 

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor 

  

4 Hardman Square 

Spinningfields 

Manchester 

M3 3EB 

  

Date to be confirmed (2016) 

 

Appendices 

P
age 107



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for West Lancashire Borough Council  |  2015/16  

© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights served.  

'Grant Thornton' refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton 
member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their 
clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context 
requires.  

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton 
International LTD (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate 
legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does 
not provide services to clients. GTIL, and its member firms are not 
agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for 
one another's acts or omissions.  

grant-thornton.co.uk 

Back page 

P
age 108



 

 
 

 
 
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE: 
 
27 September 2016 

 
 

 
Report of: Borough Treasurer 
 
Contact for further information:  Marc Taylor (Extn. 5092)  
               (E-mail: marc.taylor@westlancs.gov.uk) 
 

 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
 

 
Wards affected: Borough wide 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1  To approve a Letter of Representation and the Council’s annual Statement of 

Accounts. 
 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the Letter of Representation set out in Appendix 1 be endorsed. 
 
2.2 That the Statement of Accounts set out in Appendix 2 be approved. 
 
 

 
 
3.0 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 A report on the Statement of Accounts for 2015-16 was considered by this 

Committee at its meeting in June. The unaudited accounts were published on the 
Council’s website at this time and an advert issued making Members of the 
Public aware of their rights to inspect the accounts.  

 
3.2 The external auditors have now largely completed their audit on these accounts, 

and details of their findings are contained in a separate report elsewhere on this 
agenda.  

 
3.3 It is part of the terms of reference of this Committee that it will approve the 

Council’s Statement of Accounts each year. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 
require that this approval has to take place by 30th September. 

 
 

Page 109

Agenda Item 7



4.0 LETTER OF REPRESENTATION 
 
4.1 It is standard practice that the Council should provide its External Auditors with a 

Letter of Representation to confirm a range of issues in relation to the accounts, 
including the fact that the accounts have been properly prepared and that all 
relevant information has been provided.  

 
4.2 A copy of this letter is contained in Appendix 1 and Members are asked to 

consider and endorse this document for signature by the Borough Treasurer. 
 
 
5.0 APPROVAL OF STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
 
5.1 The external auditors have presented their findings from their audit of these 

accounts in a separate report elsewhere on the agenda. Their report identifies a 
small number of changes to the accounts and that it is expected that an 
unqualified opinion will be provided on them. A full copy of the statement 
incorporating these amendments is contained in Appendix 2. Members are now 
asked to approve the Statement in accordance with the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations. 

 
 
6.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS/COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
 
6.1 There are no significant sustainability impacts associated with this report and, in 

particular, no significant impact on crime and disorder. The report has no 
significant links with the Sustainable Community Strategy. 

 
 
7.0 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 The audit of the Statement is part of the overall control framework that is 

designed to ensure that the Council properly accounts for the use of its assets 
and resources. 

 
 

 
 
Background Documents 
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local 
Government Act 1972) to this Report. 
 
Equality Impact Assessment 
The decision does not have any direct impact on members of the public, employees, 
elected members and / or stakeholders.  Therefore no Equality Impact Assessment is 
required. 
 

Appendices 
Appendix 1 – Letter of Representation 
Appendix 2 – Statement of Accounts (to follow) 
 

Page 110



 

Kim Webber BSc (Hons) MSc 

Chief Executive 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Karen Murray 
Grant Thornton UK LLP  
4 Hardman Square  
Spinningfields 
Manchester M3 3EB. 

Finance and Human Resources Services 

 

Marc Taylor MA CPFA 

Borough Treasurer 

 

PO Box 16, 52 Derby Street 

Ormskirk, West Lancashire L39 2DF  

Telephone: 01695 577177 

Website: www.westlancs.gov.uk 

E-mail: marc.taylor@westlancs.gov.uk 

 

Date:  27/9/2016  

Your ref:  
Our ref:  MT/GE/77  

Please ask for: Marc Taylor 
Direct Dial no: 01695 585092 
Extension: 5092 
 

 
 
 

 

Dear Karen, 
 

West Lancashire Borough Council  

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 
 
This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of 
West Lancashire Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2016 for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 and applicable law.  
 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 
 

Financial Statements 
 
i We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in 

accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 ("the Code"); which give a true 
and fair view in accordance therewith. 
 

ii We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the Council and 
these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements. 
 

iii The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been 
no non-compliance with requirements of regulatory authorities that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. 
 

iv We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of 
internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 
 

v Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those 
measured at fair value, are reasonable. 
 

Page 111



vi We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the preparation of the financial 
statements are soundly based, in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in 
the financial statements. There are no other material judgements that need to be disclosed. 
 

vii Except as disclosed in the financial statements:  
a there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent 
b none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged 
c there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring 

items requiring separate disclosure. 
 

viii We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of 
pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits disclosures are 
consistent with our knowledge.  We confirm that all settlements and curtailments have been 
identified and properly accounted for.  We also confirm that all significant post-employment 
benefits have been identified and properly accounted for.  
 

ix Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of the Code. 
 

x All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the Code 
requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.   
 

xi Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with the requirements of the Code.  
 

xii We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures 
changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The financial statements have 
been amended for these misstatements, misclassifications and disclosure changes and are 
free of material misstatements, including omissions. 

 
xiii We have considered the unadjusted misstatements schedule included in your Audit 

Findings Report. We have not adjusted the financial statements for these misstatements as 
they are immaterial to the results of the Council and its financial position at the year-end. 
The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 
 

xiv We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification 
of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 
 

xv We believe that the Council’s financial statements should be prepared on a going concern 
basis on the grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than 
adequate for the Council’s needs. We believe that no further disclosures relating to the 
Council's ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial 
statements. 
 

Information Provided 
 
xvi We have provided you with: 

a access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 
financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters; 

b additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; and 
c unrestricted access to persons within the Council from whom you determined it 

necessary to obtain audit evidence. 
 

xvii We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is 
aware. 
 

Page 112



 

Kim Webber BSc (Hons) MSc 

Chief Executive 
 

xviii All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the 
financial statements. 
 

xix We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 
 

xx We have disclosed to you all our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the 
Council involving: 
a management; 
b employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
c others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 
xxi We have disclosed to you all our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, 

affecting the Council’s financial statements communicated by employees, former 
employees, regulators or others. 
 

xxii We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing 
financial statements. 
 

xxiii We have disclosed to you the identity of all the Council's related parties and all the related 
party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 
 

xxiv We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects 
should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 
 

Annual Governance Statement 
 

xxv We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Council's 
risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any 
significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS. 

 

Narrative Statement 
 

xxvi The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the Council's 
financial and operating performance over the period covered by the financial statements. 
 

Approval 
 

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Audit and Governance 
Committee at its meeting on 27

th
 September 2016. 

 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
 
Marc Taylor 
Borough Treasurer 
 
Signed on behalf of the Council 

 

Page 113





 
 
 
 

WEST LANCASHIRE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
 
 

 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
ST

 MARCH 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 115



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 1 

 

CONTENTS 
 

 
  

Page 
  

Introduction 
 

2 

  

Narrative Report 
 

3 

  

Annual Governance Statement 
 

10 

  

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

15 

  

Statement of Responsibilities 18 

  

  

Movement in Reserves Statement 
 

 

20 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 

 

22 

Balance Sheet 
 

 

23 

Cash Flow Statement 
 

24 

  

Notes 
 

25 

  

Housing Revenue Account and Notes 
 

86 

  

Collection Fund and Notes 
 

92 

  

  

Page 116



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 2 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 

 
 
 
We are pleased to introduce West Lancashire Borough Council‟s Statement of 
Accounts. 
 
The Statement shows the financial performance and financial position of the Council 
for 2015/2016. The publication of the Statement is a statutory requirement and 
demonstrates the Council‟s stewardship of public money for this year. 
 
The Audit and Governance Committee approved the Statement of Accounts at its 
meeting of 27

th
 September 2016 following the external audit of the accounts. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
John Bullock       Marc Taylor 
 
Chairman of the Audit     Borough Treasurer 
And Governance Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 117



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 3 

 

NARRATIVE REPORT 
 

 

Introduction 
 
This publication contains the Council‟s Statement of Accounts for the year ended 
31

st
 March 2016.  

 
These accounts provide details of the money that the Council spent on delivering 
services and where this money came from. The accounts also show the Council‟s 
financial performance and financial position for the year. 
 
 

Stewardship of public money and best value 
 
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the statutory and accounting 
regulations that govern the Council‟s financial affairs. These rules are primarily 
designed to safeguard public money and to promote best value. 
 
The Council‟s accounts are subject to scrutiny by its elected Councillors and its 
Internal and External Auditors to verify that these regulations are being followed. 
 
In addition members of the public have a statutory right to inspect the accounts 
before the annual audit is completed. The availability of the accounts for inspection 
is advertised in the local press and on the Council‟s website. 
 
 

Financial summary 
 
The Council spent £78.964m in providing day-to-day services for the local 
community. The Council also invested £17.753m in capital projects during the year 
to maintain and develop the services that it provides. Total usable reserves 
increased by £1.146m over the course of the year to £19.155m. 
 
 

Service Provision 
 
In broad terms the following tables show where the money for providing services 
comes from and what it was spent on. 
 

Where the money comes from (net cost of services) 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Benefits Payments and Administration grants 29,898 30,454 

Housing rents and service charges 26,513 25,852 

Service specific fees, charges and grants 9,551 9,619 

Total 65,962 65,925 

 
 

Page 118



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 4 

 
What the money is spent on (net cost of services) 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Cultural and Related Services 3,837 3,600 

Environmental and Regulatory Services 7,989 7,621 

Highways and Transport Services 880 913 

Housing Revenue Account excl. impairment 15,269 16,103 

HRA Impairment 8,184 6,966 

Housing – Other Services 32,203 33,428 

Planning and Development 3,981 3,522 

Corporate and Democratic Core 2,102 1,874 

Non Distributed Costs 237 74 

Central Services to the Public 4,282 4,289 

Total 78,964 78,390 

 
 

Financial performance for the year 
 
General Revenue Account (GRA) 
This account shows income and expenditure for all services except Council housing, 
and a net budget of £12.954m was set for the year. 
 
A significant favourable variance was delivered against this budget of £615,000 or 
4.7%. This position reflects a number of factors including good performance on 
implementing savings measures, under spending on employees and running 
expenses, and income levels exceeding budget projections in a range of areas. The 
Council has already allocated £470,000 of these funds for specific purposes, leaving 
a balance of £145,000 still to be allocated. The level of GRA reserves reduced by 
£0.873m to £11.746m, as a result of using funds to support the budget position and 
specific capital schemes in line with financial plans.  
 
The Council is facing a difficult medium term financial situation as a result of the 
Government reducing the funding it provides to all local authorities. This position will 
primarily be addressed through the Council‟s established Policy Option process, 
which has proved effective in dealing with these issues in recent years.  
 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
This account shows income and expenditure relating to the Council‟s housing stock. 
A significant favourable budget variance was delivered in the year of £0.955m, which 
represents 3.6% of the overall budget requirement. The main reasons for this 
position were the active management of staffing levels which delivered savings on 
employee budgets, and because rental income exceeded the budget target due to a 
range of factors including good performance on rent collection. 
 
 

Page 119



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 5 

 
It is currently planned that the budget variance will be held at this time to finance 
budget savings in future years and to deal with any potential issues arising from 
government levy proposals on the sale of higher value properties. 
 
The HRA faces a budget gap over the next 3 years between the expenditure 
required to deliver the agreed business plan and the resources that are expected to 
be available to fund it. This is primarily as a result of government rules requiring the 
Council to reduce its general rent levels by 1% per annum over this period. Once 
again it is intended that this position will be addressed through the Council‟s Policy 
Options process. 
 
There was investment of £11.995m in the housing stock this year against a budget 
of £16.601m. This means that 72% of the programme was spent, which is similar to 
the performance that has been delivered in previous years. It is intended that 
£3.411m of the unused budget will be slipped into the next financial year to enable 
ongoing schemes to be delivered in line with our standard practice. The balance of 
£1.195m of unused budget is no longer required for its original purpose and will be 
reallocated for other purposes. 
 
The level of GRA and HRA balances and reserves continues to be adequate for 
prudent financial management. 
 
 

Capital investment in the year 
 
Each year the Council invests money to buy new infrastructure, buildings and 
equipment and to pay for long-term improvements to its existing assets. This 
spending is needed to maintain and develop the services that the Council provides.  
 
The following tables provide a breakdown of the total investment for the year and 
how it has been financed: 
 

Where the money comes from 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Capital  Receipts 1,225 1,580 

Government Grants and Other Contributions 1,162 1,091 

Revenue Contributions 10,014 8,906 

Increase in underlying need to borrow 5,069 1,525 

Other 283 -1 

Total 17,753 13,101 

 

Page 120



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 6 

 
What the money is spent on 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Property, Plant and Equipment 16,011 11,199 

Other long term assets 217 114 

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital 1,297 1,560 

Other 228 228 

Total 17,753 13,101 

 
 

Financial position 
 
The main assets of the Council are its housing stock and the other land, buildings 
and equipment that it owns. Total long term assets have been valued at £208.159m, 
which is an increase of £11.779m on the previous year. 
 
The Council had a total net worth of £74.670m at 31

st
 March 2016, taking into 

account all of its assets and liabilities, which was an increase of £16.765m on the 
previous year. The reduction was primarily as a result of pension factors and the 
revaluation of assets, which are explained in more detail below. 
 
 

Significant issues in the accounts 
 
The value of the net pension liability in the accounts has reduced by £8.661m to 
£53.283m. The net pension liability represents the excess of long term accrued 
liabilities, assessed on a prescribed basis, compared with the market value of 
pension assets. Statutory arrangements for the funding of the pension scheme 
mean that the financial position of the Council remains healthy. The large reduction 
over the previous year is mainly a result of actuarial gains on the pension fund. 
 
The Cash Flow Statement shows a reduction of £1.893m in cash and cash 
equivalents over the year, which has been used primarily to assist in financing the 
capital programme without using external borrowing. This reflects a cost effective 
approach at the current time given relative interest rate levels. This approach has 
also been supported by a reduction in the level of debtors of £2.660m, primarily as a 
result of falls in the level of debtors with central government and other local 
authorities. 
 
An impairment charge of £8.184m (£6.966m in 2014/15) was made on Council 
dwellings within the HRA. This was primarily as a result of an element of the 
Housing capital programme not increasing the book value of these properties. This 
position was reached after consultation with the Council‟s Estates section, who 
reviewed the elements of the capital programme and assessed those elements that 
increased the book value of properties and those that could be discounted.  

 
 

Page 121



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 7 

 
During the year the total value of Property Plant and Equipment increased by 
£9.350m to £194.250m. This partly reflected a 5 yearly review of the value of the 
housing stock which led to a revaluation increase. It also reflected investment in 
solar PV on Council dwellings, the building of new houses on the Firbeck Estate in 
Skelmersdale, and the building of new industrial units as part of the Greenshoots 
project. 
 
At the start of the year the Council had £88.212m of external borrowing that was 
taken out with the Public Works Loans Board to finance the introduction of the HRA 
Self Financing system. During 2015-16 the scale of capital investment meant there 
was an increase in the underlying need to borrow of £5.069m, although this was 
funded from internal sources rather than through external borrowing.  
 

 

Future revenue spending and capital investment plans 
 
The budget that has been set for 2016-17 contains a number of new improvement 
measures while maintaining service levels for the vast majority of services provided 
by the Council. This position has been achieved, despite a challenging financial 
position, by maximising efficiencies and income and through the planned use of 
reserves. The budget also required an increase of 1.75% in the level of the Council 
tax. The package of savings measures that has been agreed has a total value of 
£1.7m and this will be closely monitored and managed in year to ensure that 
financial targets are achieved.  
 
The capital programme for 2016-17 is based on a budget of £15.953m. This 
includes planned investment in the housing stock of £12.559m, which will be funded 
by HRA revenue contributions and HRA borrowing.  
 
 

Contents of the Accounts 
 
The different parts of the Statement of Accounts and their purposes are set out 
below: 
 
Annual Governance Statement 
This outlines key elements of the Council‟s governance framework, provides a 
review of its effectiveness, and sets out plans for its future development.  
 
Independent Auditor’s Report 
This report sets out the External Auditor‟s opinion on whether the Accounts present 
a true and fair view of the financial performance and position of the Authority, and 
whether the Council has proper arrangements in place to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 
 
Statement of Responsibilities 
This summarises the responsibilities of the Council and its Chief Finance Officer in 
relation to the Statement of Accounts. 

 
 
 
 

Page 122



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 8 

 
Movement in Reserves Statement 
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by 
the Council, analysed into usable reserves (which can be applied to fund 
expenditure or reduce taxation) and other reserves. 
 
The Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic 
cost of providing the Council‟s services, more details of which are shown in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the 
statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance and the 
Housing Revenue Account for council tax setting and rent setting purposes.  
 
The net increase / decrease before transfers to earmarked reserves line shows the 
statutory General Fund and HRA Balance before any discretionary transfers to and 
from earmarked reserves. 
 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to 
be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance 
with regulations and this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation 
position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Balance Sheet 
This shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities 
recognised by the Council. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are 
matched by the reserves held by the Authority. Reserves are reported in two 
categories. 
 
The first category of reserves are usable reserves, which may be used to provide 
services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any 
statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve may only 
be used to fund capital expenditure or to repay debt). 
 
The second category of reserves is those that the Council is not able to use to 
provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised 
gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only 
become available to provide services if the assets are sold. This category also 
includes reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement line “Adjustment between accounting basis and funding basis under 
regulations”.  

 
Cash Flow Statement 
This shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents for the Council during the 
reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash 
and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing 
activities. 
 

Page 123



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 9 

 
The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of 
the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and 
grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing 
activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources 
which are intended to contribute to the Council‟s future service delivery. Cash flows 
arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows 
by providers of capital to the Council. 
 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
This summarises all transactions relating to the provision and maintenance of 
Council houses and flats, and reflects a statutory obligation to account separately for 
local authority housing provision. 
 
Collection Fund 
This account shows the income raised from Council Tax and Business Rates and 
how these funds are distributed to local authorities and central government. 
 

 

Further information 
 
Details on the Council‟s performance are available in the Council Plan Annual report 
at the following address: 
 
http://www.westlancs.gov.uk/media/445853/Council_Plan_2015-
16_AnnualReport.pdf 
 
It is the Council‟s policy to provide full information about its financial affairs. Further 
details about the accounts, and summary versions of the statement in other 
languages, can be obtained by: 
 

 E-mailing   Marc.Taylor@westlancs.gov.uk   
 

 Telephoning  (01695) 585092 
 

 Writing to   West Lancashire Borough Council 
52 Derby Street 
Ormskirk 
Lancashire L39 2DF 

 
 

Page 124

http://www.westlancs.gov.uk/media/445853/Council_Plan_2015-16_AnnualReport.pdf
http://www.westlancs.gov.uk/media/445853/Council_Plan_2015-16_AnnualReport.pdf


 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 10 

 

WEST LANCASHIRE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

2015/16 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

 

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 
 
West Lancashire Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money 
is safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and 
effectively. The Council also has a duty to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a 
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
To discharge this overall responsibility, the Council must have in place proper 
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its 
functions, which include arrangements for the management of risk. 
 
West Lancashire Borough Council has approved and adopted a Local Code of 
Corporate Governance, which is consistent with the principles of the 
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. 
 
This statement explains how the Council has complied with the code and also meets 
the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations, in relation to the production 
of an Annual Governance Statement. 
 
 

THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

 
The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values 
by which the Authority is directed and controlled and the mechanisms through which 
it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the Authority to 
monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those 
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost effective services. 
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed 
to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance of effectiveness. 
 
The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify 
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council‟s policies, aims and 
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact 
should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 
economically. 
 
The governance framework has been in place at West Lancashire Borough Council 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 and up to the date of approval of the statement of 
accounts. 
 
 
 

Page 125



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 11 

 

THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 
 
The Council has in place a comprehensive governance framework designed to 
regulate, monitor and control its various activities in its pursuit of its vision and 
objectives.  
 
The key elements of the framework include: 
 
The principal statutory obligations and functions of the Authority are identified in the 
Constitution and reflected in the Budget and Policy Framework which is approved by 
Council. 
 
The Council reviews its vision and priorities regularly. A statement of the current 
vision, values and priorities is available in a number of formats and, together with a 
number of other documents referred to in this Annual Governance Statement, can 
be viewed online on the Council‟s website. There is also a Council Plan in place that 
contains details of the priority delivery projects that are designed to drive forward 
progress against priorities. 
 
The Council‟s Covalent Performance Management System is used to monitor 
achievement of the Council‟s objectives and progress against priority delivery 
projects. Information from this system is presented to Management and Members on 
a regular basis and there is a Data Quality protocol in place to ensure the accuracy 
of this information. 
 
A management restructure took place during the year, which saw the creation of a 
new Chief Executive and Director structure to replace the previous Joint Managing 
Director structure. This new structure will continue to provide high quality 
management for the Council but at a reduced cost. 
 
The Council has a number of core customer service standards which apply to all 
customers and staff. These corporate customer care standards provide a clear 
commitment of our desire to provide a high quality of customer service. They include 
response times for letters and emails, telephone calls, complaints, visits to our 
offices, visits to customers‟ homes and out of hours emergencies. They cover 
targets and the attitude and behaviour of staff and customers. 
 
The Council has in place Codes of Conduct which set out the standards of 
behaviour expected of all members and officers. These are provided to all members 
and officers on appointment and are also available on the Council‟s website. The 
Council also has a Standards Committee whose role is to promote and maintain 
high standards of conduct. 
 
The Council‟s Constitution clearly sets out the respective roles and responsibilities of 
the Council, its Executive and Overview and Scrutiny functions, and delegations to 
Committees, Portfolio holders and Chief Officers as well as those functions which, 
by Statute, are to be exercised by a designated “Proper Officer”.  
 
As part of the Constitution the Council has agreed a Protocol on Member/Officer 
Relations and Conventions for the Management of Council Business. 
 
 

Page 126

http://www.westlancs.gov.uk/


 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 12 

 
The Council‟s professionally qualified Chief Finance Officer (the Borough Treasurer) 
is responsible for the proper administration of its financial affairs. The Officer attends 
Council, Cabinet and Corporate Management Team meetings and has a direct 
reporting line to the Chief Executive. Financial advice is provided for all the key 
decisions that are made.  
 
A Medium Term Financial Forecast and Treasury Management Strategy, which fully 
assesses the potential financial risks to the Authority, are in place and are reviewed 
regularly. Standing orders and financial regulations, that detail the Authority‟s 
financial management arrangements, are also maintained and reviewed and 
updated periodically. 
 
The Council has a comprehensive Risk Management process in place which is fully 
embedded throughout the Authority and forms an integral part of the management 
process. This includes a dedicated resource committed to this area of work to 
ensure consistency and compliance throughout the Authority. In addition all reports 
to Council and Cabinet have a risk assessment section. 
 
The Council‟s Audit and Governance Committee undertakes the core functions of an 
audit committee as identified in CIPFA‟s publication Audit Committees – Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities. The Committee receives regular reports on 
governance issues from both officers and the Council‟s external auditors. 
 
The Council‟s Monitoring Officer Protocol sets out how the Council deals with issues 
of concern including legality, probity and constitutional issues. 
 
The Council is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, probity and 
accountability and has in place a formal Complaints Procedure, Anti-Money 
Laundering Policy, Whistleblowing Code and Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption 
Policy. The Council has a zero tolerance policy towards fraud and corruption. The 
Council‟s Whistleblowing Code provides the opportunity for anyone to report their 
concerns confidentially and enable them to be investigated properly. 
 
In accordance with best practice the Council has in place Senior Information Risk 
Owners arrangements. The arrangements ensure suitable allocation of 
responsibilities for information systems through a network led by the Borough 
Solicitor. 
 
Recruitment Procedures are in place to ensure the appointment of appropriately 
skilled employees. An induction process is also in place for employees along with 
guidance for Managers on how to induct new employees into their teams. Ongoing 
training needs are identified through a Development Appraisal Scheme. 
 
The Council is committed to consulting local people and a „Your Views‟ section is 
available on the Council‟s website dedicated to engaging the public.  
 
The Council has in place a Protocol which sets out how the essential elements of 
local governance, accountability and transparency will be maintained within any 
proposed arrangements for service delivery through partnerships. 
 

 

 

Page 127



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 13 

 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS 
 
The Authority‟s Financial Management arrangements conform with the governance 
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in 
Local Government (2010).  

 

 

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE COUNCIL’S GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

 
West Lancashire Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least 
annually, a review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the 
system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of 
Heads of Service and Managers within the Authority who have responsibility for the 
development and maintenance of the governance environment, by the Head of 
Internal Audit‟s annual report, and also by the work undertaken by the External 
Auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 
 
The Council is ultimately responsible for maintaining an up to date governance 
framework which is chiefly contained in its Constitution and is made up of its 
standing orders, financial regulations and scheme of delegation together with 
various associated policies and procedures. 
 
Our most recent Annual Audit Letter from Grant Thornton concluded that the Council 
has effective arrangements in place for internal control.  
 
As part of the procedure for producing this statement, the Council‟s Heads of 
Service and Senior Managers are required to review whether there are any 
significant control or governance issues that require addressing. No significant 
issues have been identified in this year‟s review. 
 
The Borough Treasurer, who has overall responsibility for the Authority‟s financial 
framework, has not identified any significant governance or internal control issues in 
relation to financial matters. In carrying out a continuous audit of the Council‟s 
business, the Internal Audit Section review the effectiveness of key elements of the 
Council‟s governance arrangements and report to the Audit and Governance 
Committee accordingly. The Internal Audit Manager‟s Annual Report for 2015/16 
does not identify any serious deficiencies in the Council‟s internal control 
mechanisms. 
 
The Audit and Governance Committee are charged with monitoring Contract 
Procedure Rules, Financial Regulations and other provisions of the Constitution. 
This Committee also considers how well the Council has complied with its own and 
other published standards and controls in so far as these contribute to the adequacy 
of its framework of internal control.  
 
We have been advised on the implications of the review of the effectiveness of the 
governance framework by the Audit and Governance Committee, and plans to 
address development issues and ensure continuous improvement of the system are 
in place. 
 
 

 
Page 128



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 14 

 

PROGRESS ON ISSUES IDENTIFIED IN THE LAST ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

 

FINANCIAL CHALLENGES AND THE BUSINESS PLAN 
 

Due to robust financial monitoring and management the Council has achieved a 
favourable budget variance for 2015/16 and has set a balanced budget for 2016/17. 
Consequently, the Council is taking appropriate action to ensure a stable financial 
standing and this position has been confirmed in our latest Annual Audit letter. 

 

 

CURRENT SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

 

FUTURE FINANCIAL CHALLENGES 
 

Further significant savings will be required to ensure a balanced budget position is 
achieved over the next three years. The latest Medium Term Financial Forecast 
identifies the scale of the savings required and this will primarily be addressed 
through the Council‟s Policy Option process. Implementing this savings programme 
may create significant risks in the governance framework that will need to continue 
to be managed and reviewed effectively. 
 
We propose to monitor the above issues over the coming year and to take steps to 
maintain and develop our governance arrangements. 

 

 

SIGNED: ………..................………………    Date ..........…………… 

 

LEADER 

 

 

SIGNED: ………..................………………    Date ..........…………… 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
On behalf of West Lancashire Borough Council 
 

Page 129



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 15 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WEST 

LANCASHIRE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
This report will be added to the Statement once the audit of the accounts has been 
completed. 
 

Page 130



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 16 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WEST 

LANCASHIRE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
This report will be added to the Statement once the audit of the accounts has been 
completed. 
 

Page 131



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 17 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WEST 

LANCASHIRE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
This report will be added to the Statement once the audit of the accounts has been 
completed.

Page 132



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 18 

 

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 

 
The following responsibilities are placed upon the Authority and its Chief Finance 
Officer in relation to the Council‟s financial affairs. 
 

The Authority’s Responsibilities 
 
The Authority is required to: 
 

 Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to 
secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those 
affairs.  In this authority, that officer is the Borough Treasurer 

 

 Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources 
and safeguard its assets; 

 

 Approve the statement of accounts. 
 

The Chief Finance Officer’s Responsibilities  
 
As the Authority‟s Chief Finance Officer, I am responsible for preparing the 
Authority‟s Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in 
the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom (the Code). 
 
In preparing this statement of accounts, I have: 

 Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 

 Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; 

 Complied with the Code. 
 
I have also: 

 Kept proper accounting records which were up to date; 

 Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 

 
The Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the Authority at the 31

st
 March 2016 and its income and expenditure for the year 

then ended. 
 
 
 
 
Marc Taylor  
Borough Treasurer 
27 September 2016 

Page 133



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 19 

 
This page has been left intentionally blank for formatting purposes

Page 134



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 20 

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 

B
a
la

n
c
e

s
 

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 

G
e
n
. 
F

u
n
d
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
  

H
R

A
 

 B
a
la

n
c
e
s
 

  

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 

H
R

A
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p
a
ir
s
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
G

ra
n
ts

 

U
n
a
p
p
lie

d
 

 

T
o

ta
l 
U

s
a
b

le
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

 

 

U
n
u
s
a
b
le

 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

 T
o

ta
l 
C

o
u

n
c
il
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

 

 £‟000 £‟000 £‟000 £‟000 £‟000 £‟000 £‟000 £‟000 £‟000 £‟000 

Balance at 31 March 2014 961 11,570 783 469 3,748 0 0 17,531 55,902 73,433 

Movement in Reserves during 2014-2015           

Surplus or deficit (-) on the provision of services -2,606  -693     -3,299  -3,299 

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure        0 -12,229 -12,229 

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure -2,606 0 -693 0 0 0 0 -3,299 -12,229 -15,528 

Adjustments between accounting basis and 
funding basis under regulations (note 6) 

3,655  583  -461 0 0 3,777 -3,777 0 

Net Increase / Decrease (-) before Transfers to 

Earmarked Reserves 
1,049 0 -110 0 -461 0 0 478 -16,006 -15,528 

Transfers to / from Earmarked Reserves (note 7) -1,049 1,049 110 -110    0  0 

Increase / Decrease (-) in 2014-15 0 1,049 0 -110 -461 0 0 478 -16,006 -15,528 

           

Balance at 31 March 2015 961 12,619 783 359 3,287 0 0 18,009 39,896 57,905 

P
age 135



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 21 

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 

B
a
la

n
c
e
s
 

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 

G
e
n
. 
F

u
n
d
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
  

H
R

A
 

 B
a
la

n
c
e
s
 

  

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 

H
R

A
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p
a
ir
s
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
G

ra
n
ts

 

U
n
a
p
p
lie

d
 

 

T
o

ta
l 
U

s
a
b

le
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

 

 

U
n
u
s
a
b
le

 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

 T
o

ta
l 
C

o
u

n
c
il
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

 

 £‟000 £‟000 £‟000 £‟000 £‟000 £‟000 £‟000 £‟000 £‟000 £‟000 

Balance at 31 March 2015 961 12,619 783 359 3,287 0 0 18,009 39,896 57,905 

Movement in Reserves during 2015-2016           

Surplus or deficit (-) on the provision of services -2,244  -381     -2,625  -2,625 

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure        0 19,390 19,390 

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure -2,244 0 -381 0 0 0 0 -2,625 19,390 16,765 

Adjustments between accounting basis and 
funding basis under regulations (note 6) 

1,371  2,120  263 0 17 3,771 -3,771 0 

Net Increase / Decrease (-) before Transfers to 

Earmarked Reserves 
-873 0 1,739 0 263 0 17 1,146 15,619 16,765 

Transfers to / from Earmarked Reserves (note 7) 873 -873 -1,739 1,739    0  0 

Increase / Decrease (-) in 2015-16 0 -873 0 1,739 263 0 17 1,146 15,619 16,765 

           

Balance at 31 March 2016 961 11,746 783 2,098 3,550 0 17 19,155 55,515 74,670 

P
age 136



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 22 

 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
 
 

 

2014/2015  2015/2016 
Gross 
Cost 

Gross 
Income 

Net 
Cost 

 Gross 
Cost 

Gross 
Income 

Net 
Cost 

£‟000 £‟000 £‟000  £‟000 £‟000 £‟000 

       

3,600 255 3,345 Cultural and Related Services 3,837 406 3,431 

7,621 1,825 5,796 
Environmental and Regulatory 
Services 

7,989 1,756 6,233 

913 877 36 Highways & Transport Services 880 890 -10 

16,103 25,852 -9,749 Housing – HRA excl. impairment 15,269 26,513 -11,244 

6,966 0 6,966 Housing - HRA impairment 8,184 0 8,184 

33,428 32,122 1,306 Housing - Other Services 32,203 31,481 722 

3,522 2,279 1,243 Planning Services 3,981 2,337 1,644 

1,874 2 1,872 Corporate & Democratic Core 2,102 3 2,099 

74 0 74 Non Distributed Costs 237 0 237 

4,289 2,713 1,576 Central Services to the Public 4,282 2,576 1,706 

78,390 65,925 12,465 Cost of Services 78,964 65,962 13,002 

       

2,813 1,862 951 
Other operating expenditure 
(note 8) 

3,447 2,420 1,027 

5,809 1,555 4,254 
Financing & investment income 
& expenditure (note 9) 

3,828 1,386 2,442 

9,476 23,847 -14,371 
Taxation & non specific grant 
income & expenditure (note 10) 

9,869 23,715 -13,846 

96,488 93,189 3,299 
Surplus (-) or Deficit on 

Provision of Services 
96,108 93,483 2,625 

       

  -2,091 
Surplus (-) or deficit on revaluation 
of non current assets (note 23i) 

  -8,365 

  14,320 
Re-measurement of the net 
defined pension liability (note 37) 

  -11,025 

  12,229 
Other Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure 
  -19,390 

       
       

  15,528 
Total Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure 
  -16,765 

       

 

Page 137



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 23 

 

BALANCE SHEET 
 

 

31 March 31 March  Notes 31 March 

2014 2015   2016 

£‟000 £‟000   £‟000 

     
183,662 184,900 Property, Plant & Equipment 11a 194,250 

490 490 Heritage Assets 12 490 

10,643 10,657 Investment Property 13 12,958 

242 267 Intangible Assets 14 396 

15 0 Long Term Investments  0 

68 66 Long Term Debtors  65 

195,120 196,380 Long term assets  208,159 

     
4,509 11,017 Short Term Investments  11,515 

1,345 1,003 Assets held for sale 11b 1,251 

40 15 Inventories 17 37 

10,114 8,246 Short Term Debtors 18 5,586 

8,571 5,434 Cash and Cash Equivalents 19 1,828 

24,579 25,715 Current assets  20,217 

     
0 -1,713 Bank Overdraft 19 0 

-8,099 -8,509 Short Term Creditors 20 -7,675 

-8,099 -10,222 Current Liabilities  -7,675 

     
-1,243 -1,135 Provisions 21 -1,938 

-45,876 -61,944 Pension Liabilities 37 -53,283 

-808 -580 Other Long Term Liabilities 36 -635 

-1,994 -2,063 Grants & Contributions in Advance 32 -1,929 

-88,246 -88,246 Long Term Borrowing 16 -88,246 

-138,167 -153,968 Long Term Liabilities  -146,031 

     

73,433 57,905 Net Assets  74,670 

     

     

-17,531 -18,009 Usable Reserves 22 -19,155 

-55,902 -39,896 Unusable Reserves 23 -55,515 

     

-73,433 -57,905 Total Reserves  -74,670 

     

 
 

Page 138



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 24 

 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
 

 
 

2014-2015  2015-2016 
£‟000  £‟000 £‟000 

    

-3,299 Net Deficit on the Provision of Services -2,625  

    

16,781 Adjustments for non-cash movements (note 24) 14,522  

    

-2,105 
Adjustments for items that are investing or 
financing activities (note 24) 

-2,719  

    

11,377 Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities  9,178 

    

-16,495 Investing Activities (note 25)  -13,496 

    

268 Financing Activities (note 26)  2,425 

    

-4,850 Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents  -1,893 

    

    

8,571 Cash & Cash Equivalents at start of period  3,721 

    

3,721 
Cash & Cash Equivalents at end of period 

(note 19) 
 1,828 

    

 
 

Page 139



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 25 

 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 
 

 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

i.  General Principles 
 
This Statement of Accounts summarises the Council‟s transactions for the 
2015/16 financial year and its position at the year end of 31

st
 March 2016. It 

has been prepared in accordance with relevant statutory regulations and 
proper accounting practice, and in particular the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16, the Service Reporting 
Code of Practice and International Financial Reporting Standards.  
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Accounts is principally historic 
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets. 
 
 

ii.  Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place and not when cash 
payments are made or received. In particular: 
 

 Revenue due from customers is recognised as income at the date the 
goods or services are provided and where it is probable that the income 
will be received 

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where 
there is a gap between the date supplies are received and their 
consumption, they are carried as inventories on the balance sheet 

 Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by 
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received 
rather than when payments are made 

 Interest receivable on investments and interest payable on borrowings is 
accounted for respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the 
effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the 
cash flows determined by the contract 

 Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not 
been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is 
recorded in the balance sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the 
balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the 
income that might not be collected 

 
 

iii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions 
repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash 
equivalents are short term highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash with an insignificant risk of change in 
value.  

 
 

Page 140



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 26 

 
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of 
bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of 
the Council‟s cash management. 
 
 

iv. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and 

Estimates and Errors 
 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting 
policies or to correct a material error. Changes in accounting policies are only 
made when required by proper accounting practices or the change provides 
more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other 
events and conditions on the Council‟s financial position or financial 
performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless 
otherwise stated) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts 
for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. Material 
errors discovered in prior period figures are also corrected retrospectively by 
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

 
Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the 
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior 
period adjustment.  

 
 

v. Charges to Revenue for Non Current Assets 

 
Service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts are debited 
with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non current assets: 
 

 Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

 Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where 
there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which 
the losses can be written off 

 Amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service 
 
The Council is not required to raise Council tax to fund depreciation, 
revaluation and impairment losses or amortisation. However it is required to 
make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its overall 
Borrowing Requirement. 
 
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are 
replaced by a Minimum Revenue Provision calculated on a prudent basis by 
the Council in accordance with statutory guidance. This is achieved through 
an adjusting transaction between the General Fund Balance and the Capital 
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the 
difference between the two. Capital charges to the Housing Revenue Account 
are calculated in accordance with statutory regulations, and in particular the 
Item 8 Credit and Debit Determinations. 

 

Page 141



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 27 

 

vi. Employee Benefits 
 
Benefits Payable During Employment 
 
Short term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 
months of the year end. They include such benefits as salaries, paid annual 
leave and paid sick leave for current employees and are recognised as an 
expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the 
Council. 
 
An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements earned by employees 
but not taken before the year end which employees can carry forward into the 
next financial year. The accrual is charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in 
Reserves Statement so that holiday entitlements are charged to revenue in 
the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.  
 
Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the 
Council to terminate an officer‟s employment before the normal retirement 
date or an officer‟s decision to accept voluntary redundancy. These amounts 
are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service or, where 
applicable, the Non Distributed Cost line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the Council can no longer 
withdraw the offer of these benefits or when the Council recognises the costs 
of the restructuring. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory 
provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount 
payable by the Council to the pension fund in the year, not the amount 
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement 
in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pension 
Reserve to remove the notional entries for pension enhancement termination 
benefits and to replace them with the amount payable to the pension fund in 
the year. 
 

Post Employment Benefits 
 
The Council participates in a Local Government Pension Scheme 
administered by the Lancashire County Pension Fund. This scheme is 
accounted for as a defined benefit scheme and provides defined benefits 
(retirement lump sums and pensions) to members earned as employees 
worked for the Council. 
 
The liabilities of the Lancashire County Pension Fund attributable to the 
Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the 
projected unit method, i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be 
made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based 
on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates etc and 
projections of future earnings for current employees. 
 

Page 142



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 28 

 
Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices using a discount rate 
based on high quality corporate bonds. The assets of the Lancashire County 
Pension Fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at 
their fair value. 
 
Statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the 
amount payable to the Pension Fund in the year rather than the amount 
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement 
in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the 
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement 
benefits and to replace them with the amounts actually payable to the 
Pension Fund for the year.  
 
Consequently the negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve 
measures the beneficial impact on the General Fund balance of being 
required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather 
than as benefits are earned by employees. 

 
 

vii. Events after the Reporting Period 
 

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and 
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date 
when the Accounts are authorised for issue. Two types of event can be 
identified: 
 

 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the 
reporting period – the Accounts are adjusted to reflect such events 

 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period 
– the Accounts are not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a 
category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the 
notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect 

 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected 
in the Statement of Accounts. 

 
 

viii. Financial Instruments 

 
Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the Council 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and 
are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual 
charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are 
based on the carrying amount of the liability multiplied by the effective rate of 
interest for the instrument. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 143



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 29 

 
Typically this means for borrowing, that the amount shown in the Balance 
Sheet is the outstanding principal payable (plus accrued interest), and the 
interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is 
the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement. 
 
Financial Assets 
Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables – assets that have 
fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an active market. 
 
These assets are recognised on the balance sheet when the Council 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and 
are initially measured at fair value and then carried at their amortised cost. 
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the 
effective rate of interest for the instrument. 
 
Typically this means for investments, that the amount shown in the Balance 
Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest), and the 
interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is 
the amount receivable for the year according to the loan agreement. 
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a 
past event that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset 
is written down and a charge made to the relevant service (for receivables 
specific to that service) or the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying 
amount and the present value of the asset.  

 
 

ix. Government Grants and Contributions 

 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants, 
third party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council 
where there is reasonable assurance that the Council will comply with any 
conditions attached to the payments and that the payments will be received. 
 
Amounts due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or 
contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that require the 
grant or contribution to be used in a specified manner or else to be returned. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not 
been satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as liabilities. When conditions 
are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line or 
Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 
 
 
 
 

Page 144



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 30 

 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to 
finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied 
reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to 
the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital 
expenditure. 

 
The Council has elected to charge a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 
The levy will be charged on new builds (chargeable developments) with 
appropriate planning consent. The Council charges for and collects the levy, 
which is a planning charge. The income from this levy will be used to fund 
infrastructure projects to support the development of the Borough. CIL is 
received without outstanding conditions and is therefore recognised as 
income at the commencement date of the chargeable development. 

 
 

x. Heritage Assets 
 
Heritage assets are those which have historical, artistic, scientific, 
technological, geophysical or environmental qualities that are held and 
maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and culture. It is 
intended that such assets are preserved in trust for future generations 
because of their cultural, environmental and historical association. 
 
Heritage assets are generally recognised and measured in accordance with 
the Council‟s policies on property, plant and equipment. These assets will be 
recognised at cost in the Council‟s balance sheet where this can be identified. 
If valuations cannot be determined the assets will be recorded in the Council‟s 
Asset Register but not included in the balance sheet, as it is considered that 
this disclosure would not be material and would not add any enhancement to 
the reader in the understanding of the accounts. No depreciation will be 
accounted for due to the indeterminate useful lives of this type of asset. 
 
Civic Regalia items will be valued on a three yearly basis by a specialist 
valuer. Reviews of other assets will be undertaken on a visual basis on a 
yearly cycle or where there is evidence of impairment.  
 
 

xi. Intangible Assets 
 
Expenditure on non monetary assets that do not have physical substance but 
are controlled by the Council (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is 
expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the 
intangible asset. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 145



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 31 

 
Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Amounts are only re-valued 
where the fair value of an asset can be determined by reference to an active 
market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this 
criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable 
amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant 
service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for 
statutory purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and 
losses are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. 
The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital 
Adjustment Account. 
 
 
 

xii. Inventories and Long Term Contracts 
 
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value.  
 
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services with the value of works and services 
received under the contract during the financial year. 
 
In 2004/05 the Council entered into a 15 year agreement with a Leisure Trust 
and Serco PLC for the operation of its main leisure centres. This includes an 
investment programme that is financed through a deferred liability scheme, 
and the relevant assets and liabilities are included in the balance sheet. 

 
 

xiii. Investment Property 
 

These are properties that are used solely to earn rentals and / or for capital 
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to 
facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair 
value, based on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between 
knowledgeable parties at arms length. Properties are not depreciated but are 
re-valued annually according to market conditions at the year end. Gains and 
losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
The same treatment is applied for gains and losses on disposal. 
 
Rentals received in relation to Investment Properties are credited to the 
Financing and Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General 
Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not 
permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund 
Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General 
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement, and posted to the 
Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

 
Page 146



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 32 

 

xiv. Leases 
 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, 
plant and equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are 
classified as operating leases. The Council currently only has operating 
leases in place. 
 
The Council as Lessee: Operating Leases 
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting 
from the use of the leased asset.  
 

The Council as Lessor: Operating Leases 
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of 
plant or equipment, the asset is retained in the balance sheet, and the rental 
income is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
 

xv. Overheads and Support Services 

 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that 
benefit from the supply or the service in accordance with the costing 
principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice. The total 
absorption costing principle is used and the full cost of overheads and 
support services are shared between users in proportion to the benefits 
received, or charged to the Corporate and Democratic Core or Non 
Distributed Costs where relevant. 
 
The bases of allocations used for the main support services are time 
allocations for staff, floor area for administrative buildings, and transaction 
numbers for exchequer services. 
 

 

xvi. Property Plant and Equipment 
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or 
supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative 
purposes, and that are expected to be used during more than one financial 
year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 

Recognition 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant 
and Equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided it is probable that 
the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will 
flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  
 
Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset‟s potential to deliver 
future economic benefits or service potential (e.g. repairs and maintenance) is 
charged as a revenue expense as it is incurred. 
 
 

Page 147



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 33 

 
Measurement 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price and any 
costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary 
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.  
 
Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between 
fair value and any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-
Specific Grant Income line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, unless the donation has been made conditionally. Where gains 
are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they 
are reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment 
Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following 
measurement bases: 
 

 Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – 
depreciated historical cost 

 Dwellings – current value determined using the basis of existing use value 
for social housing 

 Surplus assets – the current value measurement base is fair value, 
estimated at highest and best use from a market participant‟s perspective 

 All other assets – current value determined as the amount that would be 
paid for the asset in its existing use 

 
Where there is no market based evidence of current value because of the 
specialist nature of an asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an 
estimate of current value. Where non property assets have short useful lives 
or low values, depreciated historical cost is used as a proxy for current value. 
 
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are re-valued 
sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying value is not materially 
different to their current value at the year end, but as a minimum every 5 
years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation 
Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. 
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 

 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the 
Revaluation Reserve – the carrying amount of the asset is written down 
against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gain) 

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient 
balance – the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the 
relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 
2007, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date 
have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
 
 

Page 148



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 34 

 
Impairment 
Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication 
that an asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and the possible 
difference is estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an 
impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 

 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the 
Revaluation Reserve – the carrying amount of the asset is written down 
against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gain) 

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient 
balance – the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the 
relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

 
Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by 
the systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. 
An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (such 
as land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available 
for use (i.e. assets under construction).  
 
Relevant assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives on a straight 
line basis assuming no residual values. The Council‟s Estates section has 
determined the useful lives of dwellings and buildings and these vary 
depending on the nature of the asset considered. 
 
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components with 
significantly different useful lives and whose costs are significant in relation to 
the total cost of the item, then the components are depreciated separately. 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the 
difference between current value depreciation charged on assets and the 
depreciation charge that would have been made based on their historical cost 
being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital 
Adjustment Account. 
 
Disposals and Assets Held for Sale 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be 
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through its 
continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is 
revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of 
this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent 
decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any 
previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. 
Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. 
 
 

Page 149



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 35 

 
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets 
Held for Sale. 
 
Where an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of 
the asset in the Balance Sheet is written off to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
Receipts from disposals (if any) are then also credited to this same line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The net value of these 
transactions then reflects the gain or loss on the disposal of the asset. Any 
revaluation gains accumulated on the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are 
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
The written off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the 
cost of non current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements 
for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment 
Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 

 
A proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals must be paid over to the 
Government under a pooling arrangement. The balance of receipts is required 
to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for 
new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Council‟s capital financing 
requirement. Receipts are appropriated to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 

 

xvii. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that will probably lead 
to a future expense, and where a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. For example the Council may be involved in a court 
case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment 
of compensation. 
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the 
Council becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best 
estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the 
obligation taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. Payments are 
then charged to the provision set up in the Balance Sheet when they are 
eventually made. 
 
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted to 
reflect the current best estimate of the likely cost. Where a provision is no 
longer required it will be reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 150



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 36 

 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the 
Council a possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the 
occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the 
Council‟s control. Contingent liabilities can also arise in circumstances where 
a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not sufficiently certain 
that the event will take place or the obligation cannot be measured reliably.  
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the 
Council a possible asset but whose existence will only be confirmed by the 
occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the Council. 
 
Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but 
are disclosed in a note to the accounts. 

 

 

xviii. Reserves 

 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy 
purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating 
amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is 
charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there 
is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non 
current assets, retirement and employee benefits. These do not represent 
usable resources for the Council, and include the capital adjustment account, 
revaluation reserve and pensions reserve. 

 

 

xix. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 

 
Expenditure that has been incurred that may be capitalised under statutory 
provisions but does not result in the creation of a non current asset has been 
charged as expenditure to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. 
 
Where the Council determines that it will meet such expenditure from its 
capital resources, then a transfer will be made in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account 
to reverse out the amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level of 
the Council tax. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 151



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 37 

 

xx. VAT 
 
Income and expenditure excludes any amounts that relate to VAT. This is 
because all VAT collected is payable to HM Revenues and Customs, and all 
VAT paid is recoverable from them. 

 

 

xxi. Fair value measurement 
 
The authority measures some of its non financial assets, such as investment 
properties, at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair 
value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer 
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, 
or in the most advantageous market in the absence of a principal market. 
 
The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the 
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing it, assuming 
that market participants act in their economic best interest. When measuring 
fair value, the Council takes into account a market participant‟s ability to 
generate economic benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest 
and best use. 
 
The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the 
circumstances and for which sufficient data is available, maximising the use 
of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
Inputs to the valuation techniques for which fair value is measured or 
disclosed within the fair value hierarchy are as follows: 
 

 Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities that can be accessed at the measurement date 

 Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly 

 Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability 
 
 

xxii. Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Adopted 

 
A number of new accounting standards have been issued but have not been 
incorporated into the 2015/16 Code of Practice. These standards include: 
 

 Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Defined Benefit Plans: 
Employee Contributions) 

 Issues included in the Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2010–2012 Cycle 
and 2012-14 Cycle) 

 Amendment to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (Accounting for Acquisitions 
of Interests in Joint Operations) 

 

Page 152



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 38 

 

 Amendment to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 
Intangible Assets (Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and 
Amortisation) 

 Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Disclosure 
Initiative) 

 Changes to the format of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement and the introduction of 
the new Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

 Changes to the format of the Pension Fund Account and the Net Assets 
Statement. 

These standards have not been reflected in these accounts, but it is not 
expected they will have a material impact on the Council‟s financial position. 

 

 

2. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

In applying the accounting policies set out in note 1, the Council has had to 
make certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving 
uncertainty about future events. The critical judgements made in the 
Statement of Accounts are: 
 

 There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local 
government. However this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an 
indication of what assets might be impaired as a result of the need to make 
savings and potentially reduce service levels in certain areas 
 

 The Council has entered into a 15 year agreement with a Leisure Trust and 
Serco PLC for the operation of its main leisure centres. It has been 
determined that the Council does not have control of the Trust and it is not 
a subsidiary of the Council 

 
 

3. ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER SOURCES OF 

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 
 

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on 
assumptions made by the Council about the future or that are otherwise 
uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, 
current trends and other relevant factors. However because balances cannot 
be determined with certainty, the actual results could be materially different 
from the assumptions and estimates. 
 
The items in the Balance Sheet at 31

st
 March 2016 for which there is a 

significant risk of material adjustment in the next financial year are as follows: 
 

Page 153



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 39 

 
Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ 

from assumptions 

Property, Plant 
and Equipment 

The useful lives of assets are 
estimated when calculating 
depreciation but it is not possible 
to know these lives with certainty. 

An increase in estimated useful 
lives of 1% would decrease 
depreciation charges by 
£0.04m. 

Fair value 
measurements 

When the fair value of assets and 
liabilities cannot be measured 
based on quoted prices in active 
markets, their fair value is 
measured using valuation 
techniques. Where possible, the 
inputs to these valuation 
techniques are based on 
observable data, but where this is 
not possible judgement is 
required in establishing fair 
values. These judgements 
typically include considerations 
such as uncertainty and risk. 

The significant unobservable 
inputs used in the fair value 
measurement include 
management assumptions 
about rent growth, vacancy 
levels (for investment 
properties) and discount rates. 
 
Information about the valuation 
techniques and inputs used in 
determining the fair value of the 
authority‟s assets and liabilities 
is disclosed in note 16. 

Pensions 
Liability 

Estimation of the net liability to 
pay pensions depends on a 
number of complex judgements. 
A firm of consulting actuaries is 
engaged to provide expert advice 
on the assumptions to be applied. 

The effects on the net pension 
liability of changes in individual 
assumptions can be measured. 
However the assumptions 
interact in complex ways and 
note 37 provides details on 
actuarial factors in recent years. 

Grant claims 

Income for government grants in 
certain cases is based on 
estimated claims which are still 
subject to audit and could 
possibly change. 

Details on grant income levels 
are provided in note 32. 

Arrears 

Note 18 provides details on levels 
of debtors and their associated 
bad debt provisions. However in 
the current economic climate it is 
not certain that these provisions 
will be sufficient. 

If collection rates were to 
deteriorate, then the level of bad 
debt provisions would need to 
be increased. A 10% increase in 
impairment of doubtful debts 
would require an additional 
£0.44m to be set aside. 

Provision for 
NNDR 
Appeals 

At the year end an estimate has 
been made of the cost of 
outstanding NNDR appeals that 
organisations have submitted 
against their business rate bills. 
This estimate is based on the 
rateable value of the 
organisations that have made 
appeals and the average 
settlement rate based on 
experience, apart from one site 
where a large provision is held 
based on specific factors. 

An increase in the estimated 
settlement rate of 10% would 
have the effect of adding 
£0.43m to the provision needed. 

 

 

 

 

Page 154



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 40 

 

 

 

Expenditure 
accruals 

At the year end estimates are 
made of the value of goods and 
services delivered but not yet 
paid. These estimates are then 
used as a basis for accruing 
expenditure. 

Details on creditors are provided 
in note 20. 

 
 
 

4. MATERIAL ITEMS OF INCOME AND EXPENSE 
 

All material items have been disclosed in the main financial statements or in 
the notes to the accounts. 
 

 

5. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 
 

The Statement of Accounts were authorised for issue by the Borough 
Treasurer on 30

th
 June 2016. Events taking place after this date have not 

been reflected in the financial statement or notes. Where events taking place 
before this date provide information about conditions existing at 31

st
 March 

2016, the figures in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in 
all material respects to reflect the impact of this information. 
 
 
 

Page 155



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 41 

 

6. ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING AND FUNDING BASES UNDER 

REGULATIONS 
 

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive 
income and expenditure recognised by the Council in accordance with proper 
accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions 
as being available to the Council to meet future capital and revenue 
expenditure. A description of the reserves that the adjustments are made 
against is set out below: 
 

General Fund Balance 
The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of an 
authority are required to be paid, and out of which all the liabilities of the 
authority are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules might provide 
otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities 
and payments should impact on the General Fund Balances, which is not 
necessarily in accordance with proper accounting practice. This Balance 
therefore summarises the resources that the Council is statutorily empowered 
to spend on its services or on capital investment (or the deficit of resources 
that the Council is required to recover) at the end of the financial year. This 
Balance is not however available to be applied to funding HRA services. 
 

Housing Revenue Account Balance 
The HRA Balance reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a revenue 
account for local authority council housing provision in accordance with Part 
IV of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. It contains the balance of 
income and expenditure as defined by the 1989 Act that is available to fund 
future expenditure in connection with the Council‟s landlord function or (where 
in deficit) that is required to be recovered from tenants in future years. 
 

Major Repairs Reserve 
The Council is required to maintain the Major Repairs Reserve, which is 
restricted to being applied to new capital investment in HRA assets or the 
financing of historical capital expenditure by the HRA. The balance shows the 
capital resources that have yet to be applied at the year end. 
 

Capital Receipts Reserve 
This reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, 
which are restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital 
expenditure or to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure. The 
balance on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be applied for 
these purposes at the year end. 
 

Capital Grants Unapplied 
This reserve holds the grants and contributions received towards capital 
projects for which the Council has met the conditions that would otherwise 
require repayment of the monies but which have yet to be applied to meet 
expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant terms as to the capital 
expenditure against which it can be applied and / or the financial year in 
which this can take place.

Page 156



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 42 

 
Adjustments between Accounting and Funding Basis Under Regulations 2015/16 General 

Fund 

Balance 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve 

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve 

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied 

Mov’t in 

Unusable 

Reserves 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account       

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement       

Charges for depreciation of non current assets 1,216 2,940    -4,156 

Charges for impairment and revaluation losses of non current assets 166 8,184    -8,350 

Movements in the fair value of Investment Properties -2,001     2,001 

Amortisation of intangible assets 62 26    -88 

Capital grants and contributions applied -902 -260    1,162 

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 1,297     -1,297 

Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain / loss on disposal  34 1,938    -1,972 

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement       

Provision for the financing of capital investment -55 -281    336 

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and HRA balances -1,241 -5,807    7,048 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Accounts       

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement -17    17  

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account     0 0 

Adjustments primarily involving the Major Repairs Reserve       

Transfer to Major Repairs Reserve  -2,966  2,966   

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital expenditure    -2,966  2,966 

 
 
 
 

P
age 157



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 43 

Adjustments between Accounting and Funding Basis Under Regulations 2015/16 (continued) General 

Fund 

Balance 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve 

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve 

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied 

Mov’t in 

Unusable 

Reserves 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve       

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain / loss on disposal of assets -177 -2,243 2,420    

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure   -1,225   1,225 

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve towards administrative costs on non current asset disposal  74 -74    

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance payments to the Housing Capital Receipts Pool 859  -859    

Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash   1   -1 

Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve       

Reversal of retirement benefits items charged to the Income and Expenditure Statement 4,371 1,351    -5,722 

Employer‟s pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners -2,525 -833    3,358 

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account       

Amount by which income credited to the Income and Expenditure Statement is different from income 
calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements 

276    
 

-276 

Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account       

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
on an accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in accordance with statutory requirements 

8 -3   
 

-5 

Total Adjustments 1,371 2,120 263 0 17 -3,771 

P
age 158



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 44 

 
Adjustments between Accounting and Funding Basis Under Regulations 2014/15 General 

Fund 

Balance 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve 

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve 

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied 

Mov’t in 

Unusable 

Reserves 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account       

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement       

Charges for depreciation of non current assets 1,178 2,592    -3,770 

Charges for impairment and revaluation losses of non current assets 119 6,966    -7,085 

Movements in the fair value of Investment Properties -4     4 

Amortisation of intangible assets 46 31    -77 

Capital grants and contributions applied -972 -119    1,091 

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 1,560     -1,560 

Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain / loss on disposal  310 1,228    -1,538 

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement       

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment -26 -266    292 

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and HRA balances -219 -6,064    6,283 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Accounts       

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 0    0  

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account     0 0 

Adjustments primarily involving the Major Repairs Reserve       

Reversal of Major Repairs Allowance credited to the HRA  -2,623  2,623   

Use of Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 
 

   -2,623  2,623 

 
 
 
 

P
age 159



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 45 

Adjustments between Accounting and Funding Basis Under Regulations 2014/15 (continued) General 

Fund 

Balance 

Housing 

Revenue 

Account 

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve 

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve 

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied 

Mov’t in 

Unusable 

Reserves 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve       

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain / loss on disposal of assets -298 -1,566 1,864    

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure   -1,580   1,580 

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve towards administrative costs on non current asset disposal 3 46 -49    

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance payments to the Housing Capital Receipts Pool 698  -698    

Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash   3   -3 

Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve       

Reversal of retirement benefits items charged to the Income and Expenditure Statement 3,653 1,139    -4,792 

Employer‟s pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners -2,259 -785    3,044 

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account       

Amount by which income credited to the Income and Expenditure Statement is different from income 
calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements 

-140    
 

140 

Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account       

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
on an accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in accordance with statutory requirements 

4 4   
 

-8 

Total Adjustments 3,653 583 -460 0 0 -3,776 

P
age 160



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 46 

 

7. TRANSFERS TO AND FROM EARMARKED RESERVES 
 

 Balance 

31/3/14 

Movement 

in year 

Balance 

31/3/15 

Movement 

in year 

Balance 

31/3/16 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Insurance Fund 2,377 -82 2,295 -79 2,216 

Renewal and Repairs Funds 491 45 536 -272 264 

Corporate Reserves 6,964 1,009 7,973 -274 7,699 

Ring Fenced Reserves 643 152 795 -226 569 

Capital Reserve 800 -160 640 238 878 

Specific Grant Reserves 295 85 380 -260 120 

General Fund subtotal 11,570 1,049 12,619 -873 11,746 

HRA Reserves 469 -110 359 1,739 2,098 

Total 12,039 939 12,978 866 13,844 

 

 

8. OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE 
 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Parish Council Precepts 489 476 

Payments to the Government Housing Capital 
Receipts Pool 

859 698 

Losses / Gains (-) on the disposal of non current 
assets 

-374 -275 

Pension administration expenses 53 52 

Total 1,027 951 

 

 

9. FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Interest payable and similar charges 3,168 3,163 

Pensions interest cost and expected return on 
pension assets 

1,931 1,953 

Interest income -123 -103 

Income, expenditure and changes in the fair 
value of investment properties 

-2,534 -759 

Gains and losses on trading accounts 0 0 

Total 2,442 4,254 

 

Page 161



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 47 

 

 

10. TAXATION AND NON SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Council tax income 6,743 6,597 

Non domestic rates income and expenditure 1,996 2,438 

Non ring fenced government grants 4,734 5,046 

Capital grants and contributions 373 290 

Total 13,846 14,371 

 

 

Page 162



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 48 

11a. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 

Movement on Balances 2015-16 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 

D
w

e
ll
in

g
s

 

O
th

e
r 

L
a
n

d
 &

 

B
u

il
d

in
g

s
 

V
e
h

ic
le

s
, 

P
la

n
t,

 

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 &
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

A
s
s
e
ts

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

A
s
s
e
ts

 

S
u

rp
lu

s
 

A
s
s
e
ts

 

 

A
s
s
e
ts

 U
n

d
e
r 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 

T
o

ta
l 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Cost or Valuation         

Balance at 1
st
 April 2015 194,295 33,994 4,084 1,152 1,852 110 0 235,487 

Additions 10,365 269 2,476 67 52  2,782 16,011 

Revaluations recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 10,064 883      10,947 

Revaluations recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services -3,015 -95      -3,110 

De-recognition - disposals and decommissioning -2,583 -33 -965   -110  -3,691 

Transfers -1,097 520      -577 

Other movements -46,676       -46,676 

Balance at 31
st

 March 2016 161,353 35,538 5,595 1,219 1,904 0 2,782 208,391 

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment          

Balance at 1
st
 April 2015 -46,676 -1,980 -1,897 0 0 -32 0 -50,585 

Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve -265 -272      -537 

Depreciation written out to the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services -2,605 -459 -556     -3,620 

Impairments recognised in the Revaluation Reserve -2,500 -82      -2,582 

Impairments recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services -5,073 -133 -32     -5,238 

De-recognition - disposals and decommissioning 747 4 
 

965   32  1,748 

Other movements 46,676       46,676 

Balance at 31
st

 March 2016 -9,696 -2,922 -1,520 0 0 0 0 -14,138 
 

Net Book Value Balance at 1
st

 April 2015 147,619 32,014 2,187 1,152 1,852 78 0 184,902 

Net Book Value Balance at 31
st

 March 2016 151,657 32,616 4,075 1,219 1,904 0 2,782 194,253 

P
age 163



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 49 

 

Movement on Balances 2014-15 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 

D
w

e
ll
in

g
s

 

O
th

e
r 

L
a
n

d
 &

 

B
u

il
d

in
g

s
 

V
e
h

ic
le

s
, 

P
la

n
t,

 

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 &
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

A
s
s
e
ts

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

A
s
s
e
ts

 

S
u

rp
lu

s
 

A
s
s
e
ts

 

T
o

ta
l 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Cost or Valuation        

Balance at 1
st
 April 2014 180,222 33,725 4,444 1,066 1,852 150 221,459 

Additions 10,350 243 520 86   11,199 

Revaluations recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 5,165 86     5,251 

Revaluations recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services -277      -277 

De-recognition - disposals and decommissioning -1,140 -70 -880   -40 -2,130 

Transfers -25 10     -15 

Other movements       0 

Balance at 31
st

 March 2015 194,295 33,994 4,084 1,152 1,852 110 235,487 

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment         

Balance at 1
st
 April 2014 -34,421 -1,149 -2,194 0 0 -32 -37,796 

Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve -116 -250     -366 

Depreciation written out to the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services -2,433 -453 -518    -3,404 

Impairments recognised in the Revaluation Reserve -3,088 -106     -3,194 

Impairments recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services -6,689 -52 -65    -6,806 

De-recognition - disposals and decommissioning 71 30 880    981 

Other movements       0 

Balance at 31
st

 March 2015 -46,676 -1,980 -1,897 0 0 -32 -50,585 
 

Net Book Value Balance at 1
st

 April 2014 145,801 32,576 2,250 1,066 1,852 118 183,663 

Net Book Value Balance at 31
st

 March 2015 147,619 32,014 2,187 1,152 1,852 78 184,902 

P
age 164



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 50 

 
Depreciation 
All of the following assets, except infrastructure, are depreciated on a straight 
line basis over the life of the asset, and no residual value is assumed for 
these assets. 
 
The following useful lives have been used in the calculation of depreciation: 
 

 Council Dwellings – traditional build property 70 years, non traditional build  
property 40 years and 18 years for garages 

 Other Land and Buildings – these have a range of lives varying between 7 
and 50 years, although the majority of assets have an estimated life of 
around 30 to 40 years 

 Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment – this covers a range of different 
types of asset with estimated useful lives mostly between 5 and 12 years 

 Infrastructure – these assets are inalienable in nature, in that value is 
derived only by continued use of the asset in its current form (there is no 
prospect of sale or alternative use). As such these assets are not 
depreciated but will either be written out when there is a change of use or 
a revaluation exercise. 

 
Capital Commitments 
At 31

st
 March 2016 the Council had entered into a number of contracts for the 

construction or enhancement of non current assets in future years budgeted 
to cost £2.810m. Similar commitments as at 31

st
 March 2015 were £5.334m. 

 
The major commitments are: 
 

 Bathroom installations to Council Dwellings £0.435m 

 Kitchen installations to Council Dwellings £0.463m 

 Greenshoots Project £0.834m 
 
Revaluations 
The Council carries out a programme that ensures that all Property, Plant & 
Equipment is re-valued at fair value at least every 5 years, and this year a full 
revaluation of the housing stock took place. This exercise also encompasses 
a review of the asset classes for each item. Valuations are largely carried out 
internally however professionally qualified firms may be employed to 
undertake some valuations under the guidance of the Council‟s Estates 
Service. Valuations of land and buildings are carried out in accordance with 
the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional 
standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.   
 
The significant assumptions applied in estimating fair values are: 
 

 The analysis of value split between land and buildings 

 The estimated useful life of the asset 

 Full building surveys have not been carried out as part of the valuation 
process 

 

Page 165



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 51 

 
 Council 

Dwellings 

Vehicles, 

Furniture, 

Plant & 

Equipment 

Other 

Assets 

Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Historical cost at last valuation 0 5,595 3,004 8,599 

     
Valued at fair value as at:     

31
st
 March 2016 161,353 0 4,334 165,687 

31
st
 March 2015 0 0 269 269 

31
st
 March 2014 0 0 33,732 33,732 

31
st
 March 2013 0 0 104 104 

31
st
 March 2012 0 0 0 0 

Total 161,353 5,595 41,443 208,391 

 
 

11b. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 
 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Balance at start of year 1,003 1,345 

Assets newly classified as held for sale 283 25 

Assets de-classified as held for sale -5 -10 

Revaluation gains 0 33 

Assets sold -30 -390 

Balance at end of year 1,251 1,003 

 
 

12. HERITAGE ASSETS 
 
The closing value of Heritage Assets is £490,000 (£490,000 in 2014-15).  
 
Civic Regalia: 
The Council owns a range of Civic regalia items including Mayoral Chains, 
Pendants and various other Chains and items of Office valued at £102,000. 
These items are used by the Mayor and Deputy Mayor for Civic functions and 
are valued every 3 years by a specialist professional firm. The last valuation 
was undertaken during the 2013/14 financial year, and resulted in a 
revaluation increase of £28,000. There have been no other changes in asset 
values over the last 5 years.  

Page 166



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 52 

 
Public Sculptures 
Three public sculptures were built within the Skelmersdale area of the 
Borough and were identified as the „Roundabout Sculptures.‟ These were 
built to provide character to the area as well as exhibiting high technology and 
innovation, and interaction with the local community. The sculptures are 
commonly termed the Daffodil Sculpture, the Faces Roundabout and the 
Lighting Column. They are valued on the asset register at cost, £364,000, and 
no depreciation is accounted for as they have an indeterminate useful life. 
 
These assets are visually inspected on an annual basis to review any 
potential impairment. There has been expenditure of £935 in 2015-16 on 
these sculptures, which has been fully impaired. There have been no other 
changes in asset values over the last 5 years. 
 
Memorials, fountains and village cross 
The Council has a number of war memorials located within the Borough, 
relating to the Boer War and First and Second World Wars. The Council also 
owns two fountains and a village cross. These assets have an indeterminate 
useful life and are valued at cost where known, or otherwise simply 
recognised in the Council‟s asset register. The total cost recognised for this 
class of asset is £24,000. 
 
There has been expenditure on war memorials of £2,130 in 2014-15, £48,000 
in 2013-14, and £3,000 in 2012-13. All of this expenditure has been fully 
impaired. There have been no other changes in asset values over the last 5 
years. 
 
 

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
 

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement: 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Rental income -1,259 -1,448 

Direct operating expenses 726 693 

Movement in fair value of investment properties -2,001 -4 

Net gain / loss -2,534 -759 

 
There are restrictions on a number of investment properties concerning how 
any disposal proceeds or income generated can be used. The Council has no 
contractual obligations to purchase, construct, or develop investment property 
or repairs, maintenance or enhancement. 
 

Page 167



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 53 

 
The movement in the fair value of investment properties is shown below: 
 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Balance at start of year 10,657 10,643 

Net gains/losses from fair value adjustments 2,001 4 

Additions 0 10 

Transfers 300 0 

Balance at end of year 12,958 10,657 

 
 

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 

The Council accounts for purchased software licences as intangible assets. 
All software is given a finite useful life, based on assessments of the period 
that the software is expected to be of use. Most assets have a useful life of 5 
years. The carrying amount of intangible assets is amortised on a straight line 
basis.  

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Balance at start of year:   

 - Gross carrying amount 437 384 

 - Accumulated amortisation -170 -142 

Net carrying amount at start of year 267 242 

Additions 216 102 

Amortisation -87 -77 

Net carrying amount at end of year 396 267 

 
 

Balance at end of year:   

 - Gross carrying amount 572 437 

 - Accumulated amortisation -176 -170 

Net carrying amount at end of year 396 267 

 
During the course of the year fully amortised assets with a gross carrying 
value of £81,000 were written off (£49,000 in 2014-15).

Page 168



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 54 

 

15. IMPAIRMENT AND REVALUATION LOSSES 
 
An impairment charge of £8.184m (£6.966m in 2014-15) was made to the 
Housing Revenue Account, primarily as a result of an element of the Housing 
capital programme not increasing the book value of Council dwellings, and as 
a result of revaluation reductions. A full revaluation of the Council‟s housing 
stock was undertaken as at the 1st April 2015, and this resulted in an overall 
net revaluation increase of £7.564m (£2.091m in 2014-15) being posted to 
the Revaluation Reserve. Both the impairment charge and the housing stock 
revaluation were conducted in conjunction with the Council‟s internal Estates 
service who followed professional guidelines in conducting both exercises.   
 
Impairment charges of £0.166m (£0.120m in 2014-15) were also made to 
other parts of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the 
year, as a result of capital investment that has not increased the book value 
of assets. 

 

 

16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

The Council has £11.515m of short term investments (£11.017m in 2014-15) 
that are classified as loans and receivables. Details on debtors are shown in 
note 18 to the accounts, and these are classified as financial assets carried at 
contract amounts. The Council has £88.212m of borrowing (£88.212m in 
2014-15) that is classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost. Details on 
creditors are shown in note 20, and these are classified as financial liabilities 
carried at contract amounts.  
 
Details on interest expenses and interest income are shown in note 9. Interest 
payments primarily relate to the £88.212m of loans taken out from the Public 
Works Loans Board to fund the HRA self financing payment to Central 
Government. Investment income is generated mainly from investments of 
short-term funds with Banks, Building Societies and Local Authorities.  
 
The Code requires the fair value of each class of financial asset and liability 
to be disclosed in the Notes to the Statement of Accounts to enable it to be 
compared to its carrying amount in the Balance Sheet: 
 

 The fair value of debtors and creditors (as shown in notes 18 and 20) are 
taken to be the invoiced or billed amount. Consequently these items‟ 
carrying value is judged to be not materially different from their fair value 

 The fair value of investments is assumed to approximate to its carrying 
value, as these instruments will mature within the next 12 months 

 The fair value of PWLB borrowing is £97.223m compared to its carrying 
amount including accrued interest of £88.246m. This difference is 
because the Council‟s debt portfolio includes a number of fixed rate loans 
where the interest rate payable is more than the prevailing rates at the 
balance sheet date. This shows a notional future loss based on economic 
conditions at the balance sheet date arising from a commitment to pay 
interest to lenders above current market rates. 

 
 

Page 169



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 55 

 
Details of the Council‟s investment properties and information about the fair 
value hierarchy as at 31st March 2016, are as follows: 

 

 Other 

significant 

observable 

inputs 

 Level 2 

Significant 

unobservable 

inputs 

Level 3 

Fair Value 

as at 31st 

March 2016 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Commercial Units 6,950 562 7,512 

Office Units 5,348 0 5,348 

Other 0 98 98 

Total 12,298 660 

 

12,958 

 

Valuation techniques used to determine level 2 and level 3 fair values for 

Investment properties 
The fair values attributed to level 2 categorisation in the fair value hierarchy 
have been based upon the market approach using current market conditions 
and recent sales prices and other relevant transactional information for similar 
assets across the locality. 
 
Level 3 categorisation has also been valued by the market approach however 
the transactional information available is not as comprehensive and as such 
the level of reliability is reduced. Levels of assumption have had to be used, 
the significance of such determines that they should be categorised as level 
3. 
 

Highest and best use 
In estimating the fair value of the Council's investment properties the highest 
and best use of the properties is their current use. 
 

Gains and losses 
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of Investment 
Properties are recognised in the surplus or deficit on the provision of services. 
The overall fair value gain attributed to these assets for 2015/16 was 
£2.001m. 
 

Assets held for sale 
Assets held for sale are classified in the hierarchy as level 2 and are valued at 
£1.251m. The majority of these assets are land items whilst some £0.28m are 
Council house sales. For both classes of asset there is adequate 
transactional data to classify them as level 2 in the hierarchy. 
 

Valuation process for Investment properties and assets held for sale 
The fair value is measured annually at each reporting date. Valuations are 
carried out internally by a Qualified RICS surveyor (Royal Institute of 
Chartered Surveyors) following the appropriate professional guidance.  
 

 

 

Page 170



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 56 

 

Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements categorised within level 3 of 

the Fair Value Hierarchy 
 

  2015/2016 

  £’000 

Opening Balance   475 

Total gain / (loss) for the period included in 
Surplus / Deficit on the provision of services 
resulting from changes in fair value 

 185 

Total  660 

 

There have been no transfers between the fair value hierarchies. There are 
two specific assets classified within the level 3 category, one has a value of 
some £98,000 and the other is valued at £562,000, totalling £660,000. The 
robustness of the level 3 categorisation has been tested by varying the yield 
rate by a full percentage point. This produces changes of just over £11,000 
for the smaller valued asset and some £110,000 for the larger. 
 
 

17. INVENTORIES 
 

  2015/2016 2014/2015 

  £’000 £’000 

Work in progress  26 0 

All other items  11 15 

Total  37 15 

 

 

18. DEBTORS 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

General Government Bodies 1,438 2,108 

Other Local Authorities 1,553 3,556 

Trade Debtors 2,001 2,235 

Other Debtors 4,797 4,899 

Payments in Advance 87 43 

Sub total 9,876 12,841 

Provision for impairments -4,290 -4,595 

Total 5,586 8,246 

 

Page 171



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 57 

 

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Cash and Bank 828 434 

Money at call 1,000 5,000 

Sub total 1,828 5,434 

Bank overdraft 0 -1,713 

Total 1,828 3,721 

 

 

20. CREDITORS 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

General Government Bodies 1,348 1,581 

Other Local Authorities 945 1,273 

Trade Creditors 3,423 3,822 

Leaseholder Advance and Tenant Prepayments 1,077 1,006 

Other Creditors 882 828 

Total 7,675 8,510 

 
 

21. PROVISIONS 
 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Opening balance 1,135 1,243 

Movement to grants & contributions in advance -3 0 

Additional provisions made 1,013 0 

Amounts used -192 -68 

Unused amounts reversed -15 -40 

Closing balance 1,938 1,135 

 
The Council holds a number of provisions for specific purposes, with the main 
provision relating to the potential cost of NNDR appeals. 

 

Page 172



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 58 

 

22. USABLE RESERVES 
 

Movements in the Council‟s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and Note 7. 
 
 

23. UNUSABLE RESERVES 
 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

i. Revaluation Reserve 26,414 18,786 

ii. Capital Adjustment Account 83,893 84,281 

iii. Deferred Capital Receipts 2 4 

iv. Pensions Reserve -53,282 -61,944 

v. Collection Fund Adjustment Account -1,306 -1,030 

vi. Accumulated Absences Account -206 -201 

Total 55,515 39,896 

 
 

i. Revaluation Reserve 
 

 This reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in 
the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when 
assets with accumulated gains are: 
 

 Re-valued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost 

 Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through 
depreciation; or 

 Disposed of and the gains realised 
 

This reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, 
the date the reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date 
are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Page 173



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 59 

 
 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

   Balance at start of year 18,786 17,210 

   Surplus or deficit on the revaluation of non- 
current assets not posted to the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services 

8,365 2,091 

   
Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment 
Account 

  

Difference between fair value depreciation and 
historical cost depreciation 

-537 -366 

Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped -200 -149 

Sub total -737 -515 

   

Balance at end of year  26,414 18,786 

 
 

ii. Capital Adjustment Account 
 

This account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and 
for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets 
under statutory provisions. 
 
The account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or 
enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with 
reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures 
to a historical cost basis). The account is credited with the amounts set aside 
as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and subsequent costs. 
 
The account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment 
Properties. The account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on 
Property, Plant and Equipment before 1st April 2007, the date the 
Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains. Note 6 provides details 
of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those 
involving the Revaluation Reserve. 

 

Page 174



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 60 

 
 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

   Balance at start of year 84,281 85,924 

   Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure 
debited or credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement 

  

Charges for depreciation, impairment, and 
revaluation losses 

-12,506 -10,856 

Amortisation of intangible assets -88 -77 

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under 
statute 

-1,297 -1,560 

Non-current assets written off as part of the gain 
/ loss on disposal of assets 

-1,972 -1,538 

Sub total -15,863 -14,031 

   
Capital financing applied in the year   

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance 
new capital expenditure 

1,225 1,580 

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance 
new capital expenditure 

2,966 2,623 

Capital grants and contributions credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and applied to capital financing 

1,162 1,091 

Provision for the financing of capital investment 
charged against the General Fund and HRA 
balances 

336 292 

Capital expenditure charged against the 
General Fund and HRA balances 

7,048 6,283 

Sub total 12,737 11,869 

   
Adjusting amounts written out of the 
Revaluation Reserve 737 515 

Movement in the market value of Investment 
Properties debited or credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

2,001 4 

   

Balance at end of year  83,893 84,281 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 175



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 61 

 

iii. Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 
 
This reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current assets 
but for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory 
arrangements, the Council does not treat these gains as usable for financing 
new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the 
deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to 
the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Balance at start of year 4 6 

Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon 
receipt of cash 

-2 -2 

Balance at end of year  2 4 

 
 

iv. Pensions Reserve 
 
This reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for accounting for post employment benefits and for funding 
benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Council accounts for 
post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, 
updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions 
and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. 
 
However statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as 
the Council makes employer‟s contributions to the pension fund. The debit 
balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in 
the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources set 
aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will 
have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. 
 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Balance at start of year 61,944 45,876 

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit 
liability / asset 

-11,025 14,320 

Reversal of Items relating to retirement benefits 
debited or credited to the Surplus / Deficit on 
the Provision of Services 

5,722 4,792 

Employer‟s pension contributions payable in the 
year 

-3,359 -3,044 

Balance at end of year  53,282 61,944 

 
 

Page 176



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 62 

 

v. Collection Fund Adjustment Account 
 
This account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council 
tax income and non domestic rates income in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from council tax payers and 
business rate payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying 
across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund. 
 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Balance at start of year 1,030 1,170 

Amount by which council tax and non domestic 
rates income credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement is different 
from council tax and non domestic rates income 
calculated for the year in accordance with 
statutory requirements 

276 -140 

Balance at end of year  1,306 1,030 

 
 

vi. Accumulated Absences Account 
 
This account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the 
General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but 
not taken in the year e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31

st
 

March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund 
Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from this Account. 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Balance at start of year 201 192 

Amount by which officer remuneration charged 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement on an accruals basis is different from 
remuneration chargeable in the year in 
accordance with statutory requirements 

5 9 

Balance at end of year  206 201 

 

 

 

 

Page 177



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 63 

 

24. CASH FLOW STATEMENT - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
 
 The cash flows for operating activities include the following items: 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Interest received -124 -94 

Interest paid 3,172 3,164 

 
 
The deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following 
non cash movements: 
 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Depreciation 4,156 3,770 

Impairment and downward valuations 8,350 7,085 

Movement in the market value of investment 
properties 

-2,001 -4 

Amortisation 88 77 

Change in Creditors -1,111 1,214 

Change in Debtors -80 1,374 

Change in Inventories -21 25 

Movement in Pension Liability 2,364 1,748 

Carrying amount of non current assets sold or 
disposed 

1,972 1,538 

Other non cash items charged to the deficit on 
the provision of services 

805 -46 

Non cash movements  14,522 16,781 

 
 
The deficit on the provision of services has also been adjusted for the 
following items that are investing and financing activities: 
 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Proceeds from the sale of non current assets -2,346 -1,815 

Capital grants for non current assets charged 
through revenue 

-373 -290 

Non cash movements  -2,719 -2,105 

 
 

Page 178



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 64 

 

25. CASH FLOW STATEMENT - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, 
investment property and intangible assets 

-15,669 -12,115 

Purchase of short term and long term 
investments 

-43,500 -33,500 

Proceeds from the sale of non-current assets 2,346 1,815 

Proceeds from short term and long term 
investments 

43,000 27,015 

Other receipts from investing activities 327 290 

Net cash flows from investing activities  -13,496 -16,495 

 
 

26. CASH FLOW STATEMENT - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Receipts from financing activities 2,653 496 

Cash payments for the reduction of outstanding 
liabilities relating to finance leases and deferred 
liabilities 

-228 -228 

Net cash flows from financing activities  2,425 268 

 
  

 

 

 

Page 179



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 65 

 

27. AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR RESOURCE ALLOCATION DECISIONS 
 
The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is that specified by the 
Service Reporting Code of Practice. However decisions about resource 
allocation are made by the Council and its Cabinet on the basis of budget 
reports analysed across Services. These reports are prepared on a different 
basis from the accounting policies used in the financial statements. In 
particular: 
 

 The cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of 
employer‟s contributions) rather than current service cost of benefits 
accrued in the year 

 Direct Service Organisation (DSO) activity is included within service 
budgets rather than being outside the net cost of services 

 HRA reports include all HRA items rather than just those within the net 
cost of services 

 Certain contributions to and from reserves are included within service 
reports 

 
 
Reconciliation of Service Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Net expenditure in the Service Analysis 15,137 15,002 

Net expenditure of services and support 
services not included in the analysis 

-519 -199 

Amounts in the Income and Expenditure 
Statement not reported to management in the 
Analysis 

339 -427 

Amounts included in the Analysis not included in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement  

-1,955 -1,912 

Cost of Services in the Income and 

Expenditure Statement  
13,002 12,464 

 
 
The income and expenditure of the Authority‟s principal services recorded in 
the budget reports are shown overleaf. 

Page 180



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 66 

Income and Expenditure Leisure & 

Wellbeing 

Corporate 

Services 

Housing & 

Inclusion 

HRA Development 

& Regen 

Street Scene Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Service Income and Expenditure 2015-16        

Fees, charges and other service income 1,845 3,885 9,492 35,546 6,272 9,148 66,188 

Government grants and contributions 924 150 29,936 1 68 1,182 32,261 

Total income 2,769 4,035 39,428 35,547 6,340 10,330 98,449 

        
Employee expenses 2,148 3,354 2,756 4,583 2,255 4,405 19,501 

Other service expenses 3,123 1,337 34,307 17,297 2,723 9,095 67,882 

Capital Charges 854 0 200 11,149 152 238 12,593 

Support service recharges 1,205 2,165 3,808 2,518 2,413 1,501 13,610 

Total expenditure 7,330 6,856 41,071 35,547 7,543 15,239 113,586 

        

Net expenditure 4,561 2,821 1,643 0 1,203 4,909 15,137 

        

Service Income and Expenditure 2014-15        

Fees, charges and other service income 1,879 4,083 9,947 33,894 6,279 9,260 65,342 

Government grants and contributions 977 52 30,518 0 85 1,214 32,846 

Total income 2,856 4,135 40,465 33,894 6,364 10,474 98,188 

        
Employee expenses 2,172 2,888 2,849 4,534 2,235 4,319 18,997 

Other service expenses 3,606 1,469 35,028 17,226 2,538 9,197 69,064 

Capital Charges 791 0 216 9,589 292 221 11,109 

Support service recharges 1,202 2,278 3,935 2,545 2,545 1,515 14,020 

Total expenditure 7,771 6,635 42,028 33,894 7,610 15,252 113,190 

        

Net expenditure 4,915 2,500 1,563 0 1,246 4,778 15,002 

P
age 181



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 67 

Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis 
This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of Service Income and Expenditure relate to a subjective analysis of the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis 2015-16 Service 

Analysis 

Services not 

in Mngt 

Analysis 

Amounts not 

reported to 

management 

Amounts not 

included in 

I&E statement 

Allocation of 

recharges 

Cost of 

Services 

Corporate 

Amounts 

Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

         
         
Fees, charges and other service income 66,188 1,076 -1,032 -7,732 -24,948 33,552 1,261 34,813 

Interest and investment income      0 123 123 

Income from council tax and business rates      0 18,607 18,607 

Government grants and contributions 32,261 182  -33  32,410 5,107 37,517 

Other Items      0 2,423 2,423 

Total income 98,449 1,258 -1,032 -7,765 -24,948 65,962 27,521 93,483 

         

Employee expenses 19,501 440 -285 -3,060  16,596  16,596 

Other service expenses 67,882 250 -348 -5,788 -24,948 37,048  37,048 

Capital Charges 12,593   -161  12,432  12,432 

Support service recharges 13,610 49 -60 -711  12,888  12,888 

Interest payments      0 3,168 3,168 

Precepts      0 489 489 

Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool      0 859 859 

Other Items      0 12,628 12,628 

Total expenditure 113,586 739 -693 -9,720 -24,948 78,964 17,144 
 

96,108 

         

Surplus or deficit on the provision of services 15,137 -519 339 -1,955 0 13,002 -10,377 2,625 

 

P
age 182



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 68 

 
Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis 2014-15 Service 

Analysis 

Services not 

in Mngt 

Analysis 

Amounts not 

reported to 

management 

Amounts not 

included in 

I&E statement 

Allocation of 

recharges 

Cost of 

Services 

Corporate 

Amounts 

Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

         
         
Fees, charges and other service income 65,342 815 -1,112 -7,458 -24,508 33,079 1,451 34,530 

Interest and investment income      0 103 103 

Income from council tax      0 18,512 18,512 

Government grants and contributions 32,846 39  -39  32,846 5,336 38,182 

Other Items      0 1,862 1,862 

Total income 98,188 854 -1,112 -7,497 -24,508 65,925 27,264 93,189 

         

Employee expenses 18,997 333 -676 -2,943  15,711  15,711 

Other service expenses 69,064 136 -716 -5,578 -24,508 38,398  38,398 

Capital Charges 11,109  -165 -172  10,772  10,772 

Support service recharges 14,020 186 18 -716  13,508  13,508 

Interest payments      0 3,164 3,164 

Precepts      0 477 477 

Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool      0 698 698 

Other Items      0 13,760 13,760 

Total expenditure 113,190 655 -1,539 -9,409 -24,508 78,389 18,099 96,488 

         

Surplus or deficit on the provision of services 15,002 -199 -427 -1,912 0 12,464 -9,165 3,299 

 
 
 
 

P
age 183



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 69 

 

28. TRADING OPERATIONS 
 

 Trading Services 
The Council operates a market in Ormskirk on Thursdays and Saturdays 
under a market charter, as well as several car parks, and a commercial 
assets portfolio. 

 

Direct Service Organisations 
 The Council has a number of DSOs that operate in a commercial environment 

and balance their budget by generating income from other parts of the 
Council or other organisations.  The DSO‟s income shown below largely 
represents internal transfers from service revenue accounts and this element 
is netted off in producing the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

 
The surpluses generated on the DSOs have been repatriated to client 
services in line with accounting regulations. 
 

 

 2015-16 

Expenditure 

2015-16 

Income 

2015-16 

Deficit/ 

Surplus(-) 

2014-15 

Deficit/ 

Surplus(-)  
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Trading Services      

     
Market 215 223 -8 -24 

     
Car Parks 297 685 -388 -337 

     
Commercial Assets Portfolio 472 905 -433 -436 

     
Total 984 1,813 -829 -797 

     

DSOs     

Refuse Collection & Street 
Cleaning 

4,731 4,699 32 -236 

     
Grounds Maintenance  1,526 1,525 1 -2 

     

Repatriation of balances   33 -33 238 

     
     
Deficit / Surplus (-) 

transferred to I&E Statement 

6,257 6,257 0 0 

 
 

Page 184



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 70 

 

 

29. MEMBER ALLOWANCES 
 

The total allowances and expenses paid in the year were £0.344m (£0.341m 
in 2014-15). 

 
 
 

30. OFFICER REMUNERATION 
 

The remuneration paid to senior officers whose salary is £50,000 or more is 
shown overleaf. The number of other staff whose remuneration exceeded 
£50,000, excluding employer‟s pension contributions, is shown below.  

 

Remuneration band Number of employees 

 2015/16 2014/15 

£50,000 - £54,999  7 6 

Total 7 6 

 

   
 The Council terminated the contracts of 4 employees in 2015-16 in different 

service areas incurring liabilities of £0.354m (£0.017m in 2014-15).  

 
Exit package cost band Total number of exit 

packages by cost band 

Total cost of exit 

packages in each band 

 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 

   £’000 £’000 

£0 - £20,000 1 2 16 17 

£20,000 - £40,000 2 0 50 0 

Over £150,000 1 0 288 0 

Total 4 2 354 17 

 
 There have been no compulsory redundancies over the last 2 years. 
 

In addition to the figures shown above there were also £0.037m of pension 
strain costs incurred in 2014-15 in relation to a flexible retirement. 
 
It is the Council‟s policy that the savings made from redundancies and flexible 
retirements must be sufficient to ensure that the associated costs are 
recovered within a 3 year payback period. 
 
A management restructure was agreed during the year involving the 
redundancy of a Managing Director post, the re-designation of another 
Managing Director post to Chief Executive, and the re-designation of 
Assistant Directors to Directors. The savings resulting from this restructure will 
be more than sufficient to meet the 3 year payback requirement. 
 
 

Page 185



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 71 

 
Post Title Salary Expenses Compensation 

for loss of office 

Benefits in 

Kind 

Total before 

pensions 

Pension 

contribution 

Total 

 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

2015-16 Remuneration        

Chief Executive 92,015 0 0 4,578 96,593 12,360 108,953 

Managing Director (People and Places) left in year 82,432 0 99,575 4,164 186,171 199,945 386,116 

Director of Housing and Inclusion 69,916 0 0 4,578 74,494 9,540 84,034 

Director of Leisure and Well Being 70,131 138 0 4,578 74,847 9,540 84,387 

Director of Street Scene 63,720 0 0 4,578 68,298 8,673 76,971 

Director of Development and Regeneration 63,305 0 0 4,578 67,883 8,673 76,556 

Borough Treasurer 55,688 0 0 0 55,688 7,629 63,317 

Borough Transformation Manager and Deputy 
Director of Housing and Inclusion 

56,183 0 0 1,239 57,422 7,629 65,051 

Borough Solicitor 56,988 0 0 0 56,988 7,629 64,617 

2014-15 Remuneration        

Managing Director (Transformation) 89,919 0 0 4,871 94,790 12,072 106,862 

Managing Director (People and Places) 96,772 0 0 4,871 101,643 13,220 114,863 

Assistant Director Housing and Regeneration 68,075 0 0 4,871 72,946 9,310 82,256 

Assistant Director Community Services 68,390 151 0 4,871 73,412 9,310 82,722 

Assistant Director Street Scene 61,967 0 0 4,871 66,838 8,463 75,301 

Assistant Director Planning 62,092 0 0 4,871 66,963 8,463 75,426 

Borough Treasurer 54,877 0 0 0 54,877 7,518 62,395 

Transformation Manager 55,382 0 0 1,239 56,621 7,518 64,139 

Borough Solicitor 56,177 0 0 0 56,177 7,518 63,695 

 

P
age 186



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 72 

 

31. EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Fees payable in relation to the audit of the 
accounts and inspection fees 

44 58 

Fees payable for the certification of grant claims 
and returns 

16 16 

Audit Commission Rebate - -5 

Total 60 69 

 

 

32. GRANT INCOME 

 
The following grants and contributions were credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grants   

Revenue Support Grant 2,385 3,370 

New Homes Bonus 1,369 1,050 

Council Tax Freeze Grant 71 70 

Business Rate Relief 658 517 

Business Rates Safety Net 218 0 

Other Grants 33 39 

Total non ring fenced government grants 4,734 5,046 

   

Credited to Services   

Benefit Payments and Administration 29,898 30,454 

Capital Grants 806 800 

Contributions to Refuse and Cleansing 981 991 

Contribution to Highways 201 224 

Other Grants and Contributions 524 377 

Total  32,410 32,846 

 

Page 187



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 73 

 
The Council has received a number of grants and contributions that have yet 
to be recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them that 
could require the monies to be returned to the provider. The balances at the 
year end are as follows: 
 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Grants and Contributions Received in Advance   

Section 106 Agreements 1,723 1,867 

Commuted Sums 206 197 

Total  1,929 2,064 

 
  

33. RELATED PARTIES 

 
The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - 
bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council 
or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosures of these 
transactions allow readers to assess the extent to which the Council might 
have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have 
secured the ability to limit another party‟s ability to bargain freely with the 
Council. 
 

Central Government 
Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of 
the Council and it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within 
which the Council operates. It provides the majority of the Council‟s funding in 
the form of grants, and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that 
the Council has with other parties e.g. council tax.  Grants received from the 
Government are set out in the subjective analysis in note 27 on reporting for 
resource allocation decisions and in note 32 on grant income. 
 

Members 
Members of the Council have direct control over the Council‟s financial and 
operating policies. The total of Member allowances paid in 2015-16 is shown 
in note 29. 
 
There are 54 Council Members, of whom 13 are also Parish Councillors, 6 are 
County Councillors, and 1 is a Member of the Fire and Rescue Authority. 
Precept payments to Lancashire County Council, the Fire and Rescue 
Authority and the Police Authority are shown in the Collection Fund. The total 
precepts paid to Parish Councils are shown in note 8 and grant funding of 
£0.131m (£0.087m in 2014-15) was also provided to them. Details of the 
payments made to the Lancashire Pension Fund are shown in note 37. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 188



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 74 

 
Decisions on the overall level of funding to be provided to Parish Councils are 
taken by full Council with due regard to procedures for preventing undue 
influence. Decisions on how this funding pot is allocated to parishes are 
determined by the Borough Treasurer using a set formula in consultation with 
a Cabinet Member who is not a Parish Councillor. 
 
Grant payments were also made to a number of voluntary organisations in 
which Council Members had interests as follows: 
 

 Council for Voluntary Services – £32,779 – 3 Members 

 Women‟s Refuge – £11,230 – 1 Member 

 Dial a Ride - £28,575 – 1 Member 

 Community Centres - £13,095 – 6 Members 
 
The Council is committed to maintaining and developing sound arrangements 
for its corporate governance, including having procedures in place to prevent 
undue influence. As part of this commitment, Members must make 
disclosures of their interests to the Council‟s Monitoring Officer. Details of 
these disclosures are recorded and maintained in registers of interests and 
can be viewed on the Council‟s website. 
 
Members have to declare any significant interests in agenda items at the start 
of Committee meetings, and cannot then take part in any discussions or 
decisions in relation to those items. 
 

Officers 
Officers must make disclosures of their interests to the Council‟s Monitoring 
Officer and these are maintained in a register of interests. Officers may not 
take part in any discussion, decision or administration in relation to these 
items. 
 

Other Related Parties 
The Council has entered into a long term contractual arrangement with 
Lancashire County Council and BTLS for the provision of Revenues, Benefits 
and IT Services worth £3.2m in 2015-16 (£3.2m in 2014-15). The Council also 
received income of £1.18m (£1.22m in 2014-15) from Lancashire County 
Council in relation to Refuse and Recycling, Street Cleansing and Highways 
Maintenance activities. 
 
Payment of subsidy of £0.404m (£0.434m in 2014-15) was made to West 
Lancashire Community Leisure Ltd as part of the Council‟s Leisure services 
arrangement. The Council provides the majority of the Trust‟s funding and 
also appoints one out of the Trust‟s 6 Board Members. 
 
The Council is an associate member of the Liverpool City Region Combined 
Authority and paid a membership fee of £21,000 for the year. The Council 
has also agreed to become a constituent member of the Lancashire 
Combined Authority, which is currently in the process of being established.  
 

Page 189



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 75 

 

34. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING 
 

The total amount of capital expenditure for the year is shown in the table 
below (including the value of assets acquired under long term contracts), 
together with the resources used to finance it.  

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 94,255 93,251 

   
Capital Investment   

Property, Plant and Equipment 16,011 11,199 

Heritage Assets 1 2 

Investment Properties 0 10 

Intangible Assets 216 102 

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital 
Under Statute 

1,297 1,560 

   
Sources of Finance   

Capital Receipts -1,225 -1,580 

Government Grants and Other Contributions -1,162 -1,091 

Direct Revenue Contributions -10,014 -8,906 

Minimum Revenue Provision -336 -292 

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 99,043 94,255 

   

Explanation of Movement in Year   

Increase in underlying need to borrow 5,069 1,525 

Movement in other long term liabilities 55 -228 

Minimum Revenue Provision -336 -292 

Other 0 -1 

Change in Capital Financing Requirement 4,788 1,004 

 
 
Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to 
revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an 
increase in the Capital Financing Requirement, which is a measure of the 
capital expenditure incurred by the Council that has yet to be financed.  

 

Page 190



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 76 

 

35. LEASES 
 

 Authority as Lessee: Operating Leases 
 
The Council has acquired a number of vehicles by entering into operating 
leases, typically with lives not exceeding five years. The Council entered into 
a new arrangement with regards to vehicle supply and maintenance during 
2012-13. A review was undertaken that determined the supply of the vehicles 
under this contract represented an embedded lease. 
 
The minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future 
years are: 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Not later than one year 787 741 

Later than one year and not later than five years 324 1,050 

Total 1,111 1,791 

 
 Authority as Lessor: Operating Leases 

 
The Council leases out property and equipment under operating leases for 
the provision of community services such as community centres, and for 
economic development purposes to provide suitable accommodation for the 
business community. 
 
The minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in 
future years are as follows: 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Not later than one year 1,634 1,799 

Later than one year and not later than five years 2,702 2,560 

Later than five years 2,992 3,103 

Total 7,328 7,462 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 191



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 77 

 

36. OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES AND CONTRACTS 
 

The Council has agreed a 15-year investment programme in its leisure 
centres through a partnership arrangement with Serco that started in January 
2005. This investment will be repaid over the lifetime of the contract.  

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Balance brought forward 580 808 

Leisure trust repayments -228 -228 

Leisure trust investment 283 0 

Balance carried forward 635 580 

 
In October 2011 the Council agreed a 10 year contract for the provision of its 
IT, Revenues and Benefits Services with Lancashire County Council and 
BTLS, with an annual value of £3.2m. In October 2012 the Council agreed a 5 
year contract for vehicle supply and maintenance with Kier Limited with an 
annual value of just over £1.0m. 
 
 

37. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES 
 

 Participation in Pension Schemes 
  

The Council makes contributions towards the cost of post-employment 
benefits as part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers. 
Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the 
Authority has a commitment to make the payments, which needs to be 
disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement. 
 
The Council participates in a Local Government Pension scheme, which is a 
funded defined benefit scheme, meaning that the Council and employees pay 
contributions into a fund calculated at a level intended to balance the pension 
liabilities with the investment assets. The scheme is administered by 
Lancashire County Council and is operated under the regulatory framework 
for the Local Government Pension Scheme. The governance of the scheme is 
the responsibility of a Pension Fund Committee comprised of a mixture of 
County Councillors and representatives from other employers. The 
Committee is assisted by an investment panel which advises on investment 
strategy and risk management.  
 
Previously the Council had arrangements in place for the award of 
discretionary post-employment benefits upon early retirement, although these 
awards are no longer made. This is an unfunded defined benefit 
arrangement, under which liabilities were recognised when awards were 
made. However, there are no investment assets built up to meet these 
pension liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet actual pension 
payments as they eventually fall due.  
 

Page 192



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 78 

 
Transactions Relating to Post-Employment Benefits 
 
The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of 
services when they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits 
are eventually paid as pensions. However the charge we are required to make 
against Council tax is based on the cash payable in the year. Consequently 
the accounting cost of post-employment benefits is reversed out of the 
General Fund and Housing Revenue Account via the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement and the Movement in Reserves 
Statement during the year: 
 

 
 
 

 

 

Discretionary 

Benefits 

 

All Benefits 

 2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement     

Cost of Services     

 - Current service cost 0 0 3,518 2,732 

 - Past service cost / gain (-) 0 0 0 45 

 - Settlements and curtailments 0 0 220 10 

Other Operating Expenditure     

 - Administration expenses 0 0 53 52 

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure     

 - Interest Cost 177 229 5,667 6,592 

 - Expected return on scheme assets 0 0 -3,736 -4,639 

Total post-employment benefit charged to the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 

177 229 5,722 4,792 

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability     

 - Return on plan assets 0 0 -1,899 -8,685 

 - Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in 
financial assumptions 

-185 495 -9,126 23,005 

Total post employment benefit charged to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 
-8 724 -5,303 19,112 

     
Movement in Reserves Statement     

Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services for post 
employment benefits in accordance with the Code 

-177 -229 -5,722 -4,792 

     
Actual amount charged against the General Fund 
Balance for pensions 

367 379 3,358 3,044 

Page 193



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 79 

 
Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet 
 
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Council‟s obligation in 
respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows: 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Pension assets and liabilities  Discretionary Benefits All Benefits 

 2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Present value of the benefit obligation 5,340 5,715 174,940 179,560 

Fair value of plan assets 0 0 -121,657 -117,616 

Net liability 5,340 5,715 53,283 61,944 

Reconciliation of the movements in the Discretionary Benefits 

 

All Benefits 

Fair Value of Scheme Assets 2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Opening fair value of scheme assets 0 0 117,616 106,541 

Interest on plan assets 0 0 3,736 4,639 

Re-measurements 0 0 1,899 8,685 

Administration expenses 0 0 -53 -52 

Employer contributions 367 379 3,358 3,044 

Contributions by scheme participants 0 0 872 851 

Benefits paid -367 -379 -5,771 -6,092 

Closing Balance 0 0 121,657 117,616 

Reconciliation of Present value of the Discretionary Benefits All Benefits 

Scheme Liabilities 2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Opening Balance 5,715 5,370 179,560 152,417 

Current service cost 0 0 3,518 2,732 

Interest cost 177 229 5,667 6,592 

Contributions by scheme participants 0 0 872 851 

Re-measurement gains and losses -185 495 -9,126 23,005 

Past service costs 0 0 0 45 

Settlements and curtailments 0 0 220 10 

Benefits paid -367 -379 -5,771 -6,092 

Closing Balance 5,340 5,715 174,940 179,560 

Page 194



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 80 

 
An analysis of scheme assets by category is shown below: 
 

Asset 

category 

Sub category Quoted 

(Y/N) 

31 March 2015 

£’000 

31 March 2016 

£’000 

Equities Consumer Discretionary Y 6,125 6,174 

 Consumer Staples Y 6,880 7,021 

 Energy Y 934 522 

 Financials Y 6,969 7,368 

 Health Care Y 3,997 4,408 

 Industrials Y 5,644 5,262 

 Information Technology Y 6,649 7,476 

 Materials Y 1,593 1,504 

 Telecommunications Y 818 1,008 

 Utilities Y 877 1,006 

     

Bonds UK corporate Y 1,133 1,746 

 Overseas corporate Y 500 728 

 UK index linked Y 3,691 2,441 

     

Property Offices N 2,438 2,455 

 Offices / Warehouses N 249 251 

 Industrial / Warehouses N 2,849 2,869 

 Shops N 2,096 1,456 

 Retail Warehouse N 2,085 2,100 

 Shopping Centre N 601 605 

 Multi Let Commercial Building N 756 1,940 

     

Alternatives UK private equity N 2,951 1,981 

 Overseas private equity N 4,180 5,334 

 Infrastructure N 6,546 9,706 

 Credit Funds N 30,301 30,566 

 Indirect Property Funds N 861 1,677 

 Overseas Pooled Equity Funds N 10,195 9,688 

     

Cash Cash and cash equivalents N 5,698 4,293 

 Net current assets N 0 72 

     

Total   117,616 121,657 

 
 
Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 
 
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit 
credit method, which is an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in 
future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels 
etc. 
 
Mercer Limited, an independent firm of actuaries, has assessed these 
liabilities based on the last full actuarial valuation of the scheme as at 31st 
March 2013. 

Page 195



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 81 

 
The significant assumptions used by the actuary are set out below: 
 
 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

   
Financial Assumptions   

Rate of inflation 2.0% 2.0% 

Rate of increase in salaries 3.5% 3.5% 

Rate of increase in pensions 2.0% 2.0% 

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 3.5% 3.2% 

   
   
Longevity Assumptions   

Life expectancy of a male / female   

 - Current pensioner aged 65 23.0 / 25.6 22.9 / 25.4 

 - Future pensioner aged 65 in 20 years time 25.2 / 27.9 25.1 / 27.8 

   
 

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial 
assumptions set out in the table above. The sensitivity analyses below have 
been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions 
occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change 
that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain 
constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life 
expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice this is 
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be 
interrelated. 
 
The estimations in the sensitivity analyses have followed the accounting 
polices for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit 
credit method.  
 
The principal risks to the Council relate to the longevity assumptions, statutory 
changes to the scheme, structural changes to the scheme, changes to 
inflation, bond yields and the performance of equity investments held by the 
scheme. These are mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory requirements 
to charge the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account the amounts 
required by statute as described in the accounting policies note. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 196



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 82 

 

Sensitivity Analysis Liabilities Assets Deficit 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Central 174,940 -121,657 53,283 

+ 0.1% discount rate 171,996 -121,657 50,339 

+0.1% inflation rate 177,935 -121,657 56,278 

+0.1% pay growth 175,576 -121,657 53,919 

1 year increase in life expectancy 178,426 -121,657 56,769 

 
 

Impact on the Council’s Cash Flows 
 

 The objectives of the scheme are to keep employer‟s contributions at as 
constant a rate as possible. Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis 
and the next triennial actuarial valuation is due to be completed in March 
2016. 
 
The scheme will need to take account of the national changes to the scheme 
under the Public Pensions Services Act 2013. Under the Act, the Local 
Government Pension scheme may not provide benefits in relation to service 
after 31 March 2014. The Act provides for scheme regulations to be made 
within a common framework, to establish new career average revalued 
earnings schemes to pay pension and other benefits to certain public 
servants. 
 
The total normal contributions the Council expect to pay to the Pension 
scheme in the year to 31

st
 March 2017 are £2.937m. Expected contributions 

for Discretionary Benefits in the year to 31
st
 March 2017 are £0.367m. The 

weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme 
members is 17 years (which is unchanged from the previous year), and the 
duration profile used to determine assumptions is very mature. 
 

 

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS 

 
The Council, along with many other local authorities, was a member of the 
Municipal Mutual Insurance Scheme (MMI), which ran between 1975 and 
1993 when the scheme ceased in its current form. Since that date MMI has 
been in a scheme of arrangement whereby claims for the period are settled 
under the arrangement terms, with an objective of matching assets to 
liabilities, but where past members may become liable for payments that the 
Fund cannot meet. The scheme has been triggered and this resulted in 
payments becoming due in 2013-14 and 2015-16 and further payments may 
also become due if the liability situation deteriorates, although it is not 
possible to estimate the timing and value of any future payments.  
 
Recent Employment Appeals Tribunal rulings on Holiday pay have expanded 
the types of pay that have to be considered when calculating the amount of 
holiday pay an employee should receive. No liabilities have been included in 
the accounts for this factor as its implications are currently being investigated, 
but it is not expected that it will have a material impact. 

Page 197



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 83 

 

39. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL 

INSTRUMENTS 

 
 The Council has adopted CIPFA‟s Treasury Management Code of Practice, 

and our Treasury Management policy and strategy (available at 
www.westlancs.gov.uk) set out a framework for the control of risk arising from 
financial instruments.  

 
The Council‟s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks as set out 
below: 

 

 (a) Credit risk - the possibility that other parties might fail to pay 

amounts due to the Council 
 

Credit risk from deposits with banks and financial institutions is minimised 
through the Annual Treasury Management Strategy which requires that 
deposits are only made with institutions that meet identified minimum credit 
criteria, and places limits on the time period and amounts to be invested with 
individual counter parties.  
 
Investments are only made with UK based financial institutions with excellent 
credit ratings and other local authorities. The Council‟s maximum exposure to 
credit risk in relation to its investments and money at call of £13.34m cannot 
be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make payments 
of interest or repaying the principal sum will be specific to each individual 
institution. However the Council prioritises minimising risk above maximising 
its investment returns. Consequently the Council does not expect any losses 
from defaults on its investments, and this position has been validated by 
historical experience. 

 
 The Council is also exposed to credit risk that it may not recover all of its 

debtor balances in full from its customers and other parties. Details on debtor 
balances and the associated bad debt provisions, which are typically based 
on the age of the debt and experience of default and uncollectability, are 
shown in note 18. The single largest bad debt provision is £2.4m in relation to 
housing benefit overpayments debt which has been fully provided for given 
the difficulties involved in collecting this type of liability. 

 

(b) Liquidity risk - the possibility that the authority might not have funds 

available to meet its commitments to make payments 
 

The Council has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks 
to ensure that cash is available as needed. However if unexpected 
commitments did arise, the Council has ready access to an overdraft with its 
bank, or borrowing through the Public Works Loan Board. There is also 
typically a significant amount of money held at call that would be available.  
 
Consequently there is no significant risk that the Council will be unable to 
raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments. 

 
 
 

Page 198



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 84 

  
There is a risk that the Council could be bound to replenish a significant 
proportion of its borrowings at a time of unfavourable interest rates. However 
no borrowing is due to mature for over 10 years, and the debt portfolio has 
been spread out over a period of up to 50 years. The maturity analysis of 
loans is set out below: 
 

Maturity analysis of loans 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Between 10 and 15 years 4,411 4,411 

Between 15 and 20 years 4,411 4,411 

Between 20 and 25 years 8,821 8,821 

Between 25 and 30 years 8,821 8,821 

Between 30 and 35 years 17,642 17,642 

Between 35 and 40 years 17,642 17,642 

Between 40 and 45 years 17,643 17,643 

Between 45 and 50 years 8,821 8,821 

Total 88,212 88,212 

 
 

 (c) Market risk - the possibility that there will be a financial loss because 

of changes in interest rates, market prices, foreign exchange currency 

rates etc. 
 
 The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate 

movements on its borrowings and investments. Movements in interest rates 
can have a complex impact, and for example an increase in interest rates 
would have the following effect: 

 

 Borrowing at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities will fall. 
However as borrowings are not carried at fair value then this would not 
impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. 

 Investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services will rise 

 Investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the asset will fall 
 

The Council has borrowed from the Public Works Loans Board specifically for 
HRA self financing. Consequently the £88.212m of loans that have been 
taken out for HRA self financing are at fixed interest rates and with long 
maturity periods. An increase of 1% in discount rates would result in a 
reduction in the fair value of these loans from the current level of £97.223m to 
£80.467m. 
 
Investment income in 2015-16 was £0.123m based on an average rate of 
interest earned of 0.535%. 
 
 
 
 

Page 199



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 85 

 
There is an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure that feeds into 
the setting of the annual budget and budget monitoring during the year. This 
allows any changes to be accommodated, and this analysis will also advise 
whether any new borrowing taken out should be fixed or variable. 

  
The Council does not have any investments in shares or any financial 
instruments denominated in foreign currencies. Consequently it does not 
have any direct risk from movements in stock prices or foreign exchange 
rates. 

 
 

40. TRUST FUNDS 
 
 The Council acts as sole trustee for three trust funds. These funds do not 

represent assets of the Council and are not included in the balance sheet. 
There has been negligible expenditure and income on these trust funds over 
the last 2 years. 
 
The Richard Berry Charity was established in 1906 to provide help for the 
aged poor in Skelmersdale. The assets of the trust are £3,675 and there are 
no liabilities. 
 
The Jervis Charity was established in 1898 to provide help for the poor or ill 
associated with coal mining in Skelmersdale. The assets of the trust are 
£1,547 and there are no liabilities. 
 
The Ruff Public Park and Pleasure Ground was conveyed to the former 
Ormskirk District Council on charitable trust to be used as a public park in 
perpetuity.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 200



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 86 

 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT  
 
 
 

2014/2015            2015/2016 
£‟000      £‟000    £‟000 

     
 Expenditure    

-4,743 Repairs and maintenance (note 2)  -3,578  

-8,062 Supervision and management  -8,230  

-367 Rents, rates, taxes and other charges  -348  

-2,623 Depreciation (note 3)  -2,966  

-6,966 Impairment (note 3)  -8,184  

-309 Movement in bad debt provision  -145  

-23,070 Total expenditure   -23,451 

     

 Income (note 5)    

23,192 Dwelling rents  24,023  

372 Non-dwelling rents  385  

2,288 Charges for services and facilities  2,016  

0 Contributions towards expenditure  88  

25,852 Total income   26,512 

     

2,782 
Net Cost of HRA Services in the Comprehensive 

Income & Expenditure Statement 
  3,061 

     

-403 HRA share of Corporate & Democratic Core   -416 

-13 HRA share of Pension Past Service Gain/Cost(-)   -58 

2,366 Net Income of HRA Services   2,587 

     

 

HRA share of the operating income and 

expenditure included in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement 

   

292 Gain or Loss on Disposal of Non-Current Assets    231 

-3,057 Interest payable   -3,057 

64 Interest and Investment Income   65 

-465 
Pensions interest cost and expected return on 
pensions assets 

  -455 

-12 Pension administration expenses   -12 

119 Capital grants and contributions receivable   260 

     
-693 Deficit (-) / Surplus for the year on HRA services   -381 

     

 

Page 201



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 87 

 

MOVEMENT ON THE HRA STATEMENT  
 

 
 
2014/2015             2015/2016 

£‟000      £‟000  £‟000 

     

782 HRA Balances brought forward   782 

     

-693 
Surplus or Deficit (-) for the year on the HRA 
Income and Expenditure Statement  

 -381  

     

583 
Adjustments between accounting basis and 
funding basis under statute 

 2,120  

     

-110 Net change before transfers to or from reserves  1,739  

     

110 Transfers to or from reserves  -1,739  

     
0 Increase or Decrease in balances in year   0 

     

782 HRA Balances carried forward   782 

     

 
 
 
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under statute 
 

2014/15   2015/16 

£‟000      £‟000 

    
4 Transfers to/from the Accumulated Absences Account  -3 

-292 Gain (-) or loss on sale of non-current assets  -231 

354 HRA share of contributions to or from the Pensions Reserve  518 

-6,064 Capital expenditure funded by the HRA  -5,807 

-2,623 Transfer to Major Repairs Reserve  -2,966 

 Transfers to and from the Capital Adjustment Account   

6,966 - Impairment (note 3)  8,184 

2,623 - Depreciation (note 3)  2,966 

-119 - Capital Grants  -260 

-266 - Provision for repayment of debt  -281 

    

583 Total adjustments  2,120 

    
 
 

Page 202



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 88 

 

NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
 

1. The Housing Revenue Account 
 
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) reflects a statutory obligation to 
account separately for local authority housing provision. The Income and 
Expenditure Statement shows the economic cost in the year of providing 
housing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, 
rather than the amount to be funded from rents and other income. The 
Council charges rents to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations 
and this may be different from the accounting cost. The increase or decrease 
in the year, on the basis of which rents are raised, is shown in the Movement 
on the HRA Statement. 
 

 

2. Repairs and Maintenance 
 

Details of repairs and maintenance expenditure are as follows: 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Programmed Work (including painting) 1,141 1,288 

Repairs 2,437 3,455 

Total 3,578 4,743 

 

 

3. Capital charges 
 
An impairment charge of £8.184m (£6.966m in 2014-15) has been made to 
the HRA in the year. This reflects impairment and revaluation decreases that 
could not be charged against the Revaluation Reserve. These charges do not 
affect the bottom line position of the HRA as they are reversed in the 
Adjustments section of the Movement on the HRA Statement. 
 
Depreciation charges of £2.966m have been made to the HRA to reflect its 
use of assets (£2.623m in 2014-15).  An amount equal to depreciation has 
then been transferred to the Major Repairs Reserve, which has been used to 
finance capital expenditure. 

 

 

4. Pensions 
 

The HRA has been compiled on a FRS17/IAS19 compliant basis. This 
treatment does not affect the bottom line position of the HRA, as accounting 
entries are reversed out in the Adjustments section of the Movement on the 
HRA Statement and replaced with the HRA‟s actual contribution to the 
pension fund. 

 

Page 203



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 89 

 

5. Rents and Service Charges 

 
Dwelling rents comprise the total rent income for all Council owned dwellings 
in the year. The average rent of our dwellings at the end of 2015/16 was 
£75.31 (on a 52 week basis). This is an increase of £1.55 over the like for like 
figure at the end of 2014/15 or 2.1%, which primarily reflects a general 
increase in line with the government‟s formula for rent increases. 
 
Non-dwelling rents include the rent of garages, garage sites, and 
miscellaneous plots of housing land. The Council also levies service charges 
to contribute towards the costs of special services such as Caretakers, door 
entry systems, sheltered dwellings, and furnished homes. 

 

 

6. Rent Arrears and Provision for Bad Debts 
 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Arrears carried forward 1,237 828 

Provision for bad debts carried forward 505 513 

 
 

7. Movement in the Major Repairs Reserve 
 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Balance brought forward 0 0 

Depreciation Charge 2,966 2,623 

Funding for Capital Expenditure -2,966 -2,623 

Balance carried forward 0 0 

 
 

Page 204



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 90 

 

8. Housing Stock 

 
The Council owned an average of 6,169 dwellings (including flats and 
maisonettes, houses and bungalows) during 2015/2016. This table shows the 
changes in stock over the last two years. 

 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

Opening Stock 6,198 6,236 

Additions 12 5 

Sales -57 -35 

Demolitions and disposals 0 -7 

Other movements -13 -1 

Closing Stock 6,140 6,198 

 
A revaluation of the housing stock was carried out in year and during this 
exercise the original build date for some properties was amended. The 
updated analysis of the housing stock at 31 March 2016 is shown below. 

 

 PRE 

1919 

1919-44 1945-64 AFTER 

1964 

TOTAL 

Low-Rise Flats      

1 Bedroom - - 50 1,019 1,069 

2 Bedroom  4 - 107 75 186 

3 (or more) 
Bedroom  

- - - 11 11 

Sub Total 4 - 157 1,105 1,266 

      
Medium-Rise Flats      

1 Bedroom - 1 1 356 358 

2 Bedroom - - - 565 565 

3 (or more) 
Bedroom 

- - 1 118 119 

Sub Total - 1 2 1,039 1,042 

      
Houses      

1 Bedroom 2 32 287 272 593 

2 Bedroom 34 55 210 231 530 

3 Bedroom 10 155 470 1,720 2,355 

4 (or more) 
Bedroom  

- 6 5 343 354 

Sub Total 46 248 972 2,566 3,832 

      

Totals 50 249 1,131 4,710 6,140 

 

Page 205



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 91 

 

9. Movement in the Balance Sheet Value of HRA Non Current Assets 
 

 Intangible 

Assets 

Assets 

held for 

sale 

Council 

dwellings 

Other land 

/ buildings 

Assets Under 

Construction 

Other 

Assets 

Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

        
Opening value 58 25 147,620 627 0 196 148,526 

        
Additions and 
Enhancements 

  10,365  1,890  12,255 

Disposals  -25 -1,836   -77 -1,938 

Depreciation -26  -2,870 -27  -43 -2,966 

Revaluation 
and Impairment 

  -524 -95   -619 

Transfers  283 -1,097 814   0 

        

Closing value 32 283 151,658 1,319 1,890 76 155,258 

 
 

10. Vacant Possession Value of Council Dwellings 
 
The vacant possession value of dwellings on the 1st April 2015 was £432.8m 
(£424.0m at 1

st
 April 2014). The difference between the vacant possession 

value and balance sheet value of dwellings within the HRA reflects the 
economic cost to the Government of providing Council housing at less than 
open market rents. 
 

 

11. Sources of Funding for HRA Capital Expenditure 
 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Major Repairs Reserve 2,966 2,623 

HRA Revenue Contribution 5,807 6,054 

Internal Borrowing 3,124 1,525 

Capital Grants 260 119 

Capital Receipts 98 28 

Other 0 1 

Total 12,255 10,350 

 

 

12. Capital Receipts 
 

The value of receipts on disposals of HRA assets were £2.169m in the year 
(£1.520m in 2014-15).  

 

Page 206



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 92 

 

COLLECTION FUND STATEMENT 
 

 
2014-15  2015-16 

Business 
Rates 

Council 
Tax 

 Business 
Rates 

Council 
Tax 

£‟000 £‟000  £‟000 £‟000 

     
  INCOME   

30,994 52,537 Income due in year (notes 2 & 3) 31,671 54,001 

489 0 
Contributions to previous year deficits 
(note 4) 

1,554 125 

31,483 52,537 Total income 33,225 54,126 

     
     

  EXPENDITURE   

     

  Precepts, Demands and Shares   

14,958 0 - Central Government 15,609 0 

40 0 - Transitional Protection Payments 14 0 

11,966 6,563 - West Lancashire Borough Council 12,487 6,654 

2,692 36,732 - Lancashire County Council 2,809 37,947 

299 2,111 - Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 312 2,178 

0 5,172 - Lancs Police & Crime Commissioner 0 5,342 

     

0 284 
Contributions from previous year 
surpluses (note 4) 

0 0 

     

  Charges to Collection Fund   

1,187 1,698 
- Impairment of debts – write offs and 

provisions 
481 1,177 

-152 0 - Change in provision for appeals 2,334 0 

133 0 - Cost of Collection Allowance 133 0 

     

31,123 52,560 Total expenditure 34,179 53,298 

     

     

360 -23 Movement on Fund Balances -954 828 

     

     

-2,944 52 Opening Fund Balances -2,584 29 

-2,584 29 Closing Fund Balances -3,538 857 

     

 
 
 

Page 207



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 93 

 

NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND 

 

1. The Collection Fund Account 
 

This account is an agent‟s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for 
billing authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement 
shows the council tax and non-domestic rates transactions of the billing 
authority in relation to collection from taxpayers and distribution to local 
authorities and the Government.  

 
 

2. Council Tax  
  

The amount of Council Tax to be credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement for both billing authorities and major preceptors is 
their share of the accrued income. However, statute requires that the amount 
to be credited to the General Fund should be the authority‟s precept or 
demand for the year plus its share of the previous year‟s Collection Fund 
surplus or deficit. The difference between this regulatory charge and the 
accrued income is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account, as 
shown in note 6.  

 
Since the collection of Council tax is an agency arrangement, debtor and 
creditor balances belong proportionately to the billing authority and the major 
preceptors. This results in a debtor/creditor position between the billing 
authority and each major preceptor. 

 
The council tax base for 2015/2016 was 33,587.59 (33,159.36 in 2014/15) 
Band D equivalent properties calculated as follows: 

 

Property Band Chargeable 

Dwellings 

Band 

Multiplier 

Relevant 

Amount 
A 8,657.67 6/9 5,771.78 

B 6,279.62 7/9 4,884.15 

C 7,592.24 8/9 6,748.67 

D 5,905.88 1 5,905.88 

E 4,261.17 11/9 5,208.11 

F 2,238.21 13/9 3,232.98 

G 1,426.66 15/9 2,377.77 

H 71.85 2 143.70 

Total Relevant Amount 34,273.04 

Estimated Collection Rate 98.0% 

Council Tax Base 33,587.59 

 

Page 208



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 94 

 

3. National Non-Domestic Rates (Business Rates) 
 
 NNDR is the business rate and is organised on a national basis. The 

Government specifies an amount (49.3p in 2015/16 and 48.2p in 2014/15) 
and, subject to the effects of transitional arrangements and mandatory and 
discretionary reliefs, local businesses pay rates calculated by multiplying that 
amount by their rateable value. 

 
 The NNDR income after reliefs and discounts was £31.671m for 2015/2016 

(£30.994m for 2014/15). The rateable value for the Council‟s area at the end 
of the financial year 2015/16 was £81.337m (£80.495m for 2014/15). 

 
Prior to April 2013, accounting arrangements for NNDR reflected the fact that 
it was in substance an agency arrangement, with the Council being the agent 
of the Government in the collection of the charge. However from 2013/14, 
NNDR income, debtor and creditor balances, provisions, arrears and 
prepayments have been apportioned between the Council, Government, 
Lancashire County Council, and Lancashire Combined Fire Authority, as a 
result of the implementation of a new Business Rates Retention system. 

 

 

4. Surplus and Deficit on Collection 

 
 The final outturn on Council Tax operations shows a surplus of £0.857m, 

which compares with the estimated surplus of £0.288m declared in January 
2016 and which will be distributed in 2016-17. 

 
The financing arrangements for deficits and surpluses in respect of Council 
Tax provide for a sharing between major precepting authorities in proportion 
to their demands on the Collection Fund. The following table shows how 
these items have been shared over the last 2 years. 
 

 2015/2016 

Deficit 

2014/2015 

Surplus 

 £ £ 

Lancashire County Council -91,032 205,264 

Lancashire Police Authority -12,816 28,900 

Lancashire Fire Authority -5,231 12,029 

West Lancashire Borough Council -16,265 37,364 

Total -125,344 283,557 

 

Page 209



 

West Lancashire Borough Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 

Page 95 

 
The financing arrangements for deficits and surpluses in respect of Business 
Rates provide for a sharing between the Government and major precepting 
authorities on a set percentage basis. The following table shows how these 
items have been shared over the last 2 years. 
 

 2015/2016 

Deficit 

2014/2015 

Deficit 

 £ £ 

Central Government -777,141 -244,713 

West Lancashire Borough Council -621,713 -195,770 

Lancashire County Council -139,885 -44,048 

Lancashire Fire Authority -15,543 -4,894 

Total -1,554,282 -489,425 

 

 

Page 210



 

 
 

 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE: 
  

27 September 2016 
 
 

 
Report of: Borough Treasurer  
 
Contact for further information: Mr M.Coysh (Extn. 2603)  
    (E-mail: mike.coysh@westlancs.gov.uk)  
 

 
SUBJECT:   INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY – QUARTERLY UPDATE 
 

 
Wards affected: Borough wide 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To advise of progress against the 2016/17 Internal Audit Plan. 

 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 That Members note progress in the year to date.  
 

 
3.0 BACKGROUND  
 
3.1 This committee approved the 2016/17 Internal Audit Plan and the Internal Audit 

Manager brings written updates on progress against it to each meeting of this 
Committee.  

 
3.2 This report summarises progress to mid-September. This work will inform the 

overall opinion in the Internal Audit Annual Report that will be presented to this 
Committee following the end of the financial year. 

 
 
4.0 INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY TO DATE 
 
4.1 An appendix summarising progress to date and any significant issues arising is 

attached and the Internal Audit Manager will attend the meeting to present the 
report should Members have any questions.  

 
4.2 Progress against the plan to date is marginally behind the previous year’s with 

34% of audits in progress compared to 36% for the same period in 2015/16.  
4.3 The main reason for the variance is a vacancy which arose in last financial year 

and which was held open to allow consideration of the internal audit service 

Page 211

Agenda Item 8



through the Policy Options process. This vacancy is currently being covered by 
an agency placement. 

 
4.4 At the July meeting of Council a Policy Option to restructure the section, providing 

a comparable level of service at a reduced cost through management efficiencies 
was approved and the Chief Executive and Borough Treasurer were given 
authority to take all action necessary in connection with its implementation. 

 
 4.5 Steps are now being taken to bring the revised establishment into effect and the 

Audit Manager will provide a verbal update on the latest position at the meeting.  
 
4.6  It is anticipated that by the end of the financial year 2016/17 the shortfall will have 

been adequately addressed and audit coverage will be sufficient to enable an 
adequate assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s overall 
framework of governance and control for 2016/17. 

 
5.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS/COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
 
5.1 There are no significant sustainability impacts associated with this report and, in 

particular, no significant impact on crime and disorder. The report has no 
significant links with the Sustainable Community Strategy. 

 
6.0 FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 The restructure is being addressed through the Policy Options process and all 

other financial and resource implications arising from activity identified in this 
report are included in existing budget provisions. 

 
7.0 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 This report summarises progress against Internal Audit’s work programme to 

date. Internal Audit’s work is a key source of assurance to this Committee that 
risks to the achievement of the Council’s objectives are being properly managed.  

 
7.2 Steps have been taken to provide cover for the vacant post in the Audit team and 

this position will be monitored and reported through future updates to this 
Committee until such time as the new structure is in place. 

 

 
Background Documents 
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local 
Government Act 1972) to this Report. 
 
Equality Impact Assessment 
 
The decision does not have any direct impact on members of the public, employees, 
elected members and / or stakeholders.  Therefore no Equality Impact Assessment is 
required. 
 
Appendices 
1. Internal Audit Activity Quarterly Update.  
 

Page 212



 
INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY UPDATE 

 

 
1.0 Summary of progress 2016/17 
 
1.1 9 of the 26 items on the original plan are currently in progress. This is 

approximately 34% compared to 36% for the same period in 2015/16. 
 
1.2 The main reason for variance is a vacancy which has now been filled 

temporarily using an agency placement pending a permanent appointment 
following a phased restructure. The Audit Manager will provide a verbal update 
on the latest position at the meeting. 
 

2.0 Internal Audit 2016/17 second quarter activity update 
 

Title Position 

Contract Audit Work in progress 

National Fraud Initiative Work in progress 

Debtors Work in progress 

Council Tax Work in progress 

Creditors Work in progress 

NNDR Work in progress 

Main Accounting Work in progress 

Treasury Management Work in progress 

Payroll (implementation of self-service module) Work in progress 

  
 

Summary   

Work complete  0 

Work in progress 9 

Work not yet commenced 17 

Total 26 

 
 
 
3.0 Assurance rating system 
  
3.1 This report records the level of assurance provided by Internal Audit’s work. 

The following categories are used to record the level of assurance. 
 

Full assurance: there is a sound system of internal control designed to secure 

objectives and controls are being consistently applied. 
 

Substantial assurance: there is a generally sound system of internal control 

in place designed to secure objectives and controls are generally being 

applied consistently.  Some weaknesses in the design or operation of the 

controls put the achievement of particular objectives at risk. 
 

Limited assurance: weaknesses in design or inconsistent application of 

controls put the achievement of objectives at risk.  
 

Page 213



No assurance: weak controls or significant non-compliance with controls 

could result (or have resulted) in failure to achieve objectives.  

 

3.2 No system of internal control can eliminate every possible risk and increasing 
the level of control in a system frequently increases costs. Balancing risk 
appropriately against the costs of control is management’s responsibility.  

 
3.3 Internal Audit’s role is to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 

management and control processes.  
 

3.4 It is important to recognise that the scope of the work in each area examined 
defines the limits of the assurance which can be provided and to give context 
to the assurance provided each piece of work is summarised in the reports set 
out below. 

 
4.0 Assurance reports:  

 
4.1 CUSTOMER SERVICES 

 
Customer Services is the first point of contact for Council enquiries and deal 
with around 20,000 calls a month. 
 

4.1.1 Objectives 
 
Establish current position in relation the Service’s actions plans, risks and 
performance indicators. Examine controls on receipt of monies by telephone. 
Review spending against budget and undertake observations of Customer 
Service Advisors at work. 
 

4.1.2 Observations 
 

 Adequate controls for the risks identified for the service were documented on the 
Covalent system. 

 

 Performance against the indicators in use was found to be satisfactory.  
 

 A robust Business Continuity plan is in place in the event of service failure.  
 

 Adequate controls were found to be in place for the receipt of monies by 
Customer Advisors over the telephone with a high level of compliance noted in a 
Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard assessment. 

 

 No issues were highlighted in the review of the Service’s expenditure against 
budget. 

 

 Advisor observations established there were no significant variations to existing 
documented working practices and that web services are being promoted in line 
with the digital by preference agenda. 

 
4.1.3 Assurance 

 

Page 214



This Internal audit work provides substantial assurance that the systems in 
place to secure customer services’ business objectives are operating 
satisfactorily. 
 

4.2 TECHNICAL SERVICES 
 
At the time this work was undertaken Technical services’ work included a wide 
variety of tasks including project based work, for example: 

 

 commissioning and quality inspection roles in general engineering works such as 
the maintenance of car parks 

 providing advice e.g. in relation to drainage during planning consultations 

 collaborative work with partner organisations e.g. contributing to the authority’s 
role as a member of the Lancashire Resilience Forum. 

 maintenance of street name plates 

 liaising with local businesses in relation to the management of Ormskirk Town 
Centre. 

 
It also administered Ormskirk Market and Parking Enforcement which are 
examined separately and so were excluded from this review.  
 

4.2.1 Objectives 
 
To review activity in Technical Services.  
 

4.2.2 Observations 
 
Technical services operate in areas where the risks involved are complex and 
often responsibility for their management is shared between a number of 
organisations with the section acting as a conduit for communication with relevant 
partner organisations rather than being “owners” of the risk.  
 
While staff are proactive in identifying, assessing and addressing emerging risks 
documentation was not refreshed frequently.   
 
Since completion of the review and the departure of the Principal Engineer - Priv. 
Dev./Schemes and reduction in hours of the Technical Services Manager the 
opportunity has been taken to restructure the service with responsibility for the 
operations excluding out of hours work transferring to Development and 
Regeneration Services.  

 
4.2.3 Assurance 

 
This review provides substantial assurance that risks are being adequately 
managed but also concluded that performance relies heavily on the 
professional expertise of staff involved. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 215



4.3 CREDITORS 
 

The creditors system is administered by the BTLS Revenues and Benefits service 
but responsibility for administration and authorisation of orders and invoices 
remains with the commissioning services.  
 

4.3.1 Objectives 
 
To examine a random sample of 60 recent creditor payments to confirm that 
each transaction was traceable to the General Ledger, had been allocated an 
appropriate code, had VAT calculated correctly and coded appropriately, was 
reflected by an arithmetically correct invoice and was authorised in 
accordance with approved procedures. 

 
To review the use of payments made via BACS. 

 
To review procedures for processing changes to the creditor master file and 
controls on amendments to data. 
 
To review the process for maintaining user access to the creditor system. 
 
To examine calculation of the performance indicator for speed of processing 
invoices and review performance against it. 
 
 

4.3.2 Observations 
 
All transactions examined were readily traceable to the General Ledger, coded 
appropriately, and arithmetically correct. 
 
On one occasion the VAT element of the invoice had not been input.  In every 
other instance VAT (where chargeable) had been processed and coded 
correctly. 
 
In four instances payments had not been appropriately authorised. 
 
With these exceptions all transactions had been processed and authorised in 
accordance with approved procedures. 
 
The percentage of cheque payments as a proportion of total transactions 
appears reasonable and likely to reduce in the future. 
 
The controls in place regarding amendments to creditor details, e.g. bank 
account details, are appropriate. 
 
Performance for each of the first three quarters of 2015/16 exceeded the 
target of 98.24%. 
 
Monthly performance exceeded target in nine of the eleven months for which 
data was available.  This was an improvement on 2014/15, where the target 
was exceeded in seven months over the corresponding period. 
 

4.3.3 Assurance 

Page 216



 
While there were issues with authorisation on a small number of invoices 
these were minor technical infringements relating to the payment of valid 
invoices. This review provides substantial assurance that the systems in 
place to control creditor payments are operating satisfactorily. 
 

 

4.4 PAYROLL – VARIATIONS TO PAY (Supplementary exercise) 
 

Members will recall that 2014/15 audit work on payroll provided only limited 
assurance in relation to the system for initiating payroll variations. An action 
plan to address this was agreed with management and implemented.  

 
The system is due to be substantially amended again with the commencement 
of “payroll self-service” which will migrate the submission and authorisation of 
many forms to an electronic system.  
 
Internal Audit are currently reviewing the implementation of the new “self-
service” system and rather than review a system with a limited lifespan in 
depth this supplementary exercise was commissioned to ensure that the 
issues identified during the previous audit had been addressed and had not in 
fact led to significant inaccurate payment of variations.  

 
 

4.4.1 Objectives 
 

4.4.2 To examine source documents relating to 30 variations in payroll payments in 
order to establish whether they adequately support variations claimed and are 
produced in accordance with appropriate authorisation procedures. 
 

4.4.3 Observations 
 
There is an effective audit trail and claim authorisation can be readily traced to 
line managers. 
 
In all cases examined no errors were detected regarding the transfer of claim 
details from the officers’ claims forms to the electronic forms used by line 
managers to transmit the information to HR. 
 
One underpayment of a standby payment was identified which occurred as a 
result of confusion over the format of a claim form. This was corrected in the 
next salary run and revised forms are now in use throughout the authority. 
 

4.4.4 Assurance 
 

While this review was not intended to be a comprehensive assurance review 
as a future report will provide assurance on the operation of the Self-Serve 
process once this has been implemented it concluded that the temporary 
procedures put in place for the authorisation and processing of claims pending 
the implementation of Payroll Self-Serve now provide an effective audit trail for 
claims authorisation and found no evidence to suggest claims generally are 
being processed incorrectly. 

 

Page 217



 
 

 

 
5.0 Conclusion  

 
5.1 Progress against the 2016/17 plan to date is satisfactory and it is anticipated 

that internal audit coverage in the year will be sufficient to enable an adequate 
assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s overall 
framework of governance, risk management and control. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 218



 

 
 

 
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE:  
27 SEPTEMBER 2016 
 
CABINET:  
8 NOVEMBER 2016 

 

 
Report of: Borough Solicitor  
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor I Moran, Leader 
 
Contact for further information: Mr T P Broderick (Ext 5001)  
    (E-mail: terry.broderick@westlancs.gov.uk) 
    J C Williams (Extn. 5512)  
    (E-mail: judith.williams@westlancs.gov.uk)  
 

 
SUBJECT:  REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT – ANNUAL 
SETTING OF THE POLICY AND REVIEW OF USE OF POWERS 
 

 
Wards affected: Borough Wide Interest 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To report on the Council’s use of its powers under the Regulation of Investigatory 

Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) and to present an updated RIPA Policy document for 
approval.  

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION TO AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
2.1 That the Council’s RIPA activity and the updated RIPA Policy, at Appendix 1, be 

noted. 
 
3.0 RECOMMENDATION TO CABINET 

 
3.1 That the updated RIPA Policy at Appendix 1 be approved.  
 
 

 
4.0 BACKGROUND 
 
4.1 The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) came into force in 2000.  

Both the legislation and Home Office Codes of Practice strictly prescribe the 
situations in which and the conditions under which councils can use their RIPA 
powers.  All authorities are required to have a RIPA policy and procedure that 
they adhere to in using their RIPA powers. 

 
 

Page 219

Agenda Item 9

mailto:terry.broderick@westlancs.gov.uk
mailto:judith.williams@westlancs.gov.uk


4.2 The Council’s current approved RIPA Policy is made available on the Council’s 
Intranet and is a working document to assist investigating and co-ordinating 
officers within the Council.  Paragraph 5 of the RIPA Policy  stresses that 
grantors of authorisations must believe the authorised activity is (1) necessary for 
preventing and detecting crime and (2) is proportionate to what is sought to be 
achieved in carrying out the surveillance activity (e.g. the 24/7 watching of 
premises where private individuals may go about their lawful business, for the 
possibility of gaining collateral evidence for a very minor technical infraction of a 
byelaw would not in all likelihood be proportionate).  If it fails either test, 
authorisations should not be granted. 

 
5.0  MONITORING OF RIPA ACTIVITY 
 
5.1 In the last quarter up to the date of the writing of this report (6 September 2016) 

and in the last 12 months no covert surveillance has been authorised. 
 
5.2 The Senior Responsible Officer proactively seeks to ensure that the use of covert 

surveillance in this authority is well regulated.  Applications for authorisation to 
use covert surveillance must be rejected when the Authorising Officer is not 
satisfied that the surveillance is necessary or proportionate and legal advice 
should be sought by Authorising Officers in appropriate cases.   

 
5.3 A programme of training is in place and a RIPA guidance note is circulated within 

the Council at regular intervals to raise awareness.  Whenever a new Code of 
Practice is issued by the Government, Officers are notified accordingly. 

 
5  THE RIPA POLICY 
 
6.1 The updated RIPA Policy is presented to Cabinet for approval each year as 

required by guidance (Section 3.35 of the Home Office Covert Surveillance and 
Property Interference Code of Practice of December 2014 and section 3.27 of the 
Home Office Covert Human Intelligence Sources Code of Practice of December 
2014).  Officers ensure the use of RIPA is consistent with the Council’s Policy 
and regularly report on activity, again as is required.  

 
6.2 The Council’s updated RIPA Policy is annexed in Appendix 1.  This contains (in 

Appendix 3 of the policy) the current RIPA management structure which has 
been amended with other textual changes to reflect this change in the body of 
the Policy.  The updates do not include any substantive changes to the Policy. 

 
6.3 The OSC (Office of the Surveillance Commissioner) is currently conducting its 

review of the Council as regards the use of RIPA.  The Council has complied with 
the inspection requirements of the OSC and their decision is awaited. 

 
7.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS/COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
 
7.1 There are no significant sustainability impacts associated with this report and, in 

particular, positive impacts on crime and disorder will be achieved by adhering to 
RIPA and the RIPA Policy.  The report has no significant links with the 
Sustainable Community Strategy. 

 
 

Page 220



 
8.0 FINANCE AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no significant financial and resource implications arising from this 

report. 
 
9.0 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
9.1 The Council could be in breach of the relevant legislation if it does not follow the 

procedures set out in the RIPA Orders and Codes.  This could result in the 
inadmissibility 

 

 
 

Background Documents 
 
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local 
Government Act 1972) to this Report. 
 
Equality Impact Assessment 
 
 
This will be considered in relation to any particular authorisation. 
 
Appendices 
 
1. Appendix 1 – Updated Policy 
 

Page 221





LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 1 

 

           
 
 
 

WEST LANCASHIRE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 

RIPA POLICY 
 

 The Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 

 
In respect of 

 

 
Directed Surveillance, Use of Covert Human 

Intelligence Sources and Accessing 
Communications Data 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Version :   No.6    -  2016 
 
TPBRIPAPOLICYVERSION6-2016 
 

Page 223



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 2 

 

 
 
 Contents 

 
 

Page 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

3 – 4 

2 DIRECTED SURVEILLANCE 
 

4 – 6 

3. COVERT USE OF HUMAN INTELLIGENCE SOURCE 
(CHIS) 
 

7  

4. COMMUNICATIONS DATA 
 

8 

5. AUTHORISATIONS, RENEWALS AND DURATION 
 

8 – 14 

6. REVIEWS 
 

15 

7. RENEWALS 
 

15 

8. CANCELLATIONS 
 

16 

9. CENTRAL REGISTER OF AUTHORISATIONS 
 

16 – 17 

10. CODES OF PRACTICE 
 

17 

11. BENEFITS OF OBTAINING AUTHORISATION UNDER 
THE 2000 ACT 
 

17 – 18 

12. SCRUTINY AND TRIBUNAL 
 

18  

 APPENDICES 
 

 

 APPENDIX 1 - DEFINITIONS FROM THE 2000 ACT 
 

20 – 21 

 APPENDIX 2 - NOTIFICATION TO CENTRAL REGISTER 
OF AUTHORISATIONS UNDER RIPA 
 

22 

 APPENDIX 3 – CHART SETTING OUT THE RIPA 
MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE 
 

23 

 APPENDIX 4 – THE OFFICE OF SURVEILLANCE  
 COMMISSIONER‟S GUIDANCE – COVERT  
 SURVEILLANCE OF SOCIAL NETWORKING SITES  25 
 
 

Page 224



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 3 

 

1 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1. The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (the 2000 Act) regulates covert 

investigations by a number of bodies, including local authorities. It was introduced 
to ensure that individuals' rights are protected consistent with the obligations under 
The Human Rights Act 1998, while also ensuring that law enforcement and 
security agencies have the powers they need to do their job effectively. 

 
1.2. West Lancashire Borough Council is therefore included within the 2000 Act 

framework with regard to the authorisation of Directed Surveillance, the use of 
Covert Human Intelligence Sources (CHIS) and the obtaining of communications 
data through a single point of contact (SPOC). 

 
1.3 The purpose of this guidance is to: 
 

 explain the scope of the 2000 Act and the circumstances where it applies 

 provide guidance on the authorisation procedures to be followed. 
 
 This continues to be a developing area of law and the Courts are yet to fully define 

the limits of the powers.  This should be borne in mind when considering this 
Guide. 

 
1.4 The Council has had regard to the Codes of Practice on covert surveillance, CHIS 

and accessing communications data produced by the Home Office in preparing 
this guidance and each Service should hold copies to which staff can refer.  These 
documents are available at www.homeoffice.gov.uk/ripa. 

 
1.5 In summary the 2000 Act requires that when the Council undertakes “directed 

surveillance”, uses a “covert human intelligence source or accesses 
communications data (defined below at paragraphs 2, 3 and 4 below) these 
activities must only be authorised by an officer with delegated powers when the 
relevant criteria are satisfied. 

 
1.6 The Managing Directors, Assistant Director Housing & Regeneration, Assistant 

Director Community Services and Borough Solicitor can authorise these activities 
(in relation to communications data, they shall be known as  Designated Persons 
and shall seek the advice of the SPOC, see further paragraphs 4 and 5.1.3 
below).  Such nomination permits officers to grant authority for any purpose under 
the terms of the 2000 Act across all Council Services and service areas. 

 
1.7 Once an authorisation is granted for the use (or renewal) of directed 

surveillance, or acquisition of communications data, or covert human 
intelligence source it cannot take effect without an order approving the grant 
(or renewal) being obtained from a single Justice of the Peace (Magistrate, 
District Judge) (under amendments made by the Protection of Freedoms Act 
2012, to s.32A and s.32B of the 2000 Act). This order must be sought from 
the Magistrates’ Court, but when the Court is not in session. The 
arrangements for seeking the order will be made in consultation with Legal 
Services.  

 
1.8 Authorisation under the 2000 Act gives lawful authority to carry out surveillance 

and the use of a source.  Obtaining authorisation helps to protect the Council and 
its officers from complaints of interference with the rights protected by Article 8(1) 

Page 225



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 4 

 

of the European Convention on Human Rights, i.e. the right to respect for private 
and family life which is now enshrined in English law through the Human Rights 
Act 1998. This is because the interference with the private life of citizens will be “in 
accordance with the law”.  Provided activities undertaken are also “reasonable and 
proportionate” they will not be in contravention of Human Rights legislation. 

 

1.9 Authorising Officers and investigators within the Local Authority are to note that 
the 2000 Act does not extend to powers to conduct intrusive surveillance.  
Investigators should familiarise themselves with the provisions of Sections 3, 4 
and 5 of the Code of Practice on Directed Surveillance to ensure a good 
understanding of the limitation of powers within the 2000 Act. 

 
1.10. Deciding when authorisation is required involves making a judgment and 

assessing whether specific conditions apply to the investigation target.  
Paragraph 3.4 explains this process in detail.  If you are in any doubt, seek the 
advice of an Authorising Officer, if they are in doubt they will seek advice from the 
Borough Solicitor/Senior Responsible Officer.  However, in those cases where 
there is doubt as to the need for an authorisation it may be safer to consider 
seeking/granting an authorisation: a broader reading of the application of the Act‟s 
requirements is encouraged. 

 
1.11. In the case of CHIS authorisations for vulnerable people or juveniles, or where 

surveillance involves communication subject to legal privilege, confidential 
personal information or confidential journalistic material authorisation must be 
obtained from the Managing Directors only (this should be the Managing Director 
(Transformation) as Head of the Paid Service (in her absence the Managing 
Director (People and Places) may act), together with the necessary application 
for an order giving effect to authorisation from a Justice of the Peace.  

 
1.12 Only one of the Managing Directors should be requested to authorise directed 

surveillance involving the covert filming of any Council member or employee to the 
extent that this falls within RIPA. 

 
2. DIRECTED SURVEILLANCE 
 
2.1 The Council must apply to a Justice of the Peace for an order that gives 

effect to the authorisation for the use of directed surveillance prior to 
undertaking the activity. 

 
2.2 What is meant by Surveillance? 
 

"Surveillance" includes: 
 

a)  monitoring, observing or listening to persons, their movements, their 
conversations or their other activities or communication; 

 

b) recording anything monitored, observed or listened to in the course of 
surveillance; and   

 

c) surveillance by or with the assistance of a surveillance device. 

Page 226



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 5 

 

 
2.3 When is surveillance directed? 
 

Surveillance is „Directed‟ for the purposes of the 2000 Act if it is covert, but not 
intrusive and is undertaken: 

  

a) for the purposes of a specific investigation or a specific operation. 
 

b) in such a manner as is likely to result in the obtaining of private information 
about a person (whether or not one is specifically identified for the purposes 
of the investigation or operation); and 

 

c) otherwise than by way of an immediate response to events or 
circumstances the nature of which is such that it would not be reasonably 
practicable for an authorisation to be sought for the carrying out of the 
surveillance. 

 
2.4 In certain circumstances, use of social media sites such as Facebook, or using the 

internet in other ways could need authorisation as directed surveillance.  The Office 
of Surveillance Commissioners has given guidance on when the use of social media 
and the internet might need authorisation on RIPA.  The guidance can be read at 
appendix 4. 

 
2.5 Surveillance Threshold  
 
2.5.1 Before directed surveillance can be undertaken and the requisite order from 

a Justice of the Peace applied for, the Council must be satisfied that they are 
investigating a criminal offence that carries a maximum sentence of 6 
months or more imprisonment.  

 
2.5.2 The exception to the 6 month sentence threshold is specific offences of sale 

of alcohol or tobacco to an underage person which does not fall within the 
Council’s range of regulatory activities. 

 
2.5.3 During the course of an investigation, should the Council become aware that 

the criminal activity under investigation falls below the 6 month sentence 
threshold, then use of directed surveillance should cease.  

 
2.5.4 This 6 month sentence threshold does not apply to use of covert human 

intelligence or communications data techniques.  
 
2.6 The Council cannot undertake intrusive surveillance. 
 
2.6.1 Surveillance becomes intrusive if the covert surveillance: 
 

a) is carried out in relation to anything taking place on any “residential 
premises” or in any “private vehicle”; and 

b) involves the presence of an individual on the premises or in the vehicle or is 
carried out by means of a surveillance device; or 

c) is carried out by means of a surveillance device in relation to anything 
taking place on any residential premises or in any private vehicle but is 
carried out without that device being present on the premises or in the 
vehicle, where the device is such that it consistently provides information of 

Page 227



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 6 

 

the same quality and detail as might be expected to be obtained from a 
device actually present on the premises or in the vehicle. 

 

2.7 Before any officer of the Council undertakes any surveillance of any individual or 
individuals they need to assess whether the activity comes within the 2000 Act.  In 
order to do this the following key questions need to be asked. 

 
2.7.1 Is the surveillance covert?   
 

Covert surveillance is that carried out in a manner calculated to ensure that 
subjects of it are unaware it is or may be taking place.   

 

If activities are open and not hidden from the subjects of an investigation, the 2000 
Act framework does not in general apply.  However, if there is any doubt in respect 
of this matter, an officer must consider whether it may be appropriate to seek a 
RIPA authorisation. 

 
2.7.2 Is it for the purposes of a specific investigation or a specific operation? 
 

For example, are Civic building CCTV cameras which are readily visible to anyone 
walking around the building covered? 
 

The answer is not if their usage is to monitor the general activities of what is 
happening in the car park.  If that usage, however, changes, the 2000 Act may 
apply. 

 

For example, if the CCTV cameras are targeting a particular known individual, and 
are being used in monitoring his activities, that has turned into a specific operation 
which may require authorisation. 

 
2.7.3 Is it in such a manner that is likely to result in the obtaining of private information 

about a person? 
 

“Private information" is any information relating to a person‟s private or family life 
and aspects of business or professional life. 

 

For example, if part of an investigation is to observe a member of staff‟s home to 
determine their comings and goings then that would be covered. 

 

If it is likely that observations will not result in the obtaining of private information 
about a person, then it is outside the 2000 Act framework. However, the use of 
„test purchasers‟ may involve the use of covert human intelligence sources (see 
later). 

 

If in doubt, it is safer to consider getting authorisation. 
 

2.7.4 Is it undertaken otherwise than by way of an immediate response to event or 
circumstances where it is not reasonably practicable to get authorisation? 

 

The Home Office gives the example of an immediate response to something 
happening during the course of an observer's work, which is unforeseeable. 

 

However, if as a result of an immediate response, a specific investigation 
subsequently takes place that brings it within the 2000 Act framework. 

Page 228



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 7 

 

 
2.7.5 Is the Surveillance Intrusive? 
 

Directed surveillance turns into intrusive surveillance if it is carried out involving 
anything that occurs on residential premises or any private vehicle and involves 
the presence of someone on the premises or in the vehicle or is carried out by 
means of a (high quality) surveillance device. 

 

If the device is not on the premises or in the vehicle, it is only intrusive surveillance 
if it consistently produces information of the same quality as if it were. 

 

Commercial premises and vehicles are therefore excluded from intrusive 
surveillance. The Council is not authorised to carry out intrusive surveillance. 
 

2.7.6 Does the offence under investigation meet the 6 month threshold?  
 
3 COVERT USE OF HUMAN INTELLIGENCE SOURCE (CHIS)  
 
3.1 A person is a Covert Human Intelligence Source if: 
 

a) he establishes or maintains a personal or other relationship with a person 
for the covert purpose of facilitating the doing of anything falling within 
paragraph b) or c). 

 

b) he covertly uses such a relationship to obtain information or provide access 
to any information to another person; or  

 

c) he covertly discloses information obtained by the use of such a relationship 
or as a consequence of the existence of such a relationship. 

 

3.2. A purpose is covert, in relation to the establishment or maintenance of a personal 
or other relationship, if and only if the relationship is conducted in a manner that is 
calculated to ensure that one of the parties to the relationship is unaware of that 
purpose.  

 

3.3. The above clearly covers the use of professional witnesses to obtain information 
and evidence.  It is not Council practice to use such witnesses.  It can also cover 
cases such as a Council officer making a test purchase when there is a need to 
cultivate a relationship with the seller, which would not usually be the case. 

 
3.4. There is a risk that an informant may be, or become, a CHIS.  A member of the 

public giving information will be a CHIS if the information which he covertly passes 
to the authority has been obtained in the course of (or as a consequence of the 
existence of) a personal or other relationship.  See paragraph 2.22 of the CHIS 
Code of Practice, and paragraph 270 of OSC Procedures and Guidance 2011, 
which refers to the risk of “status drift”.  When an informant gives repeat 
information about a suspect or about a family, and it becomes apparent that the 
informant may be obtaining that information in the course of a family or 
neighbourhood relationship, alarm bells should begin to ring.  It probably means 
that the informant is in reality a CHIS, to whom a duty of care is owed if the 
information is then used.  In such circumstances officers should refer any such 
instance for legal advice before acting on the information received from such an 
informant. 

 

3.5 In this context (of authorising CHIS) ANY information (ie not confined to private 
information alone) to be gained by the covert manipulation of a relationship will 

Page 229



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 8 

 

require authorisation. 
 
3.6 The Council must apply to a Justice of the Peace for an order that gives 

effect to the authorisation for the use of covert human intelligence source 
(see 1.7 above). 

 
3.7 In certain circumstances, use of social media sites such as Facebook, or using the  
 Internet for research in other ways could need authorisation as the use of a covert  
 human intelligence source.  The guidance can be read at appendix 4. 
 
4 COMMUNICATIONS DATA 
 
4.1 The Council may also access certain communications data under the 2000 Act, 

provided this, like all other surveillance, is for the purpose of preventing or 
detecting crime. 

 
4.2 Following the passage of the Data Retention and Investigatory Powers Act 2014 

the Home Office has revoked all accreditation which enabled local authority staff to 
acquire communications data with effect from 1 December 2014.  The Council is 
now required to use the National Anti-Fraud Network‟s (NAFN‟s) Single Point of 
Contact services to acquire communications data under RIPA, if approved by a 
magistrate. The Acquisition and Disclosure of Communications Data Code of 
Practice shall be followed at all times.  Council staff are not permitted to obtain 
telecommunications and internet use data other than as provided for by the Act. 

 
4.3 The Council must apply to a Justice of the Peace for an order giving effect to 

the authorisation of the use of communications data.   
 
4.4 The accredited SPoCs at NAFN will scrutinise the applications independently.  

They will provide advice to applicants and designated persons ensuring the 
Council acts in an informed and lawful manner. 

 
5. AUTHORISATIONS, RENEWALS AND DURATION  

 
5.1 The Council must apply to a Justice of the Peace for an order that gives 

effect to the authorisation for the use of directed surveillance, 
communications data and covert human intelligence source (see 1.7 above). 

 
5.1.1 The Conditions for Authorisation 
 
5.1.2 Directed Surveillance 
 
5.1.1.3 For directed surveillance no officer shall grant an authorisation and make 

an application to a Justice of the Peace for the carrying out of directed 
surveillance unless he believes: 

 

a) that an authorisation is necessary for the purpose of preventing or detecting 
crime and  

 

b) the authorised surveillance is proportionate to what is sought to be 
achieved by carrying it out. 

 
5.1.1.4 The onus is therefore on the person authorising such surveillance to satisfy 

Page 230



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 9 

 

themselves it is:  
 

a) necessary for the ground stated above and; 
 

b) proportionate to its aim. 
 
5.1.1.5 In order to ensure that authorising officers have sufficient information to 

make an informed decision about whether to make an application to a 
Justice of the Peace for an order to give effect to any authorisation, it 
is important that detailed records are maintained.  As such the forms in the 
Appendix and the accompanying Guidance on Completing RIPA 
Authorisation Forms are to be completed where relevant. 

 

It is also sensible to make any authorisation sufficiently wide enough to 
cover all the means required as well as being able to prove effective 
monitoring of what is done against that which has been authorised. 
 
An Authorising Officer may partially approve or partially refuse an 
application for authorisation.  If an Authorising Officer does not authorise all 
that was requested, a note should be added explaining why. 

 
5.1.2 Covert Use of Human Intelligence Sources  
 
5.1.2.1 The same principles as Directed Surveillance apply. (see paragraph 5.1.1.3 

above) 
 
5.1.2.2 The conduct so authorised is any conduct that: 
 

a) is comprised in any such activities involving the use of a covert human 
intelligence source, as are specified or described in the authorisation; 

 
b) relates to the person who is specified or described as the person to whose 

actions as a covert human intelligence source the authorisation relates; and 
 

c) is carried out for the purposes of, or in connection with, the investigation or 
operation so specified or described. 

 
5.1.2.3 In order to ensure that authorising officers have sufficient information to 

make an informed decision it is important that detailed records are 
maintained. As such the forms attached are to be completed where relevant.  

 
It is also sensible to make any authorisation sufficiently wide enough to cover all 
the means required as well as being able to prove effective monitoring of what is 
done against that is authorised. 

 
5.1.3 Communications Data 
 
 Section 22(4) of RIPA allows the Council to request “communications data” from 

Communication System Providers (CSPs).  The access allowed under these 
powers is limited to telephone, postal and email subscriber and billing information.  
Any access must be obtained through the use of an authorised single point of 
contact (SPOC).  (See Code on Acquisition and Disclosure of Communications 
Data paragraphs 3.85, 3.86 and 3.87.)  The Council does not have the right to 
obtain the content of the communication, but can obtain details of the source and 

Page 231



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 10 

 

destination of a message.  The only ground for Local Authorities is the prevention 
or detection of crime.  CSPs must be provided with a Notice Requiring Disclosure 
of Communications Data, which must have been duly authorised.  The only 
officers who are allowed to authorise such requests are those accredited by the 
Home Office (the “Designated Persons” (DPs”)).  The DP is an individual at the 
level of Managing Director and Assistant Director and will scrutinise all 
applications for Communications Data. 

 
 The authorisation or grant of a notice to obtain communications data require 

judicial approval on each occasion. 
 
5.2 Further Requirements of the 2000 Act 

 
5.2.1 An application must be made to the Justice of the Peace for an order that 

gives effect to the authorisation for the use of Directed Surveillance, 
Communications Data and CHIS. This process is in addition to the Council’s 
existing authorisation procedure (see 1.7 above).  
 

5.2.2 In light of the changes to the regime applications for urgent grants or renewal, 
must be in writing.  In the Guidance on Completing RIPA Authorisation Forms 
document which accompanies this Guide are standard forms, which must be used.   
Officers must direct their mind to the circumstances of the individual case with 
which they are dealing when completing the form. 

 
5.2.3 Although it is possible to combine two authorisations in one form the Council‟s 

practice is for separate forms to be completed to maintain the distinction between 
Directed Surveillance and the use of a CHIS. 

 
5.2.4 Authorisations lapse, if not renewed: 
 

 

- 12 months - if in writing/non-urgent - from date of last renewal if it is for the 
conduct or use of a covert human intelligence source or 

 

- in all other cases (ie directed surveillance) 3 months from the date of their 
grant or latest renewal. 

 
5.2.5 Any person entitled to grant a new authorisation can renew subject to judicial 

approval being obtained an existing authorisation in the same terms at any time 
before it ceases to have effect. 

 
But, for the conduct of a covert human intelligence source, an Authorised Officer 
should not renew or make an application to a Justice of the Peace to renew 
unless a review has been carried out and that person has considered the results 
of the review when deciding whether to renew or not. A review must cover what 
use has been made of the source, the tasks given to them and information 
obtained. 

 
5.2.6 The benefits of obtaining an authorisation are described in paragraph 7 below. 
 
5.2.7 Factors to Consider (see further guidance the Guidance on Completing Forms 

document) 
 

Page 232



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 11 

 

 Any person giving an authorisation should first satisfy him/herself that the 
authorisation is necessary on particular grounds and that the surveillance is 
proportionate to what it seeks to achieve.  The proportionate test involves 
balancing the intrusiveness of the activity on the target and others who might be 
affected by it against the need for the activity in operational terms.  The activity will 
not be proportionate if it is excessive in the circumstances of the case or if the 
information which is sought could reasonably be obtained by other less intrusive 
means.  All such activity should be carefully managed to meet the objective in 
question and must not be arbitrary or unfair. 

 
5.2.8 Particular consideration should be given to collateral intrusion on or interference 

with the privacy of persons other than the subject(s) of surveillance.  Such 
collateral intrusion or interference would be a matter of greater concern in cases 
where there are special sensitivities, for example in cases of premises used by 
lawyers or for any form of medical or professional counselling or therapy. 

 
5.2.9 An application for an authorisation should include an assessment of the risk of any 

collateral intrusion or interference.  The authorising officer will take this into 
account, particularly when considering the proportionality of the surveillance and 
whether measures to avoid can be stipulated. 

 
5.2.10 Those carrying out the covert surveillance should inform the Authorising Officer if 

the operation/investigation unexpectedly interferes with the privacy of individuals 
who are not the original subjects of the investigation or covered by the 
authorisation in some other way.  In some cases the original authorisation may not 
be sufficient and consideration should be given to whether a separate 
authorisation is required. 

 
5.2.11 Any person giving an authorisation will also need to be aware of particular 

sensitivities in the local community where the surveillance is taking place or of 
similar activities being undertaken by other public authorities which could impact 
on the deployment of surveillance. 

 
Home Surveillance 
 
5.2.12 The fullest consideration should be given in cases where the subject of the 

surveillance might reasonably expect a high degree of privacy, for instance at 
his/her home (NB. the Council cannot undertake intrusive surveillance) or where 
there are special sensitivities. 

 
Spiritual Counselling 
 
5.2.13 No operations should be undertaken in circumstances where investigators believe 

that surveillance will lead them to intrude on spiritual counselling between a 
Minister and a member of his/her faith.  In this respect, spiritual counselling is 
defined as conversations with a Minister of Religion acting in his/her official 
capacity where the person being counselled is seeking or the Minister is imparting 
forgiveness, or absolution of conscience. 

Page 233



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 12 

 

 
Confidential Material 
 
5.2.14 The 2000 Act allows in exceptional circumstances for authorisations to gather 

„confidential material‟ (see the definitions in Appendix 1).Such material is 
particularly sensitive, and is subject to additional safeguards under this code.  In 
cases where the likely consequence of the conduct of a source would be for any 
person to acquire knowledge of confidential material, the deployment of the source 
should be subject to special authorisation (by the Managing Directors). 

 
5.2.15 In general, any application for an authorisation which is likely to result in the 

acquisition of confidential material should include an assessment of how likely it is 
that confidential material will be acquired.  Special care should be taken where the 
target of the investigation is likely to be involved in handling confidential material.  
Such applications should only be considered in exceptional and compelling 
circumstances with full regard to the proportionality issues this raises. 

 
5.2.16 The following general principles apply to confidential material acquired under 

authorisations: 
 

 Those handling material from such operations should be alert to anything 
that may fall within the definition of confidential material.  Where there is 
doubt as to whether the material is confidential, advice should be sought 
from the Borough Solicitor/Senior Responsible Officer before further 
dissemination takes place; 

 

 Confidential material should not be retained or copied unless it is necessary 
for a specified purpose; 

 

 Confidential material should be disseminated only where an appropriate 
officer (having sought advice from the Borough Solicitor/Senior Responsible 
Officer) is satisfied that it is necessary for a specific purpose; 

 

 The retention or dissemination of such information should be accompanied 
by a clear warning of its confidential nature.  It should be safeguarded by 
taking reasonable steps to ensure that there is no possibility of it becoming 
available, or its content being known, to any person whose possession of it 
might prejudice any criminal or civil proceedings related to the information; 

 

 Confidential material should be destroyed as soon as it is no longer 
necessary to retain it for a specified purpose; 

 

 Any covert surveillance concerning premises on which legal consultations 
take place are to be regarded as intrusive surveillance and may not be 
undertaken by the Council. 

 
Combined authorisations 

 
5.2.17 Although it is possible to combine two authorisations in one form the Council‟s 

practice is for separate forms to be completed to maintain the distinction between 
Directed Surveillance and the use of a CHIS. 

 

Page 234



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 13 

 

5.2.18 In cases of joint working with other agencies on the same operation, e.g. by a 
Housing Benefit Investigator authority for directed surveillance should be given by 
the lead agency. 

 
5.2.19.On occasion, several Council Services may be included in the same investigation.  

One authorisation from the Lead Service should cover all activities. 
 

Handling and disclosure of product 
 
5.2.20 Authorising Officers are reminded of the guidance relating to the retention and 

destruction of confidential material as described in paragraph 5.2.16 above.   
 
5.2.21 Authorising Officers are responsible for ensuring that authorisations undergo 

timely reviews and are cancelled promptly after directed surveillance activity is no 
longer necessary. 

 
5.2.22 Authorising Officers must ensure that the relevant details of each authorisation are 

sent to the Borough Solicitor/Senior Responsible Officer as described in paragraph 
9 below. 

 
5.2.23 The originals of applications for authorisations, reviews, renewals and 

cancellations for directed surveillance and the use of a CHIS should be submitted 
to and thereafter retained by the RIPA Co-ordinator, for a period of 3 years and at 
least between inspections.  Copies are to be retained by the authorising officer for 
a commensurate period.  Where it is believed that the records could be relevant to 
pending or future criminal proceedings, they should be retained for a suitable 
further period, commensurate to any subsequent review. 

 
5.2.24 Any personal data collected during the course of a covert surveillance operation 

must be stored as per data protection guidelines set out in the Council‟s Data 
Protection Policy below. 

 
 Analysis of data from the operation must be carried out by the officers who 

carried out the investigation and should be done in a private office to avoid 
personal material being accessible to other council employees. 

 
 The authorising officer may also be included in analysis of the data 

collected. 
 

 Data must be kept in a secure environment with limited access. 
 
 Data must be labelled with the reference of the case and the date of 

collection. 
 
 Data collected which is not appropriate or useful as evidence in the 

investigation and subsequent formal action must be deleted as soon as this 
fact is determined or when the case is closed, whichever is the sooner.  
Consideration of whether or not this material should be destroyed is the 
responsibility of the senior authorising officer.  Care must be taken in this 
respect, as it must be considered that even if this information is not to be 
used as evidence, it may be “unused material” for the purposes of criminal 
proceedings. 

 

Page 235



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 14 

 

 If there is any reason to believe that the data obtained during the course of 
an investigation might be relevant to that investigation, or to another 
investigation, or to pending or future civil or criminal proceedings, then it 
should not be destroyed but retained in accordance with established 
disclosure requirements and may be disclosed. 

 
5.2.25 There is nothing in the 2000 Act that prevents material obtained through the 

proper use of the authorisation procedures from being used in other investigations.  
However, the use outside the Council, of any material obtained by means of covert 
surveillance and, other than in pursuance of the grounds on which it was obtained, 
should be authorised only in the most exceptional circumstances. 

 
5.3 The Use of Covert Human Intelligence Sources 
 
5.3.1 The Council will not normally use an external or professional source for the 

purpose of obtaining information.  It is not the Council‟s usual practice to seek, 
cultivate or develop a relationship through an external or professional source 
although this may occur where circumstances require it.  In these circumstances 
appropriate authorisations must be obtained. It is potentially possible, though 
highly unlikely, that the role of a Council employee may be that of a source, for 
example, as contemplated in paragraph 3.3 above, please cross refer for detail.  

 
5.3.2 Nothing in the 2000 Act prevents material obtained by an employee acting as a 

source being used as evidence in Court proceedings. 
 
5.3.3 The Authorising Officer must consider the safety and welfare of an employee 

acting as a source, and the foreseeable consequences to others of the tasks they 
are asked to carry out. A risk assessment should be carried out before 
authorisation is given. Consideration from the start for the safety and welfare of 
the employee, even after cancellation of the authorisation, should also be 
considered. 

 
5.3.4 The Authorising Officer must believe that the authorised use of an employee as a 

source is proportionate to what it seeks to achieve. Accurate and proper records 
should be kept about the source and tasks undertaken. 

 
5.3.5 The Council‟s practice is not to use an employee acting as a source to infiltrate 

existing criminal activity, or to be a party to the commission of criminal offences, 
even where this is within the limits recognised by law. 

 
5.3.6 Before authorising the use of an employee as a source, the authorising officer 

should believe that the conduct/use including the likely degree of intrusion into the 
privacy of those potentially affected is proportionate to what the use or conduct of 
the source seeks to achieve.  He should also take into account the risk of intrusion 
into the privacy of persons other than those who are directly the subjects of the 
operation or investigation (collateral intrusion).  Measures should be taken, 
wherever practicable, to avoid unnecessary intrusion into the lives of those not 
directly connected with the operation. 

 
5.3.7 Particular care should be taken in circumstances where people would expect a 

high degree of privacy or where, as a consequence of the authorisation, 
“confidential material” is likely to be obtained. 

 

Page 236



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 15 

 

5.3.8 Additionally, the Authorising Officer should make an assessment of any risk to an 
employee acting as a source in carrying out the proposed authorisation. 

 
6. REVIEWS 
 
6.1. The Home Office Code of Practice on directed surveillance makes specific 

reference to reviews at paragraph 3.23.  It recommends regular reviews be 
undertaken to see if the need for the surveillance is still continuing.  Results of 
reviews should be recorded in a central record of authorisations (see paragraph 
8.1).  Reviews should be more frequent when access to confidential information or 
collateral intrusion is involved.  Review frequency should be as often as the 
authorising officer deems necessary or practicable. 

 
6.2. Similar provisions appear at paragraphs 7.1 – 7.2 of the code of practice for CHIS, 

save that tasks given to the source and information obtained should also be 
included. 

 
6.3. Each authorising officer will therefore determine in each case how often 

authorisations should be reviewed.  They will ensure records of the review will be 
supplied on the relevant form in Section 9 and send copies to the RIPA Co-
ordinator to keep the central register up to date.  Good practice requires that this 
should be done monthly at least. 

 
7. RENEWALS 
 
7.1. An authorising officer may renew an authorisation before it would cease to have 

effect if it is necessary for the authorisation to continue for the purpose for which it 
was given. An application for a renewal to the Justice of the Peace is also 
required (see above).  

 
7.2. The Home Office Code of Practice for directed surveillance at paragraph 5.12 - 

5.16 refers.  A renewal of the authorisation in writing can be made for 3 months.    
Applications for renewal should detail how many times an authorisation has been 
renewed; significant changes to the original application for authority; reasons why 
it is necessary to renew; content and value of the information obtained so far and 
results of regular reviews of the investigation or operation. 

 
7.3. Similar provisions apply in the code of practice for CHIS except that a renewal 

here can last for a further 12 months, a review must have been carried out on the 
use of the source and an application should only be made to renew when the 
initial authorisation period is drawing to an end.  Applications to renew a CHIS also 
should contain use made of the source and tasks given to the source during the 
previous authorised period. 

 
7.4. Each application to renew should be made at least 7 days before the authorisation 

is due to expire on the relevant form in Appendix 2.  A record of the renewal 
should be kept within the applying service and supplied centrally to the Borough 
Solicitor/Senior Responsible Officer - see Section 8 to update the central register 
of authorisations. 

Page 237



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 16 

 

 
8. CANCELLATIONS 
 
8.1. All authorisations, including renewals should be cancelled if the need for the 

surveillance is no longer justified.  This will occur in most cases where the purpose 
for which the surveillance was required has been achieved. 

 
8.2. Requesting officers should ensure they inform authorising officers if this is the 

case before the next review.  If, in the opinion of the authorising officer at the next 
review, the need for surveillance is no longer justified, it must be cancelled. 

 
8.3. The cancellation forms at Appendix 2 will be used to record a cancellation; the 

original will be sent to the RIPA Co-ordinator to update the central register of 
authorisations and the authorising officer will retain a copy - see Section 8. 

 
8.4. The Home Office Codes of Practice for both directed surveillance and CHIS make 

it clear that authorisations must be cancelled if the original authorising criteria are 
not met.  With CHIS, it must be cancelled if satisfactory arrangements for the 
source no longer exist.  Consideration for the safety and welfare of a source 
continues after cancellation of any authorisation. 

 
9. CENTRAL REGISTER OF AUTHORISATIONS 
 
9.1. The Codes of Practice under the 2000 Act require a central register of all 

authorisations to be maintained. The Senior Responsible Officer or nominated 
representative shall maintain this register. 

 
9.2. Whenever an authorisation is granted renewed or cancelled the Authorising 

Officer must arrange for the following details to be forwarded by e-mail to the 
Senior Responsible Officer or nominated representative.  Receipt of the e-mail will 
be acknowledged. 

 
- Whether it is for Directed Surveillance or CHIS ; 
- Applicants name and Job Title (manager responsible); 
- Service and Section; 
- Applicant‟s address and Contact Number; 
- Identity of „Target‟; 
- Authorising Officer and Job Title; (in line with delegation scheme) 
- Date of Authorisation. 
- A unique reference number for the investigation or operation 
-  
- Whether confidential information is likely to be reviewed as a consequence 

of the investigation /operation. 
- The date the authorisation was cancelled 

 
Details should be provided to the Senior Responsible Officer in respect of when an 
authorisation is refused. 
 
See Appendix 2 for the Form of Notification 
 
The original of the authorisation should also be provided; the authorising officer 
should retain a copy.  The Managing Directors will review authorisations every 6 
months.  It is suggested that authorising officers supply these directly. 

Page 238



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 17 

 

 
9.3. The original authorisations shall be securely retained within the RIPA Co-

ordinator‟s Service.  It is each Service‟s responsibility to securely retain all copy 
authorisations within their Service. Authorisations should only be held for as long 
as it is necessary.  Once the investigation is closed (bearing in mind cases may be 
lodged some time after the initial work) the records held by the Service should be 
disposed of in an appropriate manner (e.g. shredded). 

 
10 CODES OF PRACTICE 
 

There are Home Office codes of practice that expand on this guidance.  All 
relevant Services hold a copy.  

 
The codes do not have the force of statute, but are admissible in evidence in any 
criminal and civil proceedings. As stated in the codes, "if any provision of the code 
appears relevant to a question before any Court or tribunal considering any such 
proceedings, or to the tribunal established under the 2000 Act, or to one of the 
commissioners responsible for overseeing the powers conferred by the 2000 Act, 
it must be taken into account".   

 
Staff should refer to the Home Office Codes of Conduct for supplementary 
guidance.  These should be available to all relevant officers (see earlier). 

 
11 BENEFITS OF OBTAINING AUTHORISATION UNDER THE 2000 ACT.  
 
11.1 Authorisation of surveillance and human intelligence sources 
 

The 2000 Act states that 
 

- if authorisation confers entitlement to engage in a certain conduct and  
 

- the conduct is in accordance with the authorisation, then  
 
 - it shall be “lawful for all purposes”. 

 
 Part II of the 2000 Act does not impose a requirement on public authorities to seek 

or obtain an authorisation where, under the 2000 Act, one is available (see section 
80 of the 2000 Act).  Nevertheless, where there is an interference by a public 
authority with the right to respect for private and family life guaranteed under 
Article 8 of the European Convention on Human Rights, and where there is no 
other source of lawful authority, the consequence of not obtaining an authorisation 
under the 2000 Act may be that the action is unlawful by virtue of section 6 of the 
Human Rights Act 1998. 

 
 Public authorities are therefore strongly recommended to seek an authorisation 

where the surveillance is likely to interfere with a person‟s Article 8 rights to 
privacy by obtaining private information about that person, whether or not that 
person is the subject of the investigation or operation.  Obtaining an authorisation 
will ensure that the action is carried out in accordance with law and subject to 
stringent safeguards against abuse. 

 
11.2 The 2000 Act states that a person shall not be subject to any civil liability in 

relation to any conduct of his which -  

Page 239



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 18 

 

 
a) is incidental to any conduct that is lawful by virtue authorisation; and  

 
b) is not itself conduct for which an authorisation is capable of being granted 

under a relevant enactment and might reasonably be expected to have 
been sought in the case in question 

 
12. SCRUTINY AND TRIBUNAL  
 
12.1. To effectively "police" the 2000 Act, Commissioners regulate conduct carried out 

thereunder. The Chief Surveillance Commissioner will keep under review, among 
others, the exercise and performance by the persons on whom are conferred or 
imposed, the powers and duties under the Act. This includes authorising directed 
surveillance and the use of covert human intelligence sources. 

 
12.2. A tribunal has been established to consider and determine complaints made under 

the 2000 Act if it is the appropriate forum.  Complaints can be made by persons 
aggrieved by conduct e.g. directed surveillance. The forum hears application on a 
judicial review basis. Claims should be brought within one year unless it is just and 
equitable to extend that. 

 
The tribunal can order, among other things, the quashing or cancellation of any 
warrant or authorisation and can order destruction of any records or information 
obtained by using a warrant or authorisation, and records of information held by 
any public authority in relation to any person. The Council is, however, under a 
duty to disclose or provide to the tribunal all documents they require if: 
 
- A Council officer has granted any authorisation under the 2000 Act. 

 
- Council employees have engaged in any conduct as a result of such 

authorisation. 
 

- A disclosure notice requirement is given. 
 

12.3 The Senior Responsible Officer will ensure that a quarterly report is submitted to  
the Council‟s Audit and Governance Committee and that an annual report is 
submitted to Cabinet.  The reports will include details of the overall number and 
type of authorisations granted and the outcome of the case, where known.  In 
addition, the reports will provide a breakdown of the same information by service 
or groups of services, as appropriate.  In order to comply with Data Protection and 
Code of Practice requirements, no specific details of individual authorisations will 
be provided. 

 
12.4 The RIPA Co-ordinator will maintain and check the central register of all RIPA 

authorisations, reviews, renewals, cancellations and rejections.  It is the 
responsibility of the authorising officer, however, to ensure the RIPA Co-ordinator 
receives the original of the relevant forms as soon as possible and in any event 
within 1 week of authorisation, review, renewal, cancellation or rejection.  The 
authorising officer should retain copies. 

 
12.5 The management structure for RIPA is set out in Appendix 3. 
 

Page 240



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 19 

 

APPENDIX 1. 
 
Definitions from the 2000 Act 

 

 “2000 Act” means the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000. 
 

 “Confidential Material” consists of: 
 
a) matters subject to legal privilege; 
b) confidential personal information; or 
c) confidential journalistic material. 

 

 Matters subject to legal privilege” includes both oral and written 
communications between a professional legal adviser and his/her client or 
any person representing his/her client, made in connection with the giving 
of legal advice to the client or in contemplation of legal proceedings and for 
the purposes of such proceedings, as well as items enclosed with or 
referred to in such communications.  Communications and items held with 
the intention of furthering a criminal purpose are not matters subject to legal 
privilege (see Note A below) 
 

 “Confidential Personal Information”  is information held in confidence  
concerning an individual (whether living or dead) who can be identified from 
it, and relating: 

 
a) to his/her physical or mental health; or 
b) to spiritual counselling or other assistance given or to be given,  
 and 
 
which a person has acquired or created in the course of any trade, 
business, profession or other occupation, or for the purposes of any paid or 
unpaid office (see Note B below).  It includes both oral and written 
information and also communications as a result of which personal 
information is acquired or created.  Information is held in confidence if: 
 
c) it is held subject to an express or implied undertaking to hold it  
 in confidence; or 
 
d) it is subject to a restriction on disclosure or an obligation of secrecy 

contained in existing or future legislation. 
 

 “Confidential Journalistic Material” includes material acquired or created 
for the purposes of journalism and held subject to an undertaking to hold it 
in confidence, as well as communications resulting in information being 
acquired for the purposes of journalism and held subject to such an 
undertaking. 

 

 “Covert Surveillance” means surveillance which is carried out in a manner 
calculated to ensure that the persons subject to the surveillance are 
unaware that it is or may be taking place. 

 

 “Authorising Officer” means a person designated for the purposes of the 

Page 241



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 20 

 

2000 Act to grant authorisations for directed surveillance.  (see the 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers (Prescription of Offices, Ranks and 
Positions) Order) SI 2000/2417. 

 
 
 
 
 
Note A. Legally privileged communications will lose their protection if there is 
evidence, for example, that the professional legal adviser is intending to hold or 
use them for a criminal purpose;  privilege is not lost if a professional legal 
adviser is properly advising a person who is suspected of having committed a 
criminal offence.  The concept of legal privilege shall apply to the provision of 
professional legal advice by any agency or organisation. 
 
Note B.   Confidential personal information might, for example, include 
consultations between a health professional or a professional counsellor and a 
patient or client, or information from a patient’s medical records. 

 

Page 242



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 21 

 

APPENDIX 2 
 
Notification to Central Register of Authorisations under RIPA 
 
 

Whether it is for Directed Surveillance 
or CHIS 

 

  

Applicants name and Job Title 
(manager responsible) 

 

  

Service and Section  

  

Applicant‟s address and Contact 
Number 

 

  

Identity of „Target‟  

  

Authorising Officer and Job Title; (in 
line with delegation scheme) 

 

  

Date of Authorisation  

  
  

Whether confidential information is 
likely to be reviewed as a 
consequence of the 
investigation/operation 

 

  

The date the authorisation was 
cancelled 

 

  

Whether the authorisation is renewed.  

 
 
A copy of the authorisation shall also be sent (See above, Paragraph 9.2). 

 
A unique reference number for the investigation or operation will be allocated by the 
Borough Solicitor upon receipt of this notification.  This reference must be used in 
subsequent correspondence regarding this authorisation. 

Page 243



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 22 

 

    APPENDIX 3 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Kim Webber, Chief Executive xx* 
 
Community Services – Street Scene 
Legal Services, Land Charges, Member Services 
Procurement 
Civic Services 
Member Development 
Admin and Elections 
Accountancy, Treasury Management 
Audit, Insurance, Risk Management 
 
 
Risk Management 
Kim Webber, Chief Executive xx* 
 
Planning Services, Housing & Regeneration 
Communication/Consultation 
Partnership/Performance 
Customer Services/OR 
Human Resources, Payroll Client 
ICT Client 
Exchequer Client 
 
 

Bob Livermore, Director Housing and Inclusion * 
 
Housing Options, Estate Management 
Rent & Money Advice, Sheltered Housing 
Property Management, Asset Management 
Caretaking & Gardening, Economic Regeneration 
Area Regeneration, Tourism, Estates & Valuation 
External Funding, Investment Centre 
Housing Policy & Strategy 

Dave Tilleray, Director of Leisure and Wellbeing * 
 
Leisure, Arts & Culture Services  
Environmental Protection, Public Protection & Licensing 
Commercial Safety, Corporate Health & Safety Community Safety, Emergency 
Planning  
Technical Services, Ormskirk Market  
Off Street Parking  
Private Sector Housing & Homelessness 
Home Care Link  
 
 
 
 
 
Off Street Parking 
Ormskirk Market, Decriminalised Parking Page 244



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 23 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                  
 
* Authorising Officer 
xx Authorisations when knowledge of confidential information likely to be acquired or 
vulnerable individual or juvenile is to be used as a source. 
 

Terry Broderick – Borough Solicitor, Senior Responsible Officer * 
Supported by Judith Williams – Assistant Solicitor, RIPA Coordinator and SPOC  
Co-ordinator 
Sarah Mooney – Legal Assistant/RIPA Register Officer 

Page 245



LRG / G1-80 / 059232 Page 24 

 

APPENDIX 4 
 

The Office of Surveillance Commissioner‟s Guidance  
 
Covert surveillance of Social Networking Sites (SNS) 
 
The fact that digital investigation is routine or easy to conduct does not reduce the need 
for authorisation.  Care must be taken to understand how the SNS being used works.  
Authorising Officers must not be tempted to assume that one service provider is the 
same as another or that the services provided by a single provider are the same. 
 
Whilst it is the responsibility of an individual to set privacy settings to protect unsolicited 
access to private information, and even though data may be deemed published and no 
longer under the control of the author, it is unwise to regard it as “open source” or publicly 
available; the author has a reasonable expectation of privacy if access controls are 
applied.  In some cases data may be deemed private communication still in transmission 
(instant messages for example).  Where privacy settings are available but not applied the 
data may be considered open source and an authorisation is not usually required.  
Repeat viewing of “open source” sites may constitute directed surveillance on a case by 
case basis and this should be borne in mind. 
 
Providing there is no warrant authorising interception in accordance with section 48(4) of 
the 2000 Act, if it is necessary and proportionate for a public authority to breach covertly 
access controls, the minimum requirement is an authorisation for directed surveillance.  
An authorisation for the use and conduct of a CHIS is necessary if a relationship is 
established or maintained by a member of a public authority or by a person acting on its 
behalf (i.e. the activity is more than mere reading of the site‟s content). 
 
It is not unlawful for a member of a public authority to set up a false identity but it is 
inadvisable for a member of a public authority to do so for a covert purpose without 
authorisation.  Using photographs of other persons without their permission to support 
the false identity infringes other laws. 
 
A member of a public authority should not adopt the identity of a person known, or likely 
to be known, to the subject of interest or users of the site without authorisation, and 
without the consent of the person whose identity is used, and without considering the 
protection of that person.  The consent must be explicit (i.e. the person from whom 
consent is sought must agree (preferably in writing) what is and is not to be done). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TPBRIPAPOLICYVERSION6-2016 

Page 246



 
 

Audit & Governance Committee Work Programme – 27 September 2016 
 

 
Date 

 
Training  

(commencing 6.00pm) 
 

 
Items 

January 2017 Treasury Management  to include  

 Value for Money 
 BRRD Directive (Bail-in) 

1.    Grant Thornton – Progress Update 
2. Internal Audit Activities – Quarterly Update  
3. RIPA Act quarterly monitoring of use of powers 
4. Grant Thornton Annual Audit Letter 
5. Grant Thornton Certification Letter 
6. Treasury Management 
7.    Annual Review – Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy 
8.    Risk Management Framework 

March 2017 Asset Valuation 1.    Grant Thornton – Progress Update 
2. Local Code of Governance 
3. Internal Audit Activities – Quarterly Update 
4. Internal Audit Plan 2017/18 
5. RIPA Act quarterly monitoring of use of powers 
6. Grant Thornton – Audit Plan 

June 2017 
 

Statement of Accounts 1.    Grant Thornton – Progress Update 
2. Internal Audit Annual report 
3. Internal Audit Activities – Quarterly Update 
4. Annual Governance Statement 
5. Statement of Accounts 
6. RIPA Act Quarterly Monitoring of Use of Powers 

September 2017 
 
 
 

 1.   Grant Thornton – Progress Update 
2.   Grant Thornton – Audit  Findings Report 
3.   Approval of Statement of Accounts 
4.   Internal Audit Activities – Quarterly Update 
5.   RIPA Act Annual and Quarterly Monitoring Use of Powers 

 

P
age 247

A
genda Item

 10




	Agenda
	3 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
	4 PUBLIC SPEAKING
	Public Speaking Form

	5 MINUTES
	6 GRANT THORNTON - AUDIT PLAN FINDINGS REPORT
	Appendix 1

	7 APPROVAL OF STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	8 INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY - QUARTERLY UPDATE
	Appendix

	9 REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS (RIPA) ACT - ANNUAL SETTING OF THE POLICY AND REVIEW OF USE OF POWERS
	Appendix

	10 WORK PROGRAMME

